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                                     PART I

                              FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1.  Financial Statements

                    APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
                      AS OF JUNE 1, 2002 AND MARCH 2, 2002

                                                                                June 1,
                                                                                   2002        March 2,
(In thousands, except share and per share data)                             (unaudited)            2002
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                                    
Assets
Current assets
  Cash and cash equivalents                                                   $   4,089       $  15,361
  Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts                           104,251         115,159
  Inventories                                                                    36,151          36,022
  Deferred tax assets                                                             5,271           4,875
  Other current assets                                                            2,999           3,667
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    Total current assets                                                        152,761         175,084
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Property, plant and equipment, net                                              124,475         128,515
Marketable securities available for sale                                         19,354          22,825
Investments in affiliated companies                                              21,030          22,110
Goodwill                                                                         55,614          55,614
Identifiable intangible assets, at cost less accumulated
     amortization of $6,456 and $6,261, respectively                              1,630           1,024
Other assets                                                                      3,746           3,944
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
         Total assets                                                         $ 378,610       $ 409,116



-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities
  Accounts payable                                                            $  47,113       $  51,887
  Accrued expenses                                                               41,811          57,766
  Current liabilities of discontinued operations, net                             3,578           3,740
  Billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncompleted contracts               3,792           6,127
  Accrued income taxes                                                            9,305           7,079
  Current installments of long-term debt                                            540             640
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
     Total current liabilities                                                  106,139         127,239
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Long-term debt, less current installments                                        56,486          69,098
Other long-term liabilities                                                      25,818          25,867
Liabilities of discontinued operations, net                                      15,538          15,978

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 9)

Shareholders' equity
  Common stock of $0.33-1/3 par value; authorized 50,000,000 shares;
    issued and outstanding, 28,536,000 and 28,334,000, respectively               9,512           9,445
  Additional paid-in capital                                                     54,659          50,521
  Retained earnings                                                             114,308         113,382
  Unearned compensation                                                          (2,887)         (1,547)
  Accumulated other comprehensive loss                                             (963)           (867)
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    Total shareholders' equity                                                  174,629         170,934
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    Total liabilities and shareholders' equity                                $ 378,610       $ 409,116
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                    APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
                       CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
              FOR THE QUARTERS ENDED JUNE 1, 2002 AND JUNE 2, 2001
                                   (unaudited)

                                                         Quarter-Ended     Quarter-Ended
(In thousands, except share and per share data)           June 1, 2002      June 2, 2001
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                 
Net sales                                                  $   184,709       $   203,606
Cost of sales                                                  138,757           158,302
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
     Gross profit                                               45,952            45,304
Selling, general and administrative expenses                    36,250            37,332
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
     Operating income                                            9,702             7,972
Interest expense, net                                              992             1,921
Equity in (loss) income of affiliated companies                 (1,118)            2,068
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
     Earnings from operations before income taxes                7,592             8,119
Income taxes                                                     2,354             2,517
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
     Net earnings                                          $     5,238       $     5,602
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Earnings per share - basic                                 $      0.19       $      0.20
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Earnings per share - diluted                               $      0.18       $      0.20
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Weighted average basic shares outstanding                   28,060,000        27,674,000
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding                 29,090,000        28,319,000
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                    APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
              FOR THE QUARTERS ENDED JUNE 1, 2002 AND JUNE 2, 2001
                                   (unaudited)

                                                                                         Quarter-ended      Quarter-ended
(In thousands)                                                                            June 1, 2002       June 2, 2001
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                                                  
Operating Activities
Net earnings                                                                                 $  5,238           $  5,602
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by
   operating activities:
    Depreciation and amortization                                                               6,089              6,963
    Deferred income taxes                                                                        (328)            (1,024)
    Results from equity investments                                                             1,118             (2,068)
    Investment in equity investments                                                              (38)              (344)
    Gain on disposal of assets                                                                 (1,380)              (291)
    Other, net                                                                                   (287)              (108)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions:
      Receivables                                                                              10,908             (6,323)
      Inventories                                                                                (129)              (362)
      Accounts payable and accrued expenses                                                   (20,461)            (7,368)
      Billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncompleted contracts                        (2,335)               164
      Refundable and accrued income taxes                                                       2,226              2,453
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities                                    621             (2,706)
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Investing Activities
Capital expenditures                                                                           (3,357)            (2,651)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment                                            2,386                 18
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired                                                    --               (247)
Purchases of marketable securities                                                             (3,151)                --
Sales/maturities of marketable securities                                                       6,451              1,374
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
           Net cash provided by (used in)  investing activities                                 2,329             (1,506)
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Financing Activities
Change in net borrowings under revolving credit agreement                                     (13,500)             2,500
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt                                                        1,000                 --
Payments on long-term debt                                                                       (212)            (2,417)
Increase in deferred debt expense                                                                (801)                (5)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock                                                          4,696              3,577
Repurchase and retirement of common stock                                                      (3,230)              (284)
Dividends paid                                                                                 (1,573)            (1,481)
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
           Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities                                (13,620)             1,890
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cash (used in) provided by discontinued operations                                               (602)             1,495
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents                                                         (11,272)              (827)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period                                               15,361              4,689
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period                                                   $  4,089           $  3,862
========================================================================================================================

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                    APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
                                   (unaudited)

1.      Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

        In the opinion of the Company, the accompanying unaudited consolidated
        financial statements contain all adjustments (consisting of only normal
        recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the financial
        position as of June 1, 2002 and March 2, 2002, and the results of
        operations and cash flows for the three-month periods ended June 1, 2002
        and June 2, 2001. Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to
        conform to the current period presentation.

        The financial statements and notes are presented as permitted by Form



        10-Q and do not contain certain information included in the Company's
        annual financial statements and notes. The information included in this
        Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with Management's Discussion and
        Analysis and financial statements and notes thereto included in the
        Company's Form 10-K for the year ended March 2, 2002. The results of
        operations for the 12-week period ended June 1, 2002 and June 2, 2001
        are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the
        full year.

        The Company's fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to February 28.
        Each interim quarter ends on the Saturday closest to the end of the
        months of May, August and November.

2.      New Accounting Standards

        In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
        Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, Goodwill and
        Other Intangible Assets. Under SFAS No. 142, amortization of goodwill
        and indefinite-lived intangible assets will cease and instead the
        carrying value of these assets will be evaluated for impairment by
        applying a fair-value based test on at least an annual basis. This
        statement also requires a reassessment of the useful lives of
        identifiable intangible assets other than goodwill.

        The Company has adopted SFAS No. 142 effective March 3, 2002 and has
        discontinued the amortization of goodwill and has determined that it
        does not have intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. The
        Company is in the process of performing the required impairment testing
        of goodwill as of March 3, 2002. As required, this testing will be
        completed by August 31, 2002. In addition, the Company reassessed the
        useful lives of its identifiable intangible assets and determined that
        the lives were appropriate.
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        If the Company had been accounting for its goodwill and intangible
        assets under SFAS No. 142 for all prior periods presented, the Company's
        net income and earnings per common share would have been as follows:

                                                                    Quarter-ended
                                                                ------------------------
                                                                  June 1,      June 2,
        (In thousands, except per share data)                      2002         2001
                                                                 --------     --------
                                                                                    
        Net income:
           Reported net earnings                                  $5,238       $5,602
           Add back amortization expense, net of tax                  --          319
                                                                  -------------------
           Adjusted net income                                    $5,238       $5,921
                                                                  ===================

        Earnings per share - basic
           Reported net earnings                                  $ 0.19       $ 0.20
           Impact of amortization expense, net of tax                 --         0.01
                                                                  -------------------
           Adjusted earnings per share - basic                    $ 0.19       $ 0.21
                                                                  ===================

        Earnings per share - diluted
           Reported net earnings                                  $ 0.18       $ 0.20
           Impact of amortization expense, net of tax                 --         0.01
                                                                  -------------------
           Adjusted earnings per share - diluted                  $ 0.18       $ 0.21
                                                                  ===================

        In August 2001, FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment
        or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. This statement addresses financial
        accounting and reporting for the impairment and disposal of long-lived
        assets. The Company adopted this standard on March 3, 2002, with no
        impact to its consolidated financial statements.



3.      Inventories

        (In thousands)                                              June 1, 2002           March 2, 2002
                                                                --------------------    --------------------
                                                                                              
        Raw materials                                                  $16,226                 $16,235
        Work in process                                                  5,254                   5,807
        Finished goods                                                  10,055                   9,351
        Cost and earnings in excess of billings on
         uncompleted contracts                                           4,616                   4,629
                                                                --------------------    --------------------
            Total inventories                                          $36,151                 $36,022
                                                                ====================    ====================

4.      Investments
        In July 2000, the Company and PPG Industries, Inc. (PPG) combined their
        U.S. automotive replacement glass distribution businesses into a joint
        venture, PPG Auto Glass, LLC (PPG Auto Glass), of which the Company has
        a 34 percent interest. On June 1, 2002, the Company's investment in PPG
        Auto Glass was $20.7 million. At June 1, 2002, the unamortized excess of
        the cost of the investment over the value of the underlying net tangible
        assets when the joint venture was formed was $7.3 million. This
        unamortized excess is reported as goodwill. In connection with the
        formation of PPG Auto Glass, the Company agreed to supply the joint
        venture, through PPG, with most of the Company's windshield fabrication
        capacity on market-based terms and conditions. In addition, the
        Company's automobile windshield repair and replacement business agreed
        to purchase at least 75% of its windshield needs from PPG Auto Glass on
        market-based terms and conditions. Purchases from PPG Auto Glass were
        $11.2 million and $13.0 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2003 and
        2002, respectively. Amounts owed to PPG Auto Glass were $6.7 million and
        $8.5 million at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2003 and 2002,
        respectively.

        During the second quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company, PPG and PPG Auto
        Glass amended the windshield supply agreements to adjust pricing for the
        windshields manufactured and sold to more accurately reflect market
        pricing. As a result of these amendments, a portion of earnings that
        would have previously been reported in equity in income from affiliated
        companies was reported in
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     operating income in the Auto Glass segment for the current year. The impact
     on fiscal 2003 first quarter results was an increase to operating income of
     $2.1 million, with an offset to income from affiliated companies.

     In September 2001, the Company decided to discontinue funding TerraSun,
     LLC, its research and development joint venture of which the Company had a
     50 percent interest. As a result, TerraSun discontinued its operations and
     its tangible assets have been sold, while retaining its intangible assets.

     The Company's share of earnings for its affiliated companies is before
     income taxes and, in the first quarter of fiscal 2002, included $0.1
     million of amortization of the excess cost over the value of the underlying
     net tangible assets and expenses retained by the Company.

5.   Goodwill and Other Identifiable Intangible Assets

     The Company's identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are being
     amortized over their estimated useful lives and are detailed below.

                                               As of June 1, 2002          As of March 2, 2002
                                            -----------------------    -------------------------
                                               Gross                       Gross
          (In thousands)                    Carrying    Accumulated     Carrying     Accumulated
          Amortized Intangible Assets         Amount   Amortization       Amount    Amortization



          ---------------------------------------------------------    -------------------------
                                                                                            
             Deferred debt                    $3,211         $1,670       $2,410          $1,487
             Non-compete agreements            4,434          4,345        4,434           4,333
             Other                               441            441          441             441
                                            -----------------------    -------------------------
                Total                         $8,086         $6,456       $7,285          $6,261
                                            =======================    =========================

     Aggregate amortization expense for the three months ended June 1, 2002 and
     June 2, 2001 related to these identifiable intangible assets was $0.2
     million for each period. At June 1, 2002, future amortization expense of
     identifiable intangible assets is $0.2 million for the remainder of fiscal
     2003, $0.4 million for fiscal 2004 through fiscal 2006, and $0.1 million
     for fiscal 2007.

     The carrying amount of goodwill, net of accumulated amortization,
     attributable to each business segment has not changed since March 2, 2002.
     Goodwill at June 1, 2002 was as follows:

                                                                          Corporate
                                                Large-Scale        Auto         and
     (In thousands)              Architectural      Optical       Glass       Other       Total
     ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                                 
     Balance, June 1, 2002             $24,178      $10,307     $12,954     $ 8,175     $55,614
                                 ==============================================================

     The Company is in the process of performing the required impairment testing
     of goodwill as of March 3, 2002. As required, this testing will be
     completed by August 31, 2002. The carrying value of these assets will be
     evaluated for impairment by applying a fair-value based test on at least an
     annual basis.

6.   Long-Term Debt

     In April 2002, the Company entered into a four-year, unsecured, committed
     credit facility in the amount of $125.0 million. The credit facility
     requires the Company to maintain minimum levels of net worth and certain
     financial ratios. The majority of the borrowings under the credit facility
     are made at a rate equal to three-month LIBOR (London Interbank Offered
     Rate) plus an applicable margin. The applicable margin is calculated based
     upon the Company's financial ratios. At June 1, 2002, the applicable margin
     was 1.375%. At June 1, 2002, the Company was in compliance with all of the
     financial covenants of the credit facility.

7.   Discontinued Operations

     In fiscal 2000, the Company completed the sale of 100% of the stock of its
     large-scale domestic curtainwall business, Harmon, Ltd. In fiscal 1999, the
     Company executed the sale of its detention/security business. Combined with
     the fiscal 1998 exit from international curtainwall operations, these
     transactions effectively removed the Company from the large-scale
     construction
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     business. These businesses are presented as discontinued operations in the
     consolidated financial statements and notes.

     At June 1, 2002, accruals totaling $19.1 million represented the remaining
     estimated future cash outflows associated with the exit from discontinued
     operations. The majority of these cash expenditures are expected to be made
     within the next two to three years. The primary components of the accrual
     relate to the remaining exit costs from the international curtainwall
     operations of the large-scale construction business. These long-term
     accruals include settlement of the outstanding bonds, of which the precise
     degree of liability related to these matters will not be known until they
     are settled within the U.K. and French courts. Additionally, the accruals
     are established for product liability and legal costs that may be incurred



     relating to the Company's warranties and possible rework issues on the
     international and domestic construction projects.

8.   Earnings Per Share

     The following table presents a reconciliation of the denominators used in
     the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

                                                                 Three-Months Ended
                                                             ----------------------------
     (In thousands)                                          June 1, 2002    June 2, 2001
                                                             --------------  ------------
                                                                                   
     Basic earnings per share-
          weighted common shares outstanding                       28,060          27,674
     Weighted common shares assumed upon
           exercise of stock options                                  641             334
     Unvested shares held in trust for deferred
          compensation plans                                          389             311
                                                             ----------------------------
     Diluted earnings per share-
          weighted common shares and common
          shares equivalent outstanding                            29,090          28,319
                                                             ============================

9.   Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

     At June 1, 2002, the Company had ongoing letters of credit related to its
     risk management programs, construction contracts and certain industrial
     development bonds. The total value of letters of credit under which the
     Company is obligated as of June 1, 2002 was approximately $15.4 million.

     The Company has entered into a number of noncompete and consulting
     agreements, associated with former employees. As of June 1, 2002, future
     payments of $0.5 million were committed under such agreements.

     The Company has been a party to various legal proceedings incidental to its
     normal operating activities. In particular, like others in the construction
     supply industry, the Company's construction supply businesses are routinely
     involved in various disputes and claims arising out of construction
     projects, sometimes involving significant monetary damages or product
     replacement. Although it is impossible to predict the outcome of such
     proceedings, facts currently available indicate that no such claims will
     result in losses that would have a material adverse effect on the financial
     condition, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.
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10.  Comprehensive Earnings

     (In thousands)                                       June 1, 2002     June 2, 2001
                                                          ------------     ------------
                                                                                 
     Net earnings                                              $5,238           $5,602
     Transition adjustment related to change in
        accounting for derivative instruments and
        hedging activities, net of $672 tax benefit               ---           (1,109)
     Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives, net of
         $8 and $(43) tax expense (benefit),
         respectively                                              15              (70)
     Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable
        securities, net of $60 and $(22), tax
        expense (benefit), respectively                          (111)              42
                                                          ------------     ------------
     Comprehensive earnings                                    $5,141           $4,465
                                                          ============     ============

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results



of Operations

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the
Company's Form 10-K for the year ended March 2, 2002 and the consolidated
financial statements, including the notes to consolidated financial statements,
included therein.

Sales and Earnings

The relationship between various components of operations, stated as a percent
of net sales, is illustrated below for the first quarter of the current and past
fiscal year.

                                                        Quarter-ended
                                                    ---------------------
                                                     June 1,     June 2,
(Percent of Net Sales)                                2002         2001
-------------------------------------------------------------------------
Net sales                                             100.0%      100.0%
Cost of sales                                          75.1        77.7
                                                      -----       -----
      Gross profit                                     24.9        22.3
Selling, general and
  administrative expenses                              19.6        18.4
                                                      -----       -----
      Operating income                                  5.3         3.9
Interest expense, net                                   0.6         0.9
Equity in (loss) income of affiliated companies        (0.6)        1.0
                                                      -----       -----
      Earnings from operations
        before income taxes                             4.1         4.0
Income taxes                                            1.3         1.2
                                                      -----       -----
          Net earnings                                  2.8%        2.8%
-------------------------------------------------------------------------
Effective tax rate                                     31.0%       31.0%

First Quarter Fiscal 2003 Compared to First Quarter Fiscal 2002

Consolidated net sales for the first quarter ended June 1, 2002 were $184.7
million, a 9% decrease from net sales of $203.6 million reported for the
prior-year quarter. Fiscal 2003 net income was $5.2 million, a 6% decrease from
the prior-year period's net income of $5.6 million. Our operating margin
improved significantly to 5.3% in the first quarter from 3.9% in the prior-year
period.

On a consolidated basis, cost of sales, as a percentage of net sales, fell to
75.1% for fiscal 2003, improving from 77.7% in fiscal 2002. The primary factors
underlying the resulting increase in gross profit percentage were increased
efficiencies in our Architectural segment, which impacted margin by 1.1
percentage points, and the effect of the formation of the PPG Auto Glass joint
venture and pricing amendments to the PPG Auto Glass supply agreements made
during the second quarter of fiscal 2002, which increased margins by 1.2
percentage points.
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Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses for the first quarter of
fiscal 2003 decreased $1.1 million, or 3% from fiscal 2002, but increased as a
percentage of net sales to 19.6% from 18.4%. The decrease in SG&A expenses
relates primarily to a recorded gain on sale of assets of $1.4 million as well
as decreased depreciation and amortization expense and bad debts, offset by
increased advertising and other marketing expenses.

Net interest expense decreased by 48% to $1.0 million for the first quarter of
fiscal 2003 from $1.9 million in the prior-year quarter, reflecting
significantly lower borrowing levels and a lower weighted average interest rate
under the Company's revolving credit agreement.

Our equity in loss from affiliated companies was $1.1 million in the first
quarter of fiscal 2003 versus an equity in income of $2.1 million in the
prior-year quarter. This decrease was due to the amendments made to the supply



agreements related to the PPG Auto Glass joint venture, as well as a decline in
the performance of the joint venture as a result of the mild winter weather and
a slow auto glass industry. This decline was partially offset by elimination of
funding for the TerraSun joint venture, which was shut down during the third
quarter of fiscal 2002.

The effective income tax rate of 31.0% remained constant from fiscal 2002. The
annual effective tax rate of 31% is primarily due to the reduction of tax
reserves where the statute of limitations from our European operations have
expired.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2003, we made payments of $0.6 million related to
discontinued operations, which caused a decrease in the designated reserves. We
continue to believe that we have adequate reserves for the discontinued
operations.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2003, we reported earnings of $5.2 million, or
$0.18 diluted earnings per share, compared to earnings of $5.6 million, or $0.20
diluted earnings per share, in the first quarter of fiscal 2002.

Segment Analysis

The following table presents sales and operating income data for our three
segments and on a consolidated basis for the first quarter, when compared to the
corresponding period a year ago.

                                                       Quarter Ended
                                              -------------------------------
                                                 June 1,           June 2,          Percentage
        (In thousands)                             2002              2001             Change
                                              =============     =============     =============
                                                                                         
        Net Sales
        Architectural                           $ 107,993        $  116,225             (7)%
        Auto Glass                                 60,361            66,877            (10)
        Large-Scale Optical                        16,355            20,507            (20)
        Intersegment eliminations                     ---                (3)           N/M
                                               ----------       -----------
            Net sales                           $ 184,709        $  203,606             (9)%
                                               ==========       ===========

        Operating Income (Loss)
        Architectural                           $   6,425        $    7,020             (8)%
        Auto Glass                                  4,683             1,463            220
        Large-Scale Optical                          (918)              (16)           N/M
        Corporate and other                          (488)             (495)             1
                                               ----------       -----------
            Operating income                    $   9,702        $    7,972             22%
                                               ==========       ===========
        

Architectural Products and Services (Architectural)

Net sales for the Architectural segment decreased 7% to $108.0 million compared
to $116.2 million the same quarter a year ago. As expected, revenues declined
for our largest segment due to the construction industry slowdown. The segment's
operating income decreased 8% to $6.4 million from $7.0 million in the prior
year quarter.

The Architectural segment backlog, at June 1, 2002, was down slightly to $183.4
million, compared to $189.8 million for the first quarter last year and $192.7
million at the end of fiscal 2002. A portion of the
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backlog decline has resulted from a more than 25 percent improvement in lead
times over the last year by Viracon, our architectural glass fabrication
business. Overall, the backlog continues to reflect the segment's focus on
complex, value-added projects which have longer lead times from project approval
to production and less predictable schedules.



Automotive Replacement Glass and Services (Auto Glass)

Net sales at the Auto Glass segment declined to $60.4 million, compared to $66.9
million in the prior-year period. The unusually mild winter weather and weaker
industry conditions resulting from the soft economy led to lower unit volume.
The segment reported operating income of $4.7 million, compared to $1.5 million
in the same period last year. This improvement was primarily due to the supply
agreement amendments related to the PPG Auto Glass, LLC joint venture and a $1.4
million gain on disposal of assets partially offset by a decline in the
performance of the retail windshield replacement business.

Large-Scale Optical Technologies (LSO)

LSO net sales for the quarter of $16.4 million decreased 20% from fiscal 2002
sales of $20.5 million, which included the results of the San Diego CRT coating
facility that was closed in May 2001. The segment reported an operating loss of
$0.9 million compared to break-even performance in the same period last year.
Although results continued to be impacted by the slowed retail markets, the
segment showed continued improvement during the quarter compared to the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2002.

Consolidated Backlog

At June 1, 2002, Apogee's consolidated backlog was $189.4 million, down 4% from
the $196.5 million reported at March 2, 2002. The backlogs of the Architectural
segment represented 97% of the Company's consolidated backlog.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

                                            June 1,     June 2,
(In thousands, except percentages)            2002        2001
----------------------------------------------------------------
Cash provided by (used in) operations       $   621    $(2,706)
Capital expenditures                          3,357      2,651
Proceeds from dispositions of property        2,386         18
(Decrease) increase in net borrowings       (12,712)        83
Debt to total capital                            24%        41%

Operating Activities
Net operating activities provided cash of $0.6 million in the first quarter of
fiscal 2003 versus a $2.7 million use of cash in the prior-year quarter. Net
income plus noncash charges were $10.4 million and $8.7 million for the first
quarter fiscal 2003 and first quarter fiscal 2002, respectively. Also
contributing to the change in net operating activities was the working capital
increase of $9.8 million in the current quarter versus $11.4 million in the
prior-year quarter. We do not expect the increase in working capital experienced
in the first quarter to continue for the remainder of fiscal 2003.

Investing Activities
First quarter fiscal 2003 investing activities provided cash of $2.3 million as
compared to a use of cash of $1.5 million in the same period last year,
primarily as a result of proceeds from the sale of property at the Auto Glass
segment. The increase in sales/maturities of marketable securities, offset by
purchases, also contributed to the increase in cash provided by investing
activities. New capital investment in the first quarter of fiscal 2003 totaled
$3.4 million, versus $2.7 million in the prior-year quarter. For fiscal 2003, we
expect to incur capital expenditures as necessary to maintain existing
facilities and safety initiatives. Fiscal 2003 capital expenditures are expected
to be approximately $20 million.

Financing Activities
Total borrowings stood at $57.0 million at June 1, 2002, down 18% from the $69.7
million outstanding at March 2, 2002 as we continued to focus on debt reduction.
The majority of all of our long-term debt, $47.2 million, consisted of bank
borrowings under a syndicated revolving credit facility. The borrowings were
sufficient to finance the period's investing activities and cash dividend
requirements. Our debt-to-
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total-capital ratio continued to improve and was 24% at June 1, 2002, an
improvement from 41% at the end of last year's first quarter.



In April 2002, $1.0 million of variable rate industrial bonds were issued and
the resulting proceeds were loaned to us to finance a portion of our capital
projects in Wausau, WI.

Other Financing Activities

                                   Future Cash Payments Due by Period
---------------------------------------------------------------------
(In thousands)                          2003       2004   After 2004
---------------------------------------------------------------------
Long-Term Debt                        $   428    $   540      $56,058
Operating Leases (Undiscounted)        11,440     12,046       28,556
Other Obligations                         243        183           25
                                      -------    -------      -------
     Total Cash Obligations           $12,111    $12,769      $84,639
                                      =======    =======      =======

We anticipate that outstanding borrowings will decline over the remainder of the
fiscal year. We believe that current cash on hand, cash generated from operating
activities, and available funds under our new $125.0 million credit facility
should be adequate to fund our working capital requirements and planned capital
expenditures through fiscal 2003.

In April 2002, we entered into a new, four-year, unsecured, committed credit
facility in the amount of $125.0 million. This credit facility requires us to
maintain levels of net worth and certain financial ratios. These ratios include
maintaining an interest coverage ratio (EBITDA divided by interest expense) of
more than 3.0 and a debt-to-EBITDA ratio of less than 3.0. At June 1, 2002,
these ratios were 10.9 and 0.9, respectively. If we are not in compliance with
these ratios at the end of any quarter (with respect to interest coverage) or at
the end of any day (with respect to debt-to-EBITDA ratio), the lendor may
terminate the commitment and/or declare any loan then outstanding to be due.
This new credit facility replaced the Company's previously existing $125.0
million secured credit facility.

During the quarter, the Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program
for a total of 1,000,000 shares. During the quarter, we repurchased 107,000
shares under this repurchase program for a total of $1.5 million, and as of the
date of this report, we have purchased an aggregate of 193,400 shares under this
repurchase program for a total of $2.8 million.

Outlook

Overall revenue growth for fiscal 2003 versus fiscal 2002 is anticipated to be
flat to low single digits, with year-on-year growth occurring in the second half
of the year.

  -  Architectural segment is expected to have flat to low single digit revenue
     growth for the year, with second half growth dependent on an improving
     construction industry.
  -  Automotive replacement glass segment revenues are expected to be down 3% to
     5% for the year, consistent with industry trends resulting from an
     exceptionally mild winter and competitive conditions. This outlook depends
     upon the ability of our retail business unit to recapture market share.
  -  LSO segment revenues are expected to grow in the high single digits, driven
     by the timing of improvements in retail consumer electronics and framing
     markets and the expected success of new product initiatives. For the
     balance of the year, revenue growth is expected to average approximately
     25% compared to the prior year, with revenues building as the year
     progresses.

Gross margin percentages are expected to improve slightly, with operating
efficiencies achieved largely through Six Sigma initiatives offsetting increases
in wages, health care and insurance costs. At the same time, there is expected
to be increased margin pressure in the Architectural and Auto Glass segments
driven by competitive actions in soft markets. Sales, general and administrative
expenses will grow slightly, as will SG&A as a percent of sales, due to
investments in marketing and information technology initiatives.

A loss from equity in affiliated companies is expected for the year, as the
wholesale auto glass market served by our auto glass distribution joint venture
has been more severely impacted by the increasingly difficult industry
conditions. This expected loss is offset somewhat by the elimination of funding
for the
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TerraSun joint venture closed in fiscal 2002. We continue to expect that
earnings per share will grow, with year-on-year growth anticipated to begin in
the third quarter when the improving economy should positively impact Apogee's
value-added Architectural and LSO businesses.

Critical Accounting Policies

No material changes have occurred in the disclosure with respect to our critical
accounting policies set forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended March 2, 2002.

Item 3: Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

No material changes have occurred in the disclosure of qualitative and
quantitative market risk set forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended March 2, 2002.

Cautionary Statement

This discussion contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements reflect the
Company's current views with respect to future events and financial performance.
The words "believe," "expect," "anticipate," "intend," "estimate," "forecast,"
"project," "should" and similar expressions are intended to identify
"forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All forecasts and projections in this document
are "forward-looking statements," and are based on management's current
expectations or beliefs of the Company's near-term results, based on current
information available pertaining to the Company, including the risk factors
noted below.

The Company wishes to caution investors that any forward-looking statements made
by or on behalf of the Company are subject to uncertainties and other factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from such statements. These
uncertainties and other risk factors include, but are not limited to, the
following factors. There can be no assurances given that Harmon AutoGlass will
recapture market share and increase sales. There can be no assurances that PPG
Auto Glass, Apogee's automotive replacement glass distribution joint venture
with PPG Industries, will achieve favorable long-term operating results. In
addition, there can be no assurances that Apogee's Architectural segment, which
serves high-end markets with value-added products, will not be further impacted
by the slowing economy. There also can be no assurances that there will not be
additional erosion in the LSO segment revenues due to the severe downturn in the
PC industry and a slowdown in retail markets.

A number of other factors should be considered in conjunction with this report's
forward-looking statements, any discussion of operations or results by the
Company or its representatives and any forward-looking discussion, as well as
comments contained in press releases, presentations to securities analysts or
investors, or other communications by the Company. These other factors are set
forth in the cautionary statement filed as Exhibit 99 to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K, and include, without limitation, cautionary statements
regarding changes in economic and market conditions, factors related to
competitive pricing, quality, facility utilization, new product introductions,
seasonal and cyclical conditions and customer dependency. Also included are
other risks related to financial risk, self-insurance, environmental risk and
discontinued operations. New factors emerge from time to time and it is not
possible for management to predict all such factors, nor can it assess the
impact of each such factor on the business or the extent to which any factor, or
a combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from
those contained in any forward-looking statements.
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                                     PART II

                                OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K



(a)  Exhibits:
     Exhibit 10.1  Credit Agreement dated as of April 25, 2002 between Apogee
                   Enterprises, Inc. and banks party to the agreement, including
                   related contribution and subsidiary guaranty agreements.

(b)  Reports on Form 8-K:
     The Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 3, 2002 related to a
     request to delete Form 10-KSB Erroneously Submitted on behalf of Wrong
     Company.

     The Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 18, 2002 related to
     Changes in Registrant's Certifying Accountant.
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                                   SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

                                        APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

Date: July 10, 2002                     /s/ Russell Huffer
                                            --------------
                                        Russell Huffer
                                        Chairman, President and Chief Executive
                                         Officer

Date: July 10, 2002                     /s/ Michael B. Clauer
                                            -----------------
                                        Michael B. Clauer
                                        Executive Vice President and
                                         Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBITS INDEX

Exhibit 10.1  Credit Agreement dated as of April 25, 2002 between Apogee
              Enterprises, Inc. and banks party to the agreement, including
              related contribution and subsidiary guaranty agreements.
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         CREDIT AGREEMENT, dated as of April 25, 2002 (this "Agreement"), among
Apogee Enterprises, Inc., a Minnesota corporation (the "Borrower"), each of the
lenders from time to time parties to this Agreement (collectively, the
"Lenders"), and The Bank of New York, as letter of credit issuer, administrative
agent for the Lenders and swing line lender.



                              W I T N E S S E T H:

         WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested the Lenders severally to commit to
lend to the Borrower up to $125,000,000 (subject to increase, pursuant to
Section 2.07, to an amount not exceeding $175,000,000) on a revolving basis for
general corporate purposes; and

         WHEREAS, the Borrower also has requested the Lenders to establish a
procedure pursuant to which it may obtain as part of the Lenders' commitments to
lend, up to $25,000,000 in face amount of letters of credit for general
corporate purposes; and

         WHEREAS, the Lenders are willing to make loans, and to establish such a
procedure, on the terms and conditions provided herein;

         NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

                                   ARTICLE I

                                   Definitions

         Section 1.01 Definitions.

         (a) Terms Generally. The definitions ascribed to terms in this
Agreement apply equally to both the singular and plural forms of such terms.
Whenever the context may require, any pronoun shall be deemed to include the
corresponding masculine, feminine and neuter forms. The words "include",
"includes" and "including" shall be deemed followed by the phrase "without
limitation". The phrase "individually or in the aggregate" shall be deemed
general in scope and not to refer to any specific Section or clause of this
Agreement. All references herein to Articles, Sections, Exhibits and Schedules
shall be deemed references to Articles and Sections of, and Exhibits and
Schedules to, this Agreement unless the context shall otherwise require. The
table of contents, headings and captions herein shall not be given effect in
interpreting or construing the provisions of this Agreement. All references
herein to "dollars" or "$" shall be deemed references to the lawful money of the
United States of America. All references to laws or regulations refer to such
laws or regulations, and interpretations thereof, as now in effect or as
amended, modified or superseded from time to time. All references to a specific
Governmental Authority shall be deemed to include a reference to any successor
to such authority.

         (b) Accounting Terms. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein,
the term "consolidated" and all other terms of an accounting nature shall be
interpreted and construed in accordance with GAAP, as in effect from time to
time; provided, however, that, for purposes of determining compliance with any
covenant set forth in Article VII, such terms shall be construed in accordance
with GAAP as in effect on the date of this Agreement, applied on a basis
consistent with the construction thereof applied in preparing the Borrower's
audited financial statements referred to in Section 5.01(h). If there shall
occur a change in GAAP which but for the foregoing

proviso would affect the computation used to determine compliance with any
covenant set forth in Article VII, the Borrower and the Lenders agree to
negotiate in good faith in an effort to agree upon an amendment to this
Agreement that will permit compliance with such covenant to be determined by
reference to GAAP as changed while affording the Lenders the protection
originally intended by such covenant (it being understood, however, that such
covenant shall remain in effect in accordance with its existing terms unless and
until such amendment shall become effective).

         (c) Other Terms. The following terms are used herein with the meanings
assigned below:

             "ABR Loans" means Loans that bear interest at a rate or rates
         determined by reference to the Alternate Base Rate.

             "Administrative Agent" means The Bank of New York, acting in the
         capacity of administrative agent for the Lenders, or any successor
         administrative agent appointed pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.



             "Administrative Questionnaire" means an administrative details
         reply form delivered by a Lender to the Administrative Agent, in
         substantially the form provided by the Administrative Agent or the form
         attached to an Assignment and Acceptance.

             "Affected Lender" has the meaning assigned in Section 4.07.

             "Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person
         that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, such
         Person.

             "Agreement" means this credit agreement, as it may be amended,
         modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section
         11.05.

             "Alternate Base Rate" means, for any day, a rate per annum equal to
         the greater of:

                     (i) t he rate of interest from time to time publicly
             announced by the Administrative Agent in The City of New York as
             its prime commercial loan rate in effect on such day; and

                     (ii) the sum of (a) 0.50% per annum and (b) the Federal
             Funds Rate in effect on such day.

         The Alternate Base Rate shall change as and when the greater of the
         foregoing rates shall change. Any change in the Alternate Base Rate
         shall become effective as of the opening of business on the day of such
         change.

             "Applicable Lending Office" means, with respect to a Lender and a
         Loan, the applicable office of the Lender for making such Loan, as
         specified in Schedule I or in an Administrative Questionnaire delivered
         to the Administrative Agent as the office from which such Lender makes
         Loans of the relevant type.
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             "Applicable Margin" means, at any date and with respect to each
         Loan, the applicable margin set forth below based upon the Debt/EBITDA
         Ratio as of such date (it being understood that measurement of the
         Debt/EBITDA Ratio as of the most recent Measurement Date is sufficient
         for this purpose):

                                                         Applicable Margin
                                                  ------------------------------
         Debt/EBITDA Ratio                         ABR Loans   Eurodollar Loans
         -----------------------------------      -----------  -----------------
         Greater than 2.00                           0.375%        1.625%
         2.00 or less, but greater than 1.00         0.125%        1.375%
         1.00 or less                                0.000%        1.125%

             If a Rating Event has occurred, then the Applicable Margin shall be
         as set forth below based upon the Debt/EBITDA Ratio as of such date (it
         being understood that measurement of the Debt/EBITDA Ratio as of the
         most recent Measurement Date is sufficient for this purpose):

                                                         Applicable Margin
                                                  ------------------------------
         Debt/EBITDA Ratio                         ABR Loans   Eurodollar Loans
         ---------------------------------------  -----------  -----------------
             Greater than 2.00                       0.125%        1.375%
             2.00 or less, but greater than 1.00     0.000%        1.125%
             1.00 or less                            0.000%        0.875%

             Notwithstanding the above definition of Applicable Margin, until
         October 25, 2002, the Applicable Margin for ABR Loans will not be less
         than 0.125% and the Applicable Margin for Eurodollar Loans will not be
         less than 1.375%.

             "Assignee" has the meaning assigned in Section 10.03.

             "Assignment and Acceptance" has the meaning assigned in Section



         10.03.

             "Available Commitment" means, on any day, an amount equal to (i)
         the Total Commitment on such day minus (ii) the aggregate outstanding
         principal amount of Loans and L/C Obligations on such day.

             "Borrower" shall have the meaning assigned in the preamble.

             "Borrowing Date" means, (i) with respect to any Loan, the Business
         Day set forth in the relevant Borrowing Request as the date upon which
         the Borrower desires to borrow such Loan and (ii) with respect to any
         Letter of Credit, the Business Day set forth in the relevant L/C
         Request as the date upon which the Borrower desires the L/C Issuer to
         issue such Letter of Credit.

             "Borrowing Request" means a Revolving Credit Request, a Swing Line
         Request or a L/C Request.
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             "Business Day" means any day that is (i) not a Saturday, Sunday or
         other day on which commercial banks in The City of New York are
         authorized or required by law to close and (ii) with respect to any
         Eurodollar Loan, a day on which commercial banks are open for domestic
         and international business (including dealings in dollar deposits) in
         London and The City of New York.

             "Capital Expenditures" means, for any period, the aggregate of all
         expenditures (whether paid in cash or accrued as liabilities, and
         including that portion of Capital Lease Obligations that is capitalized
         on the consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries)
         by the Borrower and its Subsidiaries during such period that are
         included in the property, plant or equipment reflected in the
         consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries.

             "Capital Lease Obligations" means, with respect to any Person, the
         obligation of such Person to pay rent or other amounts under any lease
         with respect to any property (whether real, personal or mixed) acquired
         or leased by such Person that is required to be accounted for as a
         liability on a consolidated balance sheet of such Person.

             "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

             "Commitment" means, with respect to a Lender, (i) on the date
         hereof, the amount set forth opposite such Lender's name under the
         heading "Commitment" on Schedule I, and (ii) after the date hereof, the
         amount recorded as such in the records maintained by the Administrative
         Agent pursuant to Section 10.01, as such amount may be reduced from
         time to time pursuant to Section 2.03.

             "Commitment Fee" has the meaning assigned in Section 3.07(a).

             "Commitment Increase Supplement" has the meaning assigned in
         Section 2.07(c).

             "Commitment Termination Date" means the earlier to occur of (i)
         April 25, 2006 and (ii) the date, if any, on which the Total Commitment
         is otherwise terminated pursuant to this Agreement.

             "Confidential Information" means information delivered to the
         Administrative Agent for the Lenders or to a Lender by or on behalf of
         the Borrower or its Subsidiaries in connection with the transactions
         contemplated by or otherwise pursuant to this Agreement that is
         confidential or proprietary in nature at the time it is so delivered or
         information obtained by the Administrative Agent or a Lender in the
         course of any review of the books or records of the Borrower or its
         Subsidiaries as may be contemplated by or otherwise pursuant to the
         transactions under this Agreement; provided that such term shall not
         include information (i) that was, is or becomes publicly available
         (through no act or omission by the Administrative Agent or a Lender or
         any Person acting on their behalf) or (ii) otherwise known (on a
         non-confidential basis) to the Administrative Agent or a Lender prior
         to the time of such disclosure or that subsequently becomes known or



         available to the Administrative Agent or a Lender (on a
         non-confidential basis) from a source not known to be subject to a
         confidentiality obligation to the Borrower or its Subsidiaries.
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             "Contractual Obligation" means, as to any Person, any provision of
         any security issued by such Person or of any agreement, instrument or
         undertaking to which such Person is a party or by which it or any of
         its Property is bound.

             "Contribution Agreement" means a contribution agreement, dated as
         of the date hereof, to be entered into in substantially the form of the
         Existing Contribution Agreement.

             "Conversion Date" means, with respect to a Revolving Credit Loan,
         the date on which a conversion of interest rates on such Revolving
         Credit Loan shall take effect.

             "Conversion Request" means a request by the Borrower to convert the
         interest rate basis for all or portions of outstanding Revolving Credit
         Loans, which shall specify (i) the requested Conversion Date, which
         shall not be sooner than the third Business Day after the date of
         delivery of such Conversion Request, (ii) the aggregate amount of such
         Revolving Credit Loans, on and after the Conversion Date, which are to
         bear interest as ABR Loans or Eurodollar Loans and (iii) the term of
         the Interest Periods therefor, if any.

             "Credit Documents" means this Agreement, any Notes, if and when
         issued in accordance with Section 10.01(a) or (d), any Letters of
         Credit and the related applications and agreements, the Supplemental
         Credit Documents and the Guaranty Documents.

             "Debt" means, for any Person, Indebtedness of such Person of the
         types described in clauses (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (vi), (vii) and
         (viii) of the definition of such term but excluding any Indebtedness of
         such Person consisting of (a) any surety bond or any other obligations
         of like nature, including, without limitation, letters of credit
         serving the same function as a surety bond, provided that such surety
         bond or other obligation has been provided to such Person in the
         ordinary course of such Person's business, and provided further that if
         there has been a demand or drawing made under any such surety bond or
         other obligation, then such surety bond or other obligation shall be
         included as Indebtedness of such Person in an amount equal to the
         unreimbursed amount of such demand or the unreimbursed amount of such
         drawing, and (b) any trade payable incurred in the ordinary course of
         such Person's business so long as no note or similar instrument has
         been executed by such Person in connection with such trade payable.

             "Debt/EBITDA Ratio" means, at any date of determination, the ratio
         of consolidated Debt of the Borrower, as of such date, to EBITDA at the
         most recent fiscal quarter-end for the preceding four fiscal quarters.

             "Default" means any event or circumstance which, with the giving of
         notice or the passage of time, or both, would be an Event of Default.

             "EBITDA" means, for any period, the consolidated net income of the
         Borrower for such period, before subtracting consolidated income taxes,
         Interest Expense, depreciation, and amortization (including, without
         limitation, amortization associated with goodwill, deferred debt
         expenses, restricted stock and option costs and non-competition
         agreements) of the Borrower for such period. For purposes of this
         Agreement, the parties hereto agree that the Borrower's (or any of its
         Subsidiaries') share of the net income, before subtracting income
         taxes, interest expense, depreciation, and
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         amortization, from any unconsolidated joint venture investments shall
         be included in EBITDA. In addition, the parties agree that (i) income,
         expenses and charges relating to discontinued operations (whether



         resulting in a net positive or a net negative) shall be excluded from
         EBITDA, (ii) EBITDA shall be adjusted pro forma for any acquisitions or
         divestitures by the Borrower or its Subsidiaries by adding or
         subtracting, as the case may be, for the entire period for which EBITDA
         is being calculated, the EBITDA (for such acquired or divested
         business, calculated in accordance with this definition) attributable
         to any acquired or divested business and (iii) EBITDA will exclude
         extraordinary non-cash charges, to the extent such charges are less
         than $15,000,000 in any 12-month period and are less than $30,000,000
         in the aggregate between the Effective Date and the Commitment
         Termination Date, but any amounts over such limitations shall be
         included in EBITDA.

             "Effective Date" shall mean the day during which the Effective Time
         occurs.

             "Effective Time" has the meaning assigned in Section 6.01.

             "Eligible Affiliate" means an Affiliate that is (i) a commercial
         bank organized or licensed under the laws of the United States, or any
         state thereof, and having a combined capital and surplus of at least
         $500,000,000; (ii) a commercial bank organized under the laws of any
         other country which is a member of the Organization for Economic
         Cooperation and Development, or a political subdivision of any such
         country, and having a combined capital and surplus of at least
         $100,000,000, provided that such bank is acting through a branch or
         agency located in the United States; (iii) a Person that is primarily
         engaged in the business of commercial banking and having a combined
         capital and surplus of at least $100,000,000; or (iv) a special purpose
         corporation which is engaged in making, purchasing or otherwise
         investing in commercial loans in the ordinary course of business and
         having a combined capital and surplus of at least $100,000,000.

             "Environmental Claim" means any claim, assertion, demand, notice of
         violation, suit, administrative or judicial proceeding, regulatory
         action, investigation, information request or order involving any
         hazardous substance, Environmental Law, noise or odor pollution or any
         injury or threat of injury to human health, property or the
         environment.

             "Environmental Law" means any federal, state, local or foreign law,
         regulation, order, decree, opinion or agency requirement relating to
         (i) the handling, use, presence, disposal or release of any hazardous
         substance or (ii) the protection, preservation or restoration of the
         environment, natural resources or human health or safety.

             "ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

             "ERISA Group" means the Borrower and all members of a controlled
         group of corporations and all trades or businesses (whether or not
         incorporated) under common control which, together with the Borrower,
         are treated as a single employer under Section 414 of the Code or are
         considered to be one employer under Section 4001 of ERISA.

             "Eurodollar Loans" means Revolving Credit Loans that bear interest
         at a rate or rates determined by reference to LIBOR.
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     "Eurodollar Reserve Percentage" means, for any day, the percentage
prescribed by the Federal Reserve Board for determining the maximum reserve
requirement (including any marginal, supplemental or emergency reserve
requirements) on such day for a member bank of the Federal Reserve System in The
City of New York with deposits exceeding one billion dollars in respect of
"eurocurrency liabilities" (as defined in Regulation D of the Federal Reserve
Board).

     "European Subsidiary" means a Subsidiary of the Borrower which, as of the
date hereof, exists and is organized under the laws of, and of which the
principal place of business is located in, a European country.

     "Event of Default" has the meaning assigned in Section 8.01.



     "Excluded Taxes" means all present and future taxes, levies, imposts,
duties, deductions, withholdings, fees, liabilities and similar charges imposed
on or measured by the overall net income of any Lender (or any office, branch or
subsidiary of such Lender) or any franchise taxes, taxes on doing business or
taxes measured by capital or net worth imposed on any Lender (or any office,
branch or subsidiary of such Lender), in each case imposed by the United States
of America or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein,
or taxes on or measured by the overall net income of any office, branch or
subsidiary of a Lender or any franchise taxes, taxes imposed on doing business
or taxes measured by capital or net worth imposed on any office, branch or
subsidiary of such Lender, in each case imposed by any foreign country or
subdivision thereof in which such Lender's principal office or Eurodollar
Lending Office (as set forth in the Administrative Questionnaire) is located.

     "Existing Credit Agreement" means the Credit Agreement, dated as of May 21,
1998, by and among the Borrower, the banks from time to time parties thereto,
and The Bank of New York as administrative agent, letter of credit issuer and
swing line lender, as such agreement has been amended from time to time.

     "Existing Contribution Agreement" means the Contribution Agreement, dated
as of May 21, 1998, by and among the Borrower and the Subsidiaries parties
thereto.

     "Existing Facility" has the meaning assigned in Section 2.08.

     "Existing Pledge Agreement" means the Pledge Agreement, dated as of May 21,
1998, by and among the Borrower, the other pledgors party thereto and The Bank
of New York, as administrative and collateral agent.

     "Existing Security Agreement" means the Security Agreement, dated as of
June 13, 2000, by and among the Borrower, the other debtors party thereto and
The Bank of New York, as administrative and collateral agent, as such agreement
has been amended from time to time.

     "Existing Subsidiary Guaranty" means the Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement,
dated as of May 21, 2000, by the guarantors party thereto in favor of The Bank
of New York, as agent for the secured creditors identified therein.

                                       -7-

     "Fair Market Value" means, with respect to any assets or Property (other
than cash), the price that could be negotiated in an arm's-length free market
transaction for cash, between a willing seller and a willing buyer, neither of
whom is under pressure or compulsion to complete the transaction. Unless
otherwise specified, (i) in the case of assets or Property with a net book value
on the books of the Borrower or its Subsidiaries at the date of determination
less than $15,000,000, Fair Market Value shall be determined by the chief
financial officer or treasurer of the Borrower acting in good faith and such
determination shall be evidenced by a certificate of the officer making such
determination, (ii) in the case of assets or Property with a net book value on
the books of the Borrower or its Subsidiaries at the date of determination of
greater than or equal to $15,000,000, but less than $30,000,000, Fair Market
Value shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Borrower acting in
good faith and shall be evidenced by a certified resolution of the Board of
Directors of the Borrower, and (iii) in the case of assets or Property with a
net book value on the books of the Borrower or its Subsidiaries at the date of
determination of greater than or equal to $30,000,000, Fair Market Value shall
be determined by an investment banking firm, accounting firm or appraisal firm
of national recognition that is not an Affiliate of the Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries, which firm shall evidence its determination by a written opinion
setting forth the Fair Market Value.

     "Federal Funds Rate" means, for any day, the rate per annum (rounded, if
necessary, to the next greater 1/16 of 1%) equal to the weighted average of the
rates on overnight federal funds transactions with members of the Federal
Reserve System arranged by federal funds brokers on such day, as published by
the Federal Reserve Bank of New York on the Business Day next succeeding such
day; provided that (i) if such day is not a Business Day, the Federal Funds Rate
for such day shall be such rate on such transactions on the next preceding
Business Day, and (ii) if no such rate is so published on such next succeeding
Business Day, then the Federal Funds Rate for such day shall be the average rate
quoted to the Administrative Agent on such day on such transactions, as
determined by the Administrative Agent.



     "Federal Reserve Board" means the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System.

     "Financial Covenants" means, collectively, the covenants of the Borrower
contained in Section 7.03.

     "GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles, as set forth in the
opinions and pronouncements of the Accounting Principles Board of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and statements and pronouncements of
the Financial Accounting Standards Board or in such other statements by such
other entities as may be approved by a significant segment of the accounting
profession of the United States of America.

     "Governmental Authority" means any nation or government, any state or other
political subdivision thereof and any entity exercising executive, legislative,
judicial, regulatory or administrative functions of or pertaining to government.
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     "Guaranty" means, with respect to any Person, any obligation, contingent or
otherwise, of such Person guaranteeing or having the economic effect of
guaranteeing any Indebtedness of any other Person (the "primary obligor") in any
manner, whether directly or indirectly, and including any obligation of such
Person, (i) to purchase or pay (or advance or supply funds for the purchase or
payment of) such Indebtedness or to purchase (or to advance or supply funds for
the purchase of) any security for the payment of such Indebtedness, (ii) to
purchase property, securities or services for the purpose of assuring the holder
of such Indebtedness of the payment of such Indebtedness or (iii) to maintain
working capital, equity capital or the financial condition or liquidity of the
primary obligor so as to enable the primary obligor to pay such Indebtedness.
The terms "Guaranteed", "Guaranteeing" and "Guarantor" shall have corresponding
meanings.

     "Guaranty Documents" means, collectively, the Contribution Agreement and
the Subsidiary Guaranty.

     "Hazardous Substance" means any substance, in any concentration or mixture,
that is (i) listed, classified or regulated pursuant to any Environmental Law,
(ii) any petroleum product or by-product, asbestos containing material,
polychlorinated biphenyls, radioactive material or radon or (iii) any waste or
other substance regulated by any Governmental Authority or any Environmental
Law.

     "Indebtedness" means, with respect to any Person, (i) all obligations of
such Person for borrowed money or for the deferred purchase price of property or
services (including all obligations, contingent or otherwise, of such Person in
connection with letters of credit, bankers' acceptances, Interest Rate
Protection Agreements (limited to the exposure) or other similar instruments,
including currency swaps) other than indebtedness to trade creditors and service
providers incurred in the ordinary course of business and payable on usual and
customary terms, (ii) all obligations of such Person evidenced by bonds, notes,
debentures or other similar instruments, (iii) all indebtedness created or
arising under any conditional sale or other title retention agreement with
respect to property acquired by such Person (even though the remedies available
to the seller or lender under such agreement are limited to repossession or sale
of such property), (iv) all Capital Lease Obligations of such Person, (v) all
obligations of the types described in clauses (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv) above
secured by (or for which the obligee has an existing right, contingent or
otherwise, to be secured by) any Lien upon or in any property (including
accounts, contract rights and other intangibles) owned by such Person, even
though such Person has not assumed or become liable for the payment of such
Indebtedness, (vi) all preferred stock issued by such Person which is
redeemable, prior to full satisfaction of the Borrower's obligations under the
Credit Documents (including repayment in full of the Loans and all interest
accrued thereon), other than at the option of such Person, valued at the greater
of its voluntary or involuntary liquidation preference plus accrued and unpaid
dividends, (vii) all Indebtedness of others Guaranteed by such Person and (viii)
all Indebtedness of any partnership of which such Person is a general partner.

     "Indemnitee" has the applicable meaning assigned in Sections 4.06(b) and
4.06(c).
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     "Interest Expense" means, for any period, the sum of all interest charges
of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries for such period determined on a
consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP, including all commitment fees,
letter of credit fees and related charges.

     "Interest Period" means, with respect to any Eurodollar Loan, each one,
two, three or six-month period, such period being the one selected by the
Borrower pursuant to Section 2.02 or 3.01 or 3.03(b) and commencing on the date
such Loan is made or at the end of the preceding Interest Period, as the case
may be; provided, however, that:

          (i)   any Interest Period that otherwise would end on a day that is
     not a Business Day shall, subject to clause (iii) below, be extended to the
     next Business Day, unless such Business Day falls in another calendar
     month, in which case such Interest Period shall end on the next preceding
     Business Day;

          (ii)  any Interest Period that begins on the last Business Day of a
     calendar month (or on a day for which there is no numerically corresponding
     day in the calendar month at the end of such Interest Period) shall,
     subject to clause (iii) below, end on the last Business Day of a calendar
     month; and

          (iii) any Interest Period that otherwise would end after the
     Commitment Termination Date shall end on such Commitment Termination Date.

     "Interest Rate Protection Agreement" means any interest rate swap
agreement, interest rate cap agreement or similar hedging arrangement used by a
Person to fix or cap a floating rate of interest on Indebtedness to a negotiated
maximum rate or amount.

     "Investments" has the meaning assigned in Section 7.02(d).

     "L/C Issuer" means The Bank of New York, acting in the capacity of issuer
of Letters of Credit.

     "L/C Obligations" means, with respect to any Lender at any date of
determination, the sum of (i) such Lender's participating share of the maximum
aggregate amount which is or at any time thereafter may become available for
drawings under all Letters of Credit then outstanding and (ii) the aggregate
amount such Lender is obligated to fund or has funded to the L/C Issuer as a
result of such Lender's participating share in all drawings under Letters of
Credit honored by the L/C Issuer and not yet reimbursed by the Borrower;
provided that the L/C Issuer's participating share of such aggregate amounts
shall be equal to the portions of such undrawn amounts in which the other
Lenders have not acquired participating interests, or the portions of such
drawings which the other Lenders are not obligated to fund pursuant to Section
2.06.

     "L/C Request" means a request by the Borrower for a Letter of Credit, which
shall (i) specify (A) the requested Borrowing Date and (B) the aggregate amount
of the L/C Obligations with respect to the requested Letter of Credit, (ii)
certify that, after issuance of the requested Letter of Credit, (A) the
aggregate amount of the L/C Obligations of all the Lenders then outstanding will
not exceed $25,000,000, and (B) the
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sum of the aggregate amount of the L/C Obligations of all the Lenders then
outstanding and the aggregate amount of the Loans of all the Lenders then
outstanding will not exceed the Total Commitment then in effect and (iii) be
accompanied by such application and agreement for letter of credit, and such
other documents, as the L/C Issuer may reasonably specify to the Borrower from
time to time, all in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the L/C
Issuer.

     "Lenders" has the meaning assigned in the preamble and includes the Swing
Line Lender, as applicable.



     "Letter of Credit" has the meaning assigned in Section 2.06(a).

     "Letter of Credit Fees" has the meaning assigned in Section 3.07(b).

     "LIBOR" means, with respect to any Interest Period, the rate per annum
determined by the Administrative Agent to be the offered rate for dollar
deposits with a term comparable to such Interest Period that appears on the
display designated as Page 3750 on the Dow Jones Telerate Service (or such other
page as may replace such page on such service, or on another service designated
by the British Bankers' Association, for the purpose of displaying the rates at
which dollar deposits are offered by leading banks in the London interbank
deposit market) at approximately 11:00 A.M., London time, on the second Business
Day preceding the first day of such Interest Period. If such rate does not
appear on such page, "LIBOR" shall mean the arithmetic mean (rounded, if
necessary, to the next higher 1/16 of 1%) of the respective rates of interest
communicated by the LIBOR Reference Banks to the Administrative Agent as the
rate at which U.S. dollar deposits are offered to the LIBOR Reference Banks by
leading banks in the London interbank deposit market at approximately 11:00
A.M., London time, on the second Business Day preceding the first day of such
Interest Period in an amount substantially equal to the respective LIBOR
Reference Amounts for a term equal to such Interest Period.

     "LIBOR Reference Amount" means, with respect to any LIBOR Reference Bank
and Interest Period, the amount of the Eurodollar Loan of the Lender which is,
or is affiliated with, such LIBOR Reference Bank, scheduled to be outstanding
during that Interest Period without taking into account any assignment or
participation and rounded up to the nearest integral multiple of $1,000,000.

     "LIBOR Reference Bank" means each of The Bank of New York, U.S. Bank
National Association, Harris Trust and Savings Bank and JPMorgan Chase Bank;
provided that if any such LIBOR Reference Bank assigns its Commitment or all its
Loans to an unaffiliated institution, such Person shall be replaced as a LIBOR
Reference Bank by the Administrative Agent's appointment, in consultation with
the Borrower and with the consent of the Required Lenders, of another bank which
is a Lender (or an Affiliate of a Lender).

     "Lien" means, with respect to any asset of a Person, (i) any mortgage, deed
of trust, lien, pledge, encumbrance, charge or security interest in or on such
asset, (ii) the interest of a vendor or lessor under any conditional sale
agreement, capital lease or title
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retention agreement relating to such asset, and (iii) in the case of securities,
any purchase option, call or similar right of any other Person with respect to
such securities.

     "Like-Kind Exchange" means a transaction that qualifies for non-recognition
treatment as a like-kind exchange pursuant to Section 1031 of the Code and the
regulations promulgated thereunder, provided that (i) the Fair Market Value of
the assets or Properties received must be equal to or greater than the Fair
Market Value of the assets or Properties transferred and (ii) no single
Like-Kind Exchange transaction may transfer assets or Properties of Fair Market
Value greater than $25,000,000. For the avoidance of doubt, the appropriate
certification of the "Fair Market Value of assets or Properties received"
required under the second sentence of the definition of Fair Market Value shall
be made using the book value to be recorded on the books of the Borrower or its
Subsidiary after the completion of the transaction.

     "Loans" means, collectively, the Revolving Credit Loans and the Swing Line
Loans outstanding hereunder from time to time.

     "Margin Regulations" means, collectively, Regulations G, T, U and X of the
Federal Reserve Board.

     "Material Adverse Effect" means (i) any material and adverse effect on the
consolidated business, properties, condition (financial or otherwise) or
operations, present or prospective, of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, (ii)
any material and adverse effect on the ability of the Borrower timely to perform
any of its material obligations, or of the Lenders to exercise any remedy, under
any Credit Document or (iii) any adverse effect on the legality, validity,
binding nature or enforceability of any Credit Document.



     "Material Plan" has the meaning assigned in Section 8.01(j).

     "Measurement Date" means any of the dates specified in Section 7.01(n).

     "Multiemployer Plan" means a multiemployer plan as defined in Section
4001(a)(3) of ERISA to which any member of the ERISA Group is making or accruing
an obligation to make contributions or has within the preceding five plan years
made or accrued contributions.

     "Net Worth" means, as of any date of determination, the total consolidated
stockholders' equity (determined without duplication) of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries at such date.

     "New Lender Supplement" has the meaning assigned in Section 2.07(b).

     "Notes" means, collectively, the Revolving Credit Notes and the Swing Line
Note.

     "Outstanding L/Cs" means the outstanding letters of credit under the
Existing Credit Agreement listed on Schedule 1.01(c).

     "Participant" has the meaning assigned in Section 10.02.
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     "PBGC" means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation.

     "Pension Plan" means a Plan that (i) is an employee pension benefit plan,
as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA (other than a Multiemployer Plan) and (ii)
is subject to the provisions of Title IV of ERISA or is subject to the minimum
funding standards under Section 412 of the Code.

     "Permitted Liens" has the meaning assigned in Section 7.02(b).

     "Person" means any individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, joint
venture, limited liability company, trust, unincorporated organization,
association, corporation, institution, public benefit corporation, entity or
government (whether federal, state, county, city, municipal or otherwise,
including any instrumentality, division, agency, body or department thereof).

     "Plan" means an employee benefit plan as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA
(other than a Multiemployer Plan) which is maintained or contributed to by the
Borrower or any member of the ERISA Group.

     "Prescribed Forms" has the meaning assigned in Section 4.04(a)(ii).

     "Pro Rata Share" means, with respect to any Lender at any time of
determination, the proportion of such Lender's Commitment to the Total
Commitment then in effect or, after the Commitment Termination Date, the
proportion of such Lender's Loans and L/C Obligations to the aggregate amount of
Loans and L/C Obligations then outstanding.

     "Property" means any interest in any kind of property or asset, whether
real, personal or mixed, or tangible or intangible, whether now owned or
hereafter acquired.

     "Rating Event" means the date upon which the Borrower delivers to the
Administrative Agent a certificate signed by the Chief Financial Officer or
Treasurer of the Borrower together with evidence that at least two of the three
major rating agencies have granted the senior unsecured debt of the Borrower an
investment grade rating. For the avoidance of doubt, the three major rating
agencies and their investment grade ratings are:

     Standard & Poor's                      BBB- or higher
     Moody's                                Baa3 or higher
     Fitch                                  BBB- or higher

     "Required Lenders" means, at any date of determination, Lenders having at
least 51% of the Total Commitment then in effect or, if the Total Commitment has
been cancelled or terminated, holding at least 51% of the aggregate unpaid
principal amount of the Loans then outstanding; provided that, to the extent
there is more than one Lender, Required Lenders shall include at least two
Lenders.
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                  "Responsible Officer" means the chief executive officer,
         president, chief financial officer, chief accounting officer, treasurer
         or any vice president, senior vice president or executive vice
         president of the Borrower.

                  "Revolving Credit Loans" means, collectively, the loans
         outstanding pursuant to Section 2.01 from time to time.

                  "Revolving Credit Notes" means, collectively, promissory notes
         of the Borrower, issued in accordance with Section 10.01(d), in order
         to evidence Revolving Credit Loans and substantially in the form of
         Exhibit C-1.

                  "Revolving Credit Request" means a request by the Borrower for
         Revolving Credit Loans, which shall specify (i) the requested Borrowing
         Date, (ii) the aggregate amount of such Revolving Credit Loans, (iii)
         whether such Revolving Credit Loans are to bear interest initially as
         ABR Loans or Eurodollar Loans and (iv) if applicable, the initial
         Interest Period therefor.

                  "SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

                  "Sole Lead Arranger" means BNY Capital Markets, Inc.

                  "Subsidiary" means, at any time and with respect to any
         Person, any other Person the shares of stock or other ownership
         interests of which having ordinary voting power to elect a majority of
         the board of directors or other matters of such Person are at the time
         owned, or the management or policies of which is otherwise at the time
         controlled, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries
         (including other Subsidiaries) or both, by such first Person. Unless
         otherwise qualified or the context indicates clearly to the contrary,
         all references to a "Subsidiary" or "Subsidiaries" in this Agreement
         refer to a Subsidiary or Subsidiaries of the Borrower.

                  "Subsidiary Guaranty" means a Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement,
         dated as of the date hereof, to be entered into in substantially the
         form of the Existing Subsidiary Guaranty.

                  "Supplemental Credit Documents" means, collectively, Interest
         Rate Protection Agreements, letters of credit and other extensions of
         credit and similar instruments entered into between The Bank of New
         York, any Lender or any of their Affiliates and one or more of the
         Borrowers or its Subsidiaries in connection with the transactions
         contemplated by the other Credit Documents.

                  "Swing Line Lender" means The Bank of New York, acting in the
         capacity of Lender of Swing Line Loans hereunder.

                  "Swing Line Loans" means, collectively, the loans outstanding
         pursuant to Section 2.02 from time to time.

                  "Swing Line Note" means a promissory note of the Borrower,
         issued in accordance with Section 10.01(d), in order to evidence a
         Swing Line Loan and substantially in the form of Exhibit C-2.
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                  "Swing Line Maturity Date" means, with respect to any Swing
         Line Loan, the Business Day set forth in the relevant Swing Line
         Request as the date upon which such Swing Line Loan matures; provided
         that such date shall be no later than the seventh calendar day
         following the relevant Borrowing Date.

                  "Swing Line Request" means a request by the Borrower for a
         Swing Line Loan, which shall specify (i) the requested Borrowing Date,
         (ii) the requested date of maturity and (iii) the amount of such Swing
         Line Loan.



                  "Taxes" has the meaning assigned to such term in Section
         4.04(a).

                  "Termination Agreement" has the meaning assigned in Section
         2.08(a).

                  "Total Commitment" means, on any day, the aggregate Commitment
         of all the Lenders on such day.

                  "Unfunded Vested Liabilities" means, with respect to any Plan
         at any time, the amount (if any) by which (i) the present value of all
         vested nonforfeitable accrued benefits under such Plan exceeds (ii) the
         fair market value of all Plan assets allocable to such benefits, all
         determined as of the then most recent valuation date for such Plan, but
         only to the extent that such excess represents a potential liability of
         a member of the ERISA Group to the PBGC or the Plan under Title IV of
         ERISA.

                  "U.S. Subsidiary" means a Subsidiary of the Borrower which, as
         of the date hereof, exists and is organized under the laws of, and of
         which the principal place of business is located in, any state in the
         United States of America.

                  "Welfare Plan" means a "welfare plan", as defined in Section
         3(1) of ERISA.

                  "Wholly Owned Subsidiary" means, at any time and with respect
         to any Person, a Subsidiary, all the shares of stock of all classes of
         which (other than directors' qualifying shares) or other ownership
         interests at the time are owned directly or indirectly by such Person
         and/or one or more other Wholly Owned Subsidiaries of such Person.

                                   ARTICLE II

                               The Credit Facility

         Section 2.02 Revolving Credit Loans; Borrowing Procedure. (a) Until the
Commitment Termination Date, subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, each of the Lenders, severally and not jointly with the other
Lenders, agrees to make Revolving Credit Loans in dollars to the Borrower in an
aggregate principal amount at any one time outstanding not to exceed such
Lender's Commitment. Revolving Credit Loans shall be made on any Borrowing Date
only (i) in the minimum aggregate principal amount of (A) in the case of
Eurodollar Loans, $5,000,000 or integral multiples of $1,000,000 in excess
thereof or (B) in the case of ABR Loans, $1,000,000 or integral multiples of
$500,000 in excess thereof (provided that ABR Loans may always be borrowed in
the aggregate amount of the Available Commitment) and (ii) when taken together
with all Loans and L/C Obligations then outstanding in a maximum aggregate
principal
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amount not exceeding the Available Commitment (after giving effect to any
repayments or prepayments and any other borrowings of Loans on such Borrowing
Date). The Available Commitment may be utilized by the Borrower to obtain
Letters of Credit in accordance with Section 2.06.

     (a)  In order to borrow Revolving Credit Loans, the Borrower shall give a
Revolving Credit Request to the Administrative Agent, by telephone, telex or
telecopy or in writing, not later than 12:00 P.M. (noon) (if by telephone, to be
so confirmed in substantially the form of Exhibit A-1 not later than 2:00 P.M.),
New York time, (i) on the Borrowing Date for ABR Loans and (ii) on the third
Business Day before the Borrowing Date for Eurodollar Loans. Upon receipt, the
Administrative Agent forthwith shall give notice to each Lender of the substance
of the Revolving Credit Request. With respect to any Borrowing Date, the
Borrower may only deliver a single Revolving Credit Request to the
Administrative Agent. Not later than 3:00 P.M., New York time, on the Borrowing
Date, each Lender shall make available to the Administrative Agent such Lender's
Pro Rata Share of the requested Revolving Credit Loans in funds immediately
available at the Administrative Agent's office specified pursuant to Section
11.07(a). Subject to satisfaction, or waiver by all of the Lenders, of each of
the applicable conditions precedent contained in Article VI, on the Borrowing



Date the Administrative Agent shall make available, in like funds, to the
Borrower the amounts received by the Administrative Agent from the Lenders.

     Section 2.02  Swing Line Loans; Borrowing Procedure. (a) Until the
Commitment Termination Date, subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, the Swing Line Lender may, at its option, make one or more Swing Line
Loans in dollars to the Borrower in an aggregate principal amount at any one
time outstanding not to exceed $5,000,000. Swing Line Loans, if made, shall be
made on any Borrowing Date only (i) in the minimum aggregate principal amount of
$250,000 or integral multiples of $100,000 in excess thereof and (ii) when taken
together with all other Loans and L/C Obligations then outstanding, in a maximum
aggregate principal amount not exceeding the Available Commitment (after giving
effect to any repayments or prepayments and any other borrowings of Loans on
such Borrowing Date). Each Swing Line Loan shall mature on the Swing Line
Maturity Date.

     (b)  The Borrower may request a Swing Line Loan by delivering a Swing Line
Request to the Administrative Agent by telephone, telex or telecopy or in
writing, not later than 2:00 P.M. (if by telephone, to be so confirmed in
substantially the form of Exhibit A-2 not later than 3:00 P.M.), New York time
on any Borrowing Date. With respect to any Borrowing Date, the Borrower may
deliver only a single Swing Line Request to the Administrative Agent. Any Swing
Line Request, once delivered to the Administrative Agent in accordance with this
Agreement, shall be irrevocable. On the Borrowing Date, if the Swing Line Lender
elects to make the requested Swing Line Loan, the Swing Line Lender shall make
available to the Administrative Agent the requested Swing Line Loan in funds
immediately available at the Administrative Agent's office specified pursuant to
Section 11.07(a). Subject to satisfaction, or waiver by the Swing Line Lender,
of each of the applicable conditions precedent contained in Article VI and to
the Swing Line Lender's election to make the requested Swing Line Loan, on the
Borrowing Date the Administrative Agent shall make available, in like funds, to
the Borrower the amounts received by the Administrative Agent from the Swing
Line Lender.

     (c)  Immediately upon the making of each Swing Line Loan, each Lender other
than the Swing Line Lender shall be deemed to, and hereby agrees to, have
irrevocably and unconditionally purchased from the Swing Line Lender a
participation in such Swing Line Loan
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in an amount equal to such Lender's Pro Rata Share of the principal amount
thereof. If the Swing Line Lender notifies each such other Lender by not later
than 4:30 P.M., New York time, on a Business Day that the Swing Line Lender
wishes the Lenders to fund their participation interests in a Swing Line Loan,
each such other Lender shall make available to the Administrative Agent in
immediately available funds by Fedwire or, in the case of transfers from an
account maintained at The Bank of New York, SWIFT transfer, the amount of its
respective participation in such Swing Line Loan by not later than 5:30 P.M.,
New York time, on such day (which amount the Administrative Agent shall promptly
remit to the Swing Line Lender). To the extent that the Swing Line Lender has
notified a Lender and such Lender has not funded its participation in any such
Swing Line Loan, the amount of such participation shall be deemed, for purposes
of determining the Required Lenders and distributions by the Administrative
Agent to the Lenders of payments of principal and interest received from the
Borrower, to be subtracted from such Lender's participation therein and added to
the Swing Line Lender's participation therein. In the event that any Lender
fails to make available to the Administrative Agent such Lender's Pro Rata Share
of the requested Swing Line Loan as provided above, the Swing Line Lender shall
be entitled to recover such amount on demand from such Lender, and together with
interest thereon at a rate per annum equal to the interest rate provided for ABR
Loans in Section 3.02. The Administrative Agent shall distribute to each other
Lender which has paid all amounts payable by it under this Section 2.02(c) with
respect to any Swing Line Loans such other Lender's Pro Rata Share of all
payments received by the Administrative Agent from the Borrower thereunder with
respect to a period for which such other Lender has funded its participation,
provided, however, that, in the event such payment received by the
Administrative Agent is required to be returned, such Lender will promptly
return to the Administrative Agent any portion thereof previously distributed to
it by the Administrative Agent.

     (d)  As among the Swing Line Lender and the Lenders, and without limiting
the obligations of the Lenders to make Loans to the Borrower or any of the



conditions precedent to the making of such Loans, each Lender's obligations
pursuant to Section 2.02(c) shall be absolute and unconditional and shall not be
affected by any circumstance (except as set forth below in this Section
2.02(d)), including (i) any set-off, claim, counterclaim, right of recoupment,
defense or other right which such Lender or the Borrower may have against the
Swing Line Lender, the Administrative Agent, the Borrower or any other Person
for any reason whatsoever; (ii) the occurrence or continuance of a Default or
Event of Default or (except to the extent that (A) the Swing Line Lender made
the subject Swing Line Loan at a time when an officer of the Swing Line Lender
involved in the administration of this Agreement had actual knowledge that one
or more of the conditions specified in Section 6.01 or 6.02 had not been
satisfied in any material respect and (B) such condition is not satisfied at the
time the Swing Line Lender makes a Swing Line Loan or directs the Lenders to
purchase participations pursuant to subsection (c) of this Section 2.02) the
failure to satisfy any of the other conditions specified in Sections 6.01 and
6.02; (iii) any breach of any Credit Document by any Person other than the Swing
Line Lender; (iv) the termination or reduction of such Lender's Commitment
pursuant to Section 2.03 or the expiration of such Lender's Commitment, provided
that the relevant Swing Line Loan was made prior to such termination, reduction
or expiration.

     Section 2.04  Termination and Reduction of Commitments. The Borrower may
terminate the Total Commitment, or reduce the amount thereof, by (a) giving
written notice to the Administrative Agent, not later than 5:00 P.M., New York
time, on the third Business Day prior to the date of termination or reduction
and (b) paying the amount of the Commitment Fee and Letter of Credit Fees
accrued through such date of termination or reduction. Reductions of the
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Total Commitment shall be in the amount of $5,000,000 or in integral multiples
of $1,000,000 in excess thereof (or, if the amount of the Available Commitment
is less than $5,000,000, then all of such lesser amount), but shall not exceed
the Available Commitment in effect immediately before giving effect to such
reduction. Any termination, and all reductions, of the Total Commitment shall be
permanent.

     Section 2.05  Repayment. Revolving Credit Loans shall be repaid, together
with all accrued and unpaid interest thereon, on the Commitment Termination
Date. Swing Line Loans shall be repaid, together with all accrued and unpaid
interest thereon, on the earlier to occur of (i) the Swing Line Maturity Date
and (ii) the Commitment Termination Date.

     Section 2.06  Prepayment. (a) The Borrower may prepay Loans bearing
interest on the same basis and having the same Interest Periods, if any, by
giving notice to the Administrative Agent, by telephone, telex, telecopy or in
writing not later than 12:00 P.M. (if by telephone, to be so confirmed not later
than 2:00 P.M.), New York time, (i) on the third Business Day, in the case of
Eurodollar Loans, or (ii) on the Business Day in the case of ABR Loans,
preceding the proposed date of prepayment. Each such prepayment shall be in an
aggregate principal amount of $5,000,000 or in integral multiples of $1,000,000
in excess thereof (or, if the aggregate amount of outstanding Loans is less than
$5,000,000, then all of such lesser amount), together with accrued interest on
the principal being prepaid to the date of prepayment and, in the case of
Eurodollar Loans, the amounts required by Section 4.03. Subject to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, prepaid Loans may be reborrowed to the extent of
the Available Commitment.

     (b)  In the event that the Borrower or any Subsidiary shall issue equity
(whether through public offerings or otherwise, except for issuances of common
stock to employees pursuant to employee stock option plans or similar employee
benefit plans adopted in the ordinary course of business), then not later than
the close of business on the third Business Day thereafter, the Borrower shall
prepay Loans in an amount equal to the lesser of (i) the net cash proceeds, if
any, of such issuance and (ii) the aggregate principal amount of Loans then
outstanding.

     (c)  The Borrower shall prepay Loans, if necessary, so that the aggregate
amount of Loans and L/C Obligations at any time outstanding shall not exceed the
Total Commitment then in effect.

     (d)  If, pursuant to (i) any casualty or other damage to any assets or
Property of the Borrower or any Subsidiaries or (ii) any action or proceeding



for the taking of any assets or Property or any part thereof or interest therein
under power of eminent domain, by condemnation or similar proceeding, the
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries receive any monetary proceeds (whether in
the form of insurance proceeds, condemnation award or otherwise), the Borrower
shall, within three Business Days of the receipt of such proceeds, prepay Loans
and L/C Obligations in an amount equal to the after-tax net proceeds in excess
of any amounts that Borrower reasonably determines will be used to replace or
restore such assets or Property.

     (e)  If the Borrower or any Subsidiary sells, transfers, leases or
otherwise disposes of any assets or Property (subject to Section 7.02(a)),
including any disposition of assets or Property as part of a sale and leaseback
transaction, other than sales, transfers, leases or other dispositions in the
ordinary course of business, then not later than the close of business on the
third Business
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Day after the consummation of any such transaction, the Borrower shall prepay
Loans and L/C Obligations in an amount equal to 100% of the after-tax net cash
proceeds of such transaction.

     Section 2.07  Letters of Credit.

     (a)  Letters of Credit. Prior to the Commitment Termination Date, and
subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, from time to time the
Borrower may request that the L/C Issuer issue under this Agreement, and the L/C
Issuer shall, upon such request of the Borrower and upon the satisfaction or
waiver of each of the conditions contained in Article VI applicable thereto,
issue for the account of the Borrower, one or more nontransferable standby
letters of credit (each, a "Letter of Credit") in the L/C Issuer's
then-customary form; provided that the L/C Issuer shall not issue any Letter of
Credit: (i) if, after giving effect to such issuance, the sum of the aggregate
amount of the L/C Obligations of all the Lenders then outstanding and the
aggregate amount of Loans of all the Lenders then outstanding would exceed the
Total Commitment then in effect; (ii) having a stated amount of less than
$10,000; (iii) having an expiration date later than the Business Day four
Business Days prior to the Commitment Termination Date; or (iv) if, after giving
effect to such issuance, the aggregate amount of L/C Obligations of all the
Lenders then outstanding would exceed $25,000,000.

     (b)  Procedure for Obtaining Letter of Credit. The Borrower may request
that the L/C Issuer issue a Letter of Credit pursuant to Section 2.06(a) by
giving a L/C Request to the Administrative Agent in writing not later than 11:00
A.M., New York time, on the fifth Business Day prior to the proposed date of
issuance of the Letter of Credit. Upon receipt of any L/C Request, the
Administrative Agent shall forthwith give notice to each Lender of the substance
thereof. On the date specified by the Borrower in such notice and upon
fulfillment of the applicable conditions set forth in this Section 2.06 and
Article VI or the waiver thereof by Lenders, the L/C Issuer will issue such
Letter of Credit in the form specified in such L/C Request.

     (c)  Participation by Lenders. Immediately upon the issuance of a Letter of
Credit, each Lender other than the L/C Issuer shall be deemed to, and hereby
agrees to, have irrevocably and unconditionally purchased from the L/C Issuer a
participation in such Letter of Credit and each drawing thereunder in an amount
equal to such Lender's Pro Rata Share of the maximum amount which is or at any
time may become available to be drawn thereunder.

     (d)  Drawings and Reimbursement. (i) In the event of any request for a
drawing under any Letter of Credit by the beneficiary thereof, the L/C Issuer
shall notify the Borrower and the Administrative Agent as promptly as
practicable following receipt of such request, and the Borrower shall reimburse
the L/C Issuer on or prior to the third Business Day after the day on which such
drawing is honored in an amount of immediately available funds equal to the
amount of such drawing.

          (ii) If the Borrower shall fail to immediately reimburse the L/C
     Issuer in an amount equal to the amount of any drawing honored by the L/C
     Issuer under a Letter of Credit, then the L/C Issuer shall promptly notify
     each Lender of the unreimbursed amount of such drawing and of such Lender's
     respective participation therein. Not later than 2:00 P.M., New York time,
     on the Business Day after the date notified by the L/C Issuer or if the



     Lenders are notified by the L/C Issuer prior to 11:00 A.M., New York time,
     on the date so notified, each Lender shall make available to the L/C Issuer
     in immediately available funds at the office of the L/C Issuer in The City
     of New York an
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     amount equal to its respective participation. For so long as any Lender
     fails so to fund its participation in any such Letter of Credit, the amount
     of such participation shall be deemed, for purposes of determining the
     Required Lenders, to be subtracted from such Lender's L/C Obligations and
     added to the L/C Issuer's L/C Obligations. If any Lender fails to make
     available to the L/C Issuer on such Business Day the amount of such
     Lender's participation in such Letter of Credit as provided in this Section
     2.06(d), then the L/C Issuer shall be entitled to recover such amount on
     demand from such Lender, together with interest thereon at a rate per annum
     equal to (A) from (and including) such Business Day to (and including) the
     third Business Day thereafter, the Federal Funds Rate, and (B) from (but
     excluding) such third Business Day, the sum of 2% and the Federal Funds
     Rate. The L/C Issuer shall distribute to each Lender that has paid all
     amounts payable by it under this Section 2.06 with respect to any Letter of
     Credit such Lender's Pro Rata Share of all payments received by the L/C
     Issuer from the Borrower in reimbursement of drawings honored by the L/C
     Issuer under such Letter of Credit when such payments are received.

          (iii) The obligation of the Borrower to reimburse the L/C Issuer for
     drawings made under the Letters of Credit and the obligations of the
     Lenders under Section 2.06(d)(ii) shall be unconditional and irrevocable
     and shall be paid strictly in accordance with the terms of the Credit
     Documents under all circumstances, including the following circumstances:

               (A) any lack of validity or enforceability of any Letter of
          Credit;

               (B) the existence of any claim, set-off, defense or other right
          which the Borrower or any Affiliate of the Borrower may have at any
          time against a beneficiary or any transferee of any Letter of Credit
          (or any Persons for whom any such beneficiary or transferee may be
          acting), the L/C Issuer, any Lender or any other Person, whether in
          connection with any Credit Document, any transaction contemplated
          thereby or any unrelated transaction;

               (C) any draft, demand, certificate or any other document
          presented under any Letter of Credit proving to be forged, fraudulent,
          invalid or insufficient in any respect or any statement therein being
          untrue or inaccurate in any respect;

               (D) payment by the L/C Issuer under any Letter of Credit against
          presentation of a demand, draft or certificate or other document that
          does not comply with the terms of the Credit Documents;

               (E) any other circumstance or happening whatsoever, which is
          similar to any of the foregoing; or

               (F) the fact that a Default or Event of Default shall have
          occurred.

     (e)  Security Deposit. If a Default or Event of Default shall have occurred
and be continuing, the L/C Issuer may require the deposit of funds in an
interest-bearing account as agreed to between the Administrative Agent, the L/C
Issuer and the Borrower to secure payment to the beneficiary of any outstanding
Letter of Credit. Any funds so deposited shall be paid to the beneficiary of
such Letter of Credit if all conditions to such payment are satisfied, or
returned to
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the L/C Issuer for distribution to the Lenders (or, if all obligations under
this Agreement shall have been indefeasibly paid in full, to the Borrower) if no
payment to the beneficiary has been made and the final date available for
drawings under such Letter of Credit has passed. Each payment or deposit of



funds by the L/C Issuer as provided in this paragraph shall be treated for all
purposes of this Agreement as a drawing duly honored by the L/C Issuer under the
related Letter of Credit.

     Section 2.08  Total Commitment Increase. (a) The Borrower may, at any time
after the Effective Date and before the Commitment Termination Date, propose
that the $125,000,000 Total Commitment as of the Effective Date be increased to
an amount not greater than $175,000,000 by notice to the Administrative Agent,
provided that

               (i)   such notice shall specify the existing Lenders who are
          willing to provide an additional Commitment and/or specify any new
          financial institutions (to be agreed to by the Administrative Agent)
          willing to become Lenders under this Agreement and shall specify the
          date on which such increase is to be effective (which shall be a
          Business Day at least 5 Business Days after delivery of such notice
          and prior to the Commitment Termination Date),

               (ii)  no existing Lender party to this Agreement at the time of
          the request for an increase in the Total Commitment shall be required
          (or have any other obligation) to increase its Commitment to satisfy
          the proposed increase (although any Lender may opt to do so in its own
          discretion);

               (iii) a Total Commitment increase must be a minimum aggregate
          amount of $5,000,000 or in integral multiples of $5,000,000 in excess
          thereof (not to exceed a Total Commitment of $175,000,000);

               (iv)  the Borrower may not request a Total Commitment increase
          more than three (3) times between the Effective Date and the
          Commitment Termination Date; and

               (v)   such notice shall be accompanied by a certificate of a
          Responsible Officer of the Borrower certifying that the amount to
          which the Total Commitment will be increased does not exceed the
          limits established by the Board of Directors of the Borrower for this
          Agreement.

     (b)  A new lender may become party to this Agreement pursuant to Section
2.07(a) by executing a New Lender Supplement with the Borrower and the
Administrative Agent, in substantially the form of Exhibit G-1 (a "New Lender
Supplement"), whereupon such lender shall become a Lender for all purposes and
to the same extent as if originally a party to this Agreement. Effective as of
the date on which any such new lender becomes a Lender pursuant to the
provisions of this Section 2.07, the Total Commitment shall be increased by the
amount of such new Lender's Commitment.

     (C)  An existing Lender may increase its Commitment under this Agreement
pursuant to Section 2.07(a) by executing a Commitment Increase Supplement, in
substantially the form of Exhibit G-2 (a "Commitment Increase Supplement"),
whereupon such Lender shall be bound by and entitled to the benefits of this
Agreement with respect to the full amount of its Commitment as so increased.
Effective as of the date on which any such Lender so increases its Commitment,
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the Total Commitment shall be increased by the amount of such Lender's
additional Commitment.

     (d)  If on the effective date of any New Lender Supplement there is
outstanding an unpaid principal amount of Revolving Credit Loans, then the
Borrower shall borrow Revolving Credit Loans from such new Lender in an amount
determined by multiplying the amount of such new Lender's Commitment by a
fraction, the numerator of which shall be the then unpaid principal amount of
the Revolving Credit Loans and the denominator of which shall be the Total
Commitment giving effect to the new Lender's Commitment. If on the effective
date of any Commitment Increase Supplement there is outstanding an unpaid
principal amount of Revolving Credit Loans, then the Borrower shall borrow
Revolving Credit Loans from such increasing Lender in an amount equal to the
difference between (i) the outstanding amount of Revolving Credit Loans from
this Lender and (ii) the amount determined by multiplying the new increased
Commitment of the Lender by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the then
unpaid principal amount of the Revolving Credit Loans and the denominator of



which shall be the Total Commitment giving effect to the increasing Lender's new
Commitment. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if there are
Eurodollar Loans outstanding, such new Lender or increasing Lender will make
Loans (which shall constitute Eurodollar Loans for the purposes of this
Agreement) to the Borrower in its Pro Rata Share (in the case of an existing
Lender increasing its Commitment pursuant to Section 2.07(c), calculated based
solely on the amount of the increase in its Commitment) having Interest Periods
corresponding to the then unexpired portions of the respective Interest Periods
of such Eurodollar Loans and bearing interest at a rate equal to such rate
calculated pursuant to Section 3.03. The Borrower shall then prepay existing
Revolving Credit Loans down in an amount in aggregate equal to the amount
borrowed from the new Lenders and/or increasing Lenders so that, after giving
effect to the transactions described in this Section 2.07, the Revolving Credit
Loans are held ratably by the Lenders in accordance with the respective
Commitments of the Lenders. Any prepayment shall be accompanied by the payment
of all accrued and unpaid interest thereon and, in the case of Eurodollar Loans,
the amounts required in Section 4.03.

     (e)  The Administrative Agent shall advise the Lenders of any addition of a
new Lender or any increase in the Commitment of an existing Lender and of the
amount of any borrowing from it hereunder made simultaneously upon such addition
or increase.

     (f)  No Total Commitment increase shall be effective (notwithstanding the
date in the notice described in Section 2.07(a)(i)) until the requirements of
this Section have been satisfied, including the receipt by the Administrative
Agent of the documents referred to in Sections 2.07(b) and/or 2.07(c), as
applicable.

     Section 2.09  Termination of Existing Facility. (g) An appropriate
termination agreement, dated as of the date hereof (the "Termination
Agreement"), shall be executed and such Termination Agreement will, among other
things, (i) terminate the Existing Credit Agreement, Existing Security
Agreement, Existing Pledge Agreement, Existing Subsidiary Guaranty and Existing
Contribution Agreement and (ii) require the repayment of all Loans and L/C
Obligations under the Existing Facility, together with accrued interest and any
fees due at the termination of the Commitments under the Existing Facility. The
Administrative Agent under the Existing Facility acknowledges, on behalf of the
parties to the Credit Documents under the Existing Facility, that Loans (as
defined in this Agreement) drawn under this Agreement may be used simultaneously
to repay obligations under the Existing Facility. The "Existing Facility" means
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the Credit Documents as defined in the Existing Credit Agreement, and the rights
and obligations thereunder. Unless otherwise provided above, for purposes of
this Section 2.08(a) only, the terms "Loans," "L/C Obligations," "Commitments,"
"Administrative Agent," and "Credit Documents," have the meanings ascribed to
such terms in the Existing Facility.

     (a)  The Outstanding L/Cs under the Existing Facility shall be considered
Letters of Credit issued under this Agreement (as if they were issued by the L/C
Issuer as of the date hereof, and all provisions under this Agreement related to
Letters of Credit hereunder, including Section 2.06, shall apply) and shall
continue in accordance with their terms. The Borrower represents that there are
no unreimbursed obligations under the Outstanding L/Cs.

                                  ARTICLE III

                                Interest and Fees

     Section 3.01  Interest Rate Determination; Conversion. (a) Except to the
extent that the Borrower shall request, in a Revolving Credit Request or
Conversion Request, that a Revolving Credit Loan bear interest as a Eurodollar
Loan, each Loan shall bear interest as an ABR Loan. All Swing Line Loans shall
bear interest as ABR Loans and may not be converted into Eurodollar Loans.

     (b)  The Borrower may request, by giving a Conversion Request to the
Administrative Agent, by telephone, telex, telecopy or in writing not later than
12:00 noon, New York time (if by telephone, to be so confirmed in substantially
the form of Exhibit B not later than 2:00 P.M., New York time), on the third
Business Day prior to the requested Conversion Date, that all or portions of the
outstanding Revolving Credit Loans, in the aggregate principal amount of



$5,000,000 or in integral multiples of $1,000,000 in excess thereof (or, if the
aggregate principal amount of outstanding Loans is less than $5,000,000, then
all such lesser amount), bear interest from and after the Conversion Date as
either ABR Loans or Eurodollar Loans; provided, however, that during the
continuance of any Default or Event of Default that shall have occurred, no
Revolving Credit Loan (or portion thereof) may be converted into Eurodollar
Loans. Upon receipt, the Administrative Agent forthwith shall give notice to
each Lender of the substance of each Conversion Request. Upon payment by the
Borrower of the amounts, if any, required by Section 4.03, on the Conversion
Date the Revolving Credit Loans or portions thereof as to which the Conversion
Request was made shall commence to accrue interest in the manner selected by the
Borrower therein.

     Section 3.02  Interest on ABR Loans. Each ABR Loan shall bear interest from
the date made until the date repaid, or (if converted into a Eurodollar Loan) to
(but excluding) the first day of any relevant Interest Period, as the case may
be, payable in arrears on the last day of each calendar quarter of each year,
commencing with the first such date after the Effective Date, and on the date
such Loan is repaid, at a rate per annum equal to the sum of (a) the Alternate
Base Rate in effect from time to time and (b) the Applicable Margin.

     Section 3.03 Interest on Eurodollar Loans. (a) Each Eurodollar Loan shall
bear interest from the date made until the date repaid or converted to an ABR
Loan, payable in arrears, and with respect to Interest Periods of three months
or less, on the last day of such Interest Period, and with respect to Interest
Periods longer than three months, on the day which is three months
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after the commencement of such Interest Period and on the last day of such
Interest Period, at a rate per annum equal to the sum of (i) the Applicable
Margin, and (ii) LIBOR.

     (a)  Each Eurodollar Loan shall become an ABR Loan at the end of the
Interest Period therefor unless (i) there shall not have occurred and be
continuing a Default or Event of Default and (ii) not later than the third
Business Day prior to the last day of such Interest Period, the Borrower shall
have delivered to the Administrative Agent (x) an irrevocable written election
of the subsequent Interest Period therefor, in which case such Eurodollar Loan
shall remain outstanding as a Eurodollar Loan, or (y) a Conversion Request with
respect thereto, in which case such Eurodollar Loan shall be converted in
accordance with Section 3.01(b).

     (b)  If, during any period, a Lender shall be required to maintain reserves
against "eurocurrency liabilities" in accordance with Federal Reserve Board
Regulation D, the Borrower shall pay additional interest during such period on
each outstanding Eurodollar Loan of such Lender (contemporaneously with each
interest payment due thereon commencing with the first such payment due at least
two Business Days after receipt of the notice referred to in the next sentence)
at a rate per annum up to but not exceeding the marginal rate determined by the
following formula:

                                      LIBOR
                     ---------------------------------------- -- LIBOR
                        1 - Eurodollar Reserve Percentage

Each Lender shall promptly notify the Borrower, with a copy to the
Administrative Agent, upon becoming aware that the Borrower may be required to
make a payment of additional interest to such Lender. When requesting payment
pursuant to this Section 3.03(c), a Lender shall provide to the Borrower, with a
copy to the Administrative Agent, a certificate, signed by an officer of such
Lender setting forth, in reasonable detail, the basis of such claim, the amount
required to be paid by the Borrower to such Lender and the computations made by
such Lender to determine such amount. Absent manifest error, such certificate
shall be binding as to the amounts of additional interest owing in respect of
such Lender's Eurodollar Loans. Any Lender that gives notice under this Section
3.03(c) shall promptly withdraw such notice (by written notice of withdrawal
given to the Administrative Agent and the Borrower) whenever such Lender is no
longer required to maintain such reserves or the circumstances giving rise to
such notice shall otherwise cease.

     Section 3.04  Interest on Overdue Amounts. Anything herein to the contrary
notwithstanding, all overdue amounts hereunder, and, during the continuance of



any Event of Default that shall have occurred, each Loan, shall bear interest,
payable on demand, at a rate per annum equal to the sum of (i) 2.00% and (ii)
the rate then applicable, changing as and when such rate shall change, until, in
the case of Eurodollar Loans, the end of the current Interest Period therefor,
and thereafter the rate of interest applicable to ABR Loans.

     Section 3.05  Day Counts. Interest on ABR Loans shall be calculated on the
basis of (a) a 365-day, or, if applicable, a 366-day, year for the actual number
of days elapsed for so long as interest is determined pursuant to clause (i) of
the definition of "Alternate Base Rate" and (b) a 360-day year for the actual
number of days elapsed otherwise. Interest on all other Loans, and all fees
shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year for the actual number of days
elapsed.
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     Section 3.07 Maximum Interest Rate. (a) Nothing in this Agreement shall
require the Borrower to pay interest at a rate exceeding the maximum rate
permitted by applicable law. Neither this Section 3.06 nor Section 11.01 is
intended to limit the rate of interest payable for the account of any Lender to
the maximum rate permitted by the laws of the State of New York (or any other
applicable law) if a higher rate is permitted with respect to such Lender by
supervening provisions of U.S. federal law.

     (b) If the amount of interest payable for the account of any Lender on any
interest payment date in respect of the immediately preceding interest
computation period, computed pursuant to this Article III, would exceed the
maximum amount permitted by applicable law to be charged by such Lender, the
amount of interest payable for its account on such interest payment date shall
automatically be reduced to such maximum permissible amount.

     (c) If the amount of interest payable for the account of any Lender in
respect of any interest computation period is reduced pursuant to Section
3.06(b) and the amount of interest payable for its account in respect of any
subsequent interest computation period would be less than the maximum amount
permitted by law to be charged by such Lender, then the amount of interest
payable for its account in respect of such subsequent interest computation
period shall be automatically increased to such maximum permissible amount;
provided that at no time shall the aggregate amount by which interest paid for
the account of any Lender has been increased pursuant to this Section 3.06(c)
exceed the aggregate amount by which interest paid for its account has
theretofore been reduced pursuant to Section 3.06(b).

     Section 3.08 Fees.

     (a) Commitment Fee. The Borrower agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent,
for the respective pro rata accounts of the Lenders, on the last day of each
calendar quarter of each year, in arrears, commencing with the first such day
after the Effective Date, and on the Commitment Termination Date, a fee (the
"Commitment Fee") computed by multiplying (i) the average daily Available
Commitment over the last calendar quarter (or portion thereof since the date as
of which the last Commitment Fee was calculated), by (ii) 0.25% per annum. The
Commitment Fee will be calculated based upon the actual number of days elapsed
over a 360-day year. In the event that a Rating Event has occurred and is
continuing, the applicable per annum commitment fee percentage indicated above
will be reduced to 0.20% for all days after such Rating Event and during its
continuance.

     (b) Letter of Credit Fees. In lieu of any letter of credit commissions or
fees provided for in any letter of credit application (other than documentary
and processing charges referred to in clause (iv) below), the Borrower agrees to
pay to the L/C Issuer in funds immediately available at the office of the L/C
Issuer specified in Section 11.07(a) the following fees and other amounts with
respect to each outstanding Letter of Credit (collectively, the "Letter of
Credit Fees"):

         (i) an administrative fee equal to 0.100% per annum on the daily
     amount stated to be available from time to time for drawing under such
     Letter of Credit from (and including) the date of issuance until (but
     excluding) the expiration date of such Letter of Credit, payable to the L/C
     Issuer for its account in arrears on the last day of each calendar quarter,
     commencing on the first such date after the Borrowing Date, and on such
     expiration date;
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          (ii)  a letter of credit fee, at a rate per annum equal to the
     Applicable Margin from time to time in effect for Eurodollar Loans,
     calculated on a per annum basis (on the basis of actual number of days
     elapsed over a 360-day year) on the daily amount stated to be available
     from time to time for drawing under such Letter of Credit from (and
     including) the date of issuance until (but excluding) the expiration date
     of such Letter of Credit, payable to the L/C Issuer for the account of the
     Lenders in arrears on the last day of each calendar quarter, commencing on
     the first such date after the Borrowing Date, and on such expiration date;

          (iii) with respect to drawings made thereunder, interest, payable on
     demand to the L/C Issuer (if applicable, for the benefit of the Lenders
     that have funded a participation therein pursuant to Section 2.06(d)(ii)),
     on the amount paid by the L/C Issuer in respect of each such drawing from
     (and including) the date of the drawing to (but excluding) the date such
     amount is reimbursed by the Borrower, at a rate per annum equal to (A) from
     (and including) the date of such drawing to (and including) the third
     Business Day after the date of such drawing, the rate of interest then
     applicable to ABR Loans, changing as and when said rate shall change, and
     (B) from (but excluding) the third Business Day after the date of such
     drawing, the sum of (x) 2% and (y) the rate specified in clause (A); and

          (iv)  with respect to the issuance, amendment or transfer of such
     Letter of Credit and each drawing made thereunder, customary documentary
     and processing charges payable to the L/C Issuer in accordance with the L/C
     Issuer's standard schedule for such charges in effect at the time of such
     issuance, amendment, transfer or drawing, as the case may be.

Promptly upon receipt by the L/C Issuer of any amount described in clause (ii)
or (iii) of this Section 3.07(b), the L/C Issuer shall distribute to each Lender
that has paid all amounts payable by it under Section 2.06(d) such Lender's
ratable share of such amount. Amounts payable under clauses (i) and (iv) of this
Section 3.07(b) shall be retained by the L/C Issuer.

                                   ARTICLE IV

                            Disbursement and Payment

     Section 4.01 Disbursement. (a) Each Loan shall be made by the relevant
Lender from such Lender's branch or affiliate identified as its Applicable
Lending Office.

     (b) The failure of any Lender to make any Loan to be made by it on the
Borrowing Date therefor shall not relieve any other Lender of its obligation to
make its Loan or Loans on such date, but neither any Lender nor the
Administrative Agent shall be responsible for the failure of any other Lender to
make a Loan to be made by such other Lender.

     (c) The Administrative Agent may, but shall not be required to, advance on
behalf of any Lender the amount of such Lender's Loans to be made on a Borrowing
Date, unless such Lender shall have notified the Administrative Agent prior to
such Borrowing Date that it does not intend to make such Loans on such date. If
the Administrative Agent makes any such advance, the Administrative Agent shall
be entitled to recover the amount so advanced on demand from the
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Lender on whose behalf such advance was made and, if such Lender does not pay
the Administrative Agent the amount of such advance on demand, the Borrower
agrees promptly to repay such amount to the Administrative Agent. Until such
amount is repaid to the Administrative Agent by such Lender or the Borrower,
such advance shall be deemed for all purposes to be a Loan made on such
Borrowing Date by the Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent shall be
entitled to recover from the Lender or the Borrower, as the case may be,
interest on the amount advanced by it for each day from the Borrowing Date
therefor until repaid to the Administrative Agent, at a rate per annum equal to
the Federal Funds Rate until the third Business Day after the date of the
advance and, thereafter, at the rate per annum equal to the relevant rate on



Loans made on the relevant Borrowing Date.

     Section 4.02 Method and Time of Payments; Sharing among Lenders. (a) All
funds received by the Administrative Agent for the account of the Lenders in
respect of payments made by the Borrower under, or from any other Person on
account of, any Credit Document shall be distributed promptly by the
Administrative Agent among the Lenders, in like funds as received, ratably in
proportion to their respective interests therein. Each payment of the Commitment
Fee and each reduction of Commitments shall be apportioned among the Lenders in
proportion to each Lender's Pro Rata Share.

     (b) All payments by the Borrower hereunder shall be made without setoff or
counterclaim to the Administrative Agent, for its account or for the account of
the Lender or Lenders entitled thereto, as the case may be, in dollars and in
immediately available funds at the office of the Administrative Agent
theretofore designated in writing to the Borrower not later than 11:00 A.M., New
York time, on the date when due or, in the case of payments pursuant to Sections
3.04, 4.03, 4.04, 4.06 or payments otherwise specified as payable upon demand,
forthwith upon written demand therefor.

     (c) Whenever any payment from the Borrower shall be due on a day that is
not a Business Day, the date of payment thereof shall be extended to the next
succeeding Business Day. If the date for any payment of principal is extended by
operation of law or otherwise, interest thereon shall be payable for such
extended time.

     (d) Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from the
Borrower prior to the date on which any payment from the Borrower is due that
the Borrower will not make such payment in full, the Administrative Agent may
assume that the Borrower has made such payment in full to the Administrative
Agent on such date and the Administrative Agent may, in reliance upon such
assumption, but shall not be obligated to, cause to be distributed to each
Lender on such due date an amount equal to the amount then due to such Lender.
If and to the extent that the Borrower shall not have so made such payment, each
Lender shall repay to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand such amount
distributed to such Lender together with interest thereon, for each day from the
date such amount is distributed to such Lender until the date such Lender repays
such amount to the Administrative Agent, at the Federal Funds Rate.

     (e) If any Lender shall receive from the Borrower or any other Person any
amount owing under any Credit Document (whether received pursuant to the
exercise of any right of set-off, banker's lien, realization upon any security
held for or appropriated to such obligation or otherwise) other than in
proportion to such Lender's ratable share thereof, then such Lender shall
purchase from each other Lender a participating interest in so much of the other
Lenders' Loans as shall be necessary in order that each Lender shall share such
payment with each of the other
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Lenders in proportion to each Lender's ratable share; provided that nothing
herein contained shall obligate any Lender to apply any set-off or banker's lien
or collateral security permitted hereby first to the obligations of the Borrower
hereunder if the Borrower is obligated to such Lender pursuant to other loans or
notes. If any purchasing Lender shall be required to return any excess payment
received by it, such participation shall be rescinded and the purchase price
restored to the extent of such return, but without interest.

     Section 4.03 Compensation for Losses. (a) If (i) the Borrower prepays
Loans, or a Conversion Date occurs (except pursuant to Section 4.05), other than
on the last day of the relevant Interest Period, (ii) the Borrower revokes any
Borrowing Request, (iii) Loans (or portions thereof) are converted into ABR
Loans (except pursuant to Section 4.05) or (iv) Loans (or portions thereof)
shall become or be declared to be due prior to the Commitment Termination Date,
then the Borrower shall pay to each Lender an amount that will compensate such
Lender for any loss (other than lost profit) or premium or penalty incurred by
such Lender as a result of such prepayment, conversion, declaration or
revocation in respect of funds obtained for the purpose of making or maintaining
such Lenders' Loans, or any portion thereof. Such compensation shall include an
amount equal to the excess, if any, of (i) the amount of interest that would
have accrued on the amount so paid or prepaid, or not borrowed or converted, for
the period from the date of such payment or prepayment or conversion or failure
to borrow to the last day of such Interest Period (or, in the case of a failure



to borrow, the Interest Period that would have commenced on the expected
Borrowing Date) in each case at the applicable rate of interest for such Loan
(excluding, however, any margin included therein) over (ii) the amount of
interest (as reasonably determined by such Lender) that would have accrued on
such amount were it on deposit for a comparable period with leading banks in the
London interbank market or in the New York certificate of deposit market, as the
case may be.

     (b) If requested by the Borrower, in connection with a payment due pursuant
to this Section 4.03, a Lender shall provide to the Borrower, with a copy to the
Administrative Agent, a certificate setting forth in reasonable detail the
amount required to be paid by the Borrower to such Lender and the computations
made by such Lender to determine such amount. In the absence of manifest error,
such certificate shall be conclusive as to the amount required to be paid.

     Section 4.04 Withholding and Additional Costs.

          (a)     Withholding. Section 4.05 All payments under this Agreement
     and under the Notes (including payments of principal and interest) shall be
     payable to each Lender free and clear of any and all present and future
     taxes, levies, imposts, duties, deductions, withholdings, fees, liabilities
     and similar charges other than Excluded Taxes (collectively, "Taxes"). If
     any Taxes are required to be withheld or deducted from any amount payable
     under this Agreement, then the amount payable under this Agreement shall be
     increased to the amount which, after deduction from such increased amount
     of all Taxes required to be withheld or deducted therefrom, will yield to
     such Lender the amount stated to be payable under this Agreement. The
     Borrower shall also hold each Lender harmless and indemnify it for any
     stamp or other taxes with respect to the preparation, execution, delivery,
     recording, performance or enforcement of the Credit Documents (all of which
     shall be included within "Taxes"). If any of the Taxes specified in this
     Section 4.04(a) are paid by any Lender, the Borrower shall, upon demand of
     such Lender, promptly reimburse such Lender for such payments, together
     with any interest,
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     penalties and expenses incurred in connection therewith. The Borrower shall
     deliver to the Administrative Agent certificates or other valid vouchers
     for all Taxes or other charges deducted from or paid with respect to
     payments made by the Borrower hereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
     Borrower shall be entitled, to the extent required to do so by law, to
     deduct or withhold (and shall not be required to make payments as otherwise
     required by this Section 4.04 on account of such deductions or
     withholdings) income or other similar taxes imposed by the United States of
     America from interest, fees or other amounts payable hereunder for the
     account of any Lender other than a Lender (A) that is a U.S. Person for
     U.S. federal income tax purposes or (B) that has the Prescribed Forms on
     file with the Borrower for the applicable year to the extent deduction or
     withholding of such taxes is not required as a result of such filing of
     such Prescribed Forms; provided that, if the Borrower shall so deduct or
     withhold any such taxes, the Borrower shall provide a statement to the
     Administrative Agent and such Lender, setting forth the amount of such
     taxes so deducted or withheld, the applicable rate and any other
     information or documentation which such Lender may reasonably request for
     assisting such Lender to obtain any allowable credits or deductions for the
     taxes so deducted or withheld in the jurisdiction or jurisdictions in which
     such Lender is subject to tax.

          (ii) Each Lender that is not incorporated under the laws of the United
     States of America or a state thereof shall deliver to the Borrower and the
     Administrative Agent two duly completed copies of the appropriate and
     relevant United States Internal Revenue Service Form W-8 (or any successor
     form or forms), certifying in either case that such Lender is entitled to
     receive payments under this Agreement without deduction or withholding of
     any United States federal income taxes ("Prescribed Forms"). Each Lender
     that so delivers such Prescribed Forms further undertakes to deliver to the
     Borrower and the Administrative Agent two additional copies of such
     Prescribed Forms on or before the date that such Prescribed Forms expire or
     become obsolete or after the occurrence of any event requiring a change in
     the most recent Prescribed Forms so delivered by it, and such amendments
     thereto or extensions or renewals thereof as may be reasonably requested by
     the Borrower or the Administrative Agent, in each case certifying that such



     Lender is entitled to receive payments under this Agreement without
     deduction or withholding of any United States federal income taxes, unless
     an event (including without limitation any change in treaty, law or
     regulation) has occurred prior to the date on which any such delivery would
     otherwise be required which renders all such Prescribed Forms inapplicable
     or which would prevent such Lender from duly completing and delivering
     Prescribed Forms with respect to it and such Lender advises the Borrower
     and the Administrative Agent that it is not capable of receiving payments
     without any deduction or withholding of United States federal income tax.
     If any Lender that is not incorporated under the laws of the United States
     of America or a state thereof fails to comply with the provisions of this
     Section, the Borrower and/or the Administrative Agent, may, as required by
     law, deduct and withhold federal income tax payments from payments to such
     Lender under this Agreement.

     (b)  Additional Costs. Subject to Sections 4.04(c) and (d):

          (i)  Without duplication of any amounts payable described in Section
     3.03(c), 4.03 or 4.04(a) or 4.04(b)(ii), if any change in any law or
     regulation or in the interpretation thereof by any court or administrative
     or Governmental Authority charged
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     with the administration thereof, or the enactment of any law or regulation
     shall result in the imposition upon any Lender (or such Lender's Applicable
     Lending Office) of (1) any reserve, special deposit or similar requirement
     against any Lender's Commitment, Loans or L/C Obligations or (2) any other
     condition regarding this Agreement, its Commitment, Loans or L/C
     Obligations, and the result of any event referred to in clause (1) or (2)
     shall be to increase the cost of maintaining such Commitment, Loan or L/C
     Obligation (which increase in cost shall be calculated in accordance with
     such Lender's reasonable averaging and attribution methods) by an amount
     which such Lender deems to be material, then, upon demand by such Lender,
     the Borrower shall pay to such Lender an amount equal to such increase in
     cost; and

          (ii) Without duplication of any amounts payable described in Section
     3.03(c), 4.03, 4.04(a) or 4.04(b)(i), if any Lender shall have determined
     that the adoption of any applicable law, rule, regulation or guideline
     regarding capital adequacy, or any change therein, or any change in the
     interpretation or administration thereof by any Governmental Authority,
     central bank or comparable agency charged with the interpretation or
     administration thereof, (including any such adoption or change made prior
     to the date hereof but not effective until after the date hereof) or
     compliance by such Lender (or such Lender's Applicable Lending Office) with
     any request or directive regarding capital adequacy (whether or not having
     the force of law) of any such authority, central bank or comparable agency,
     has or would have the effect of reducing the rate of return on capital for
     such Lender (or such Lender's Applicable Lending Office) or any corporation
     controlling such Lender as a consequence of its obligations under this
     Agreement to a level below that which such Lender (or such Lender's
     Applicable Lending Office) or such corporation could have achieved but for
     such adoption, change or compliance (taking into consideration such
     Lender's (or such Lender's Applicable Lending Office) or such corporation's
     policies with respect to capital adequacy), then from time to time, upon
     demand by such Lender, then the Borrower shall pay to such Lender such
     additional amount or amounts as will compensate such Lender (or such
     Lender's Applicable Lending Office) or such corporation for such reduction.

     (c)  Lending Office Designations. Before making any demand for payment
pursuant to this Section 4.04, each Lender shall, if possible, designate a
different Applicable Lending Office if such designation will avoid the need for
giving such notice and will not, in the judgment of such Lender, be otherwise
disadvantageous to such Lender.

     (d)  Certificate, Etc. If requested by the Borrower, in connection with any
demand for payment pursuant to this Section 4.04, a Lender shall provide to the
Borrower, with a copy to the Administrative Agent, a certificate setting forth
in reasonable detail the basis for such demand, the amount required to be paid
by the Borrower to such Lender, the computations made by such Lender to
determine such amount and satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the next



sentence. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, no Lender shall have
the right to demand any payment or compensation under this Section 4.04 (i) with
respect to any period more than 90 days prior to the date it has made a demand
pursuant to this Section 4.04 or (ii) to the extent that such Lender determines
in good faith that the interest rate or margin on the relevant Loans
appropriately accounts for any increased cost or reduced rate of return. In the
absence of manifest error, the certificate referred to above shall be conclusive
as to the amount required to be paid.
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     Section 4.05 Impracticability. If at any time any Lender shall determine in
good faith (which determination shall be conclusive) that the making or
maintenance of all or any part of such Lender's Eurodollar Loans has been made
impracticable or unlawful because of compliance by such Lender in good faith
with any law or guideline or interpretation or administration thereof by any
Governmental Authority charged with the interpretation or administration thereof
or with any request or directive of such body (whether or not having the effect
of law) or because dollar deposits in the amount and requested maturity of such
Eurodollar Loans are not available to such Lender in the London eurodollar
interbank market, then the Administrative Agent, upon notice to it of such
determination by such Lender, shall promptly advise the other Lenders and the
Borrower thereof. Upon such date as shall be specified in such notice and until
such time as the Administrative Agent, upon notice to it by such Lender, shall
notify the Borrower and the other Lenders that the circumstances specified by it
in such notice no longer apply, (a) notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, such Eurodollar Loans shall, automatically and without requirement of
further notice, or any payment pursuant to Section 4.03 or 4.04, be converted to
ABR Loans and (b) the obligation of such Lender to make or continue Eurodollar
Loans shall be suspended, and, if the Borrower shall request in a Revolving
Credit Request or Conversion Request that the Lenders make Eurodollar Loans, the
Revolving Credit Loan requested so to be made by such Lender shall instead be
made as an ABR Loan.

     Section 4.06 Expenses; Indemnity. (a) The Borrower will (i) pay or
reimburse the Sole Lead Arranger and Administrative Agent for all reasonable
out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred in connection with the preparation and
execution of, and any amendment, supplement or modification to, this Agreement,
any other Credit Documents, and any other documents prepared in connection
herewith or therewith, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby and thereby, including, without limitation, the reasonable fees and
disbursements of Sullivan & Cromwell, counsel to the Administrative Agent; (ii)
pay or reimburse the Sole Lead Arranger, each Lender and the Administrative
Agent for all reasonable costs and expenses incurred in connection with the
enforcement or preservation of any rights under this Agreement, any other Credit
Documents, and any such other documents, including, without limitation, the
reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel to the Lenders and the Lenders; and
(iii) pay and reimburse (A) each Lender for any payments made by such Lender to
the Administrative Agent pursuant to Section 9.06 and (B) the Administrative
Agent for any and all liabilities, expenses or disbursements incurred by it
which are the subject of indemnification payments from the Lenders to the extent
that the Administrative Agent, for whatever reason, did not receive such
indemnification payments from any Lender or Lenders. The Borrower also agrees to
indemnify each Lender against any transfer taxes, documentary taxes, assessments
or charges made by any Governmental Authority by reason of the execution and
delivery of any Credit Document.

     (b) The Borrower will indemnify the Sole Lead Arranger, the Administrative
Agent and each of the Lenders and their respective directors, officers,
employees, agents and Affiliates (for purposes of this paragraph, each, an
"Indemnitee") against, and to hold each Indemnitee harmless from, any and all
claims, liabilities, damages, losses, costs, charges and expenses (including
reasonable fees and expenses of counsel) incurred by or asserted against any
Indemnitee arising out of, in any way connected with, or as a result of (i) the
execution or delivery of any Credit Document or any agreement or instrument
contemplated by any Credit Document, the performance by the parties thereto of
their respective obligations under any Credit Document or the consummation of
the transactions and the other transactions contemplated by any Credit Document,
(ii) the use of the proceeds of the Loans or (iii) any claim, litigation,
investigation or proceeding relating to any of the foregoing, whether or not any
Indemnitee is a
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party thereto; provided that such indemnity shall not, as to any Indemnitee, be
available to the extent that such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or
related expenses are determined by a court of competent jurisdiction by final
and nonappealable judgment to have resulted from the gross negligence or willful
misconduct of such Indemnitee; provided, further, that the Lenders will make
reasonable efforts to coordinate and to utilize the minimum number of law firms
or counsel reasonably necessary to conduct properly any litigation with respect
to which indemnity is sought under this Section 4.06(b).

     (c) The Borrower will indemnify the Sole Lead Arranger, the Administrative
Agent and the L/C Issuer and their respective directors, officers, employees,
agents and Affiliates (for purposes of this paragraph, each, an "Indemnitee")
against, and will hold each Indemnitee harmless from, any and all claims,
liabilities, damages, losses, costs, charges and expenses (including fees and
expenses of counsel) incurred by or asserted against any of them arising out of,
in any way connected with, or as a result of (i) the issuance of any Letter of
Credit or (ii) the failure of the L/C Issuer to honor a drawing under any Letter
of Credit as a result of any act or omission, whether rightful or wrongful, of
any Governmental Authority; provided that such indemnity shall not, as to any
such Indemnitee, be available to the extent that such losses, claims, damages,
liabilities or related expenses (i) are determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction by final and nonappealable judgment to have resulted from the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnitee or (ii) are attributable to
taxes, levies, imposts, duties, deductions, withholdings, fees, liabilities or
similar charges whether or not the Borrower is required to pay amounts with
respect thereto under this Agreement. As between the Borrower and the L/C
Issuer, the Borrower assumes all risks of the acts and omissions of, or misuse
of a Letter of Credit by, a beneficiary of such Letter of Credit. In furtherance
and not in limitation of the foregoing, no Indemnitee shall be responsible for
any of the following: (A) the form, validity, sufficiency, accuracy, genuineness
or legal effects of any documents submitted by any party in connection with the
request and application for and issuance of any Letter of Credit, even if it
should in fact prove to be in any or all respects invalid, insufficient,
inaccurate, fraudulent or forged; (B) the validity or sufficiency of any
instrument transferring or assigning or purporting to transfer or assign any
Letter of Credit or rights or benefits thereunder or proceeds thereof, in whole
or in part, which may prove to be invalid or ineffective for any reason
whatsoever; (C) any failure of a beneficiary of any Letter of Credit to comply
with any condition of drawing thereunder; (D) any errors, omissions,
interruptions or delays in transmission or delivery of any messages, by mail,
cable, telegraph, telex or otherwise, whether or not in cipher; (E) any error in
interpretation; (F) any loss or delay in the transmission or otherwise of any
document required in order to make a drawing under any Letter of Credit or of
the proceeds thereof; (G) any misapplication by a beneficiary of any Letter of
Credit of the proceeds of any drawing thereunder; or (H) any consequences
arising from or related to events or circumstances beyond the control of the L/C
Issuer, including any act or omission, whether rightful or wrongful, of any
Governmental Authority. In furtherance and not in limitation of the specific
provisions herein set forth, any action taken or omitted by the L/C Issuer under
or in connection with any Letter of Credit or related certificates, if taken or
omitted in good faith, shall not result in or give rise to any liability of any
Indemnitee to the Borrower. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, nothing in
this Section 4.06(c) shall relieve the L/C Issuer of any liability determined by
a court of competent jurisdiction by final and nonappealable judgment to have
resulted from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the L/C Issuer.

     (d) All amounts due under this Section 4.06 shall be payable in immediately
available funds upon written demand therefor.
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     Section 4.07 Replacement of Lenders. If no Default or Event of Default
shall have occurred and be continuing, the Borrower may, at any time, replace
any Lender that has requested the Borrower to pay amounts pursuant to Section
4.04 or whose obligation to make any Loans has been suspended pursuant to
Section 4.05 (each, an "Affected Lender"), by giving not less than 10 Business
Days' prior written notice to the Administrative Agent (which shall promptly
notify such Affected Lender and each other Lender), that it intends to replace
such Affected Lender with one or more lenders (including, but not limited to,
any other Lender under this Agreement) selected by the Borrower and reasonably



acceptable to the Administrative Agent, provided that such replacement Lender
shall also agree to become a replacement Lender. The method (whether by
assignment or otherwise) of and documentation for such replacement shall be
reasonably acceptable to the Affected Lender, the other Lenders and the
Administrative Agent. Upon the effective date of any replacement under this
Section 4.07, and as a condition thereto, the Borrower shall, or shall cause the
replacement Lender or Lenders to, pay to the Affected Lender being replaced any
amounts owing to such Affected Lender hereunder (including, without limitation,
interest, fees, compensation and additional amounts under this Article IV, in
each case accrued to the effective date of such replacement), whereupon (i) each
replacement lender shall become a "Lender" for all purposes of this Agreement
having a Commitment in the amount of such Affected Lender's Commitment assumed
by it, (ii) the Commitment of the Affected Lender being replaced shall be
terminated upon such effective date and (iii) the Affected Lender shall cease to
be a "Lender" as of such effective date.

     Section 4.08 Survival. The provisions of Sections 4.03, 4.04 and 4.06,
shall remain in effect regardless of the expiration of the term of this
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, the
repayment of any Loans, the reduction or termination of any Commitments, the
invalidity or unenforceability of any term or provision of any Credit Document
or any investigation made by or on behalf of the Lenders.

                                   ARTICLE V

                         Representations and Warranties

     Section 5.01 Representations and Warranties. The Borrower represents and
warrants to the Administrative Agent, the L/C Issuer and each Lender as follows:

          (a) Corporate Organization and Power. The Borrower is a corporation,
     duly incorporated and validly existing in good standing under the laws of
     the jurisdiction of its incorporation; it has all necessary corporate power
     to own its property and to carry on its business as now being conducted;
     and it is duly qualified to do business and is in good standing in each
     jurisdiction in which the character of the properties owned or leased by it
     therein or in which the transaction of its business makes such
     qualification necessary, except where the failure to be so qualified, or to
     be in good standing, could not reasonably be expected, individually or in
     the aggregate, to have a Material Adverse Effect.

          (b) Subsidiaries. Schedule 5.01(b) (as updated from time to time
     pursuant to Section 7.01) identifies each Subsidiary, the jurisdiction of
     its incorporation, the percentage of issued and outstanding shares of each
     class of its capital stock owned by the Borrower and the Subsidiaries and,
     if such percentage is not 100% (excluding
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          directors' qualifying shares as required by law), a description of
          each class of its authorized capital stock and the number of shares of
          each class issued and outstanding. Each Subsidiary (other than
          inactive Subsidiaries, as identified on Schedule 5.01(b)) is a
          corporation, duly incorporated and validly existing in good standing
          under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation, has all
          necessary corporate power to carry on its present business, and is
          duly licensed or qualified and in good standing in each jurisdiction
          in which the nature of the business transacted by it or the nature of
          the property owned or leased by it makes such licensing or
          qualification necessary, except where the failure to be so licensed or
          qualified could not reasonably be expected, individually or in the
          aggregate, to have a Material Adverse Effect. All of the issued and
          outstanding shares of capital stock of each Subsidiary have been duly
          authorized and validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable.
          All such shares owned by the Borrower are owned beneficially and of
          record, free of any Lien, other than Liens granted under the Existing
          Pledge Agreement.

               (c) Corporate Authority. The Borrower has all necessary corporate
          power and authority to execute and deliver, and to incur and perform
          its obligations under, each of the Credit Documents, all of which have
          been duly authorized by all proper and necessary corporate action. No
          consent or approval of stockholders is required as a condition to the



          validity or performance of, or the exercise by the Administrative
          Agent or the Lenders of any of their rights or remedies under, any
          Credit Document.

               (d) Authorizations. All authorizations, consents, approvals,
          registrations, notices, exemptions and licenses with or from any
          Governmental Authority or other Person necessary for the execution,
          delivery and performance by the Borrower of, and the incurrence and
          performance of each of its obligations under, each of the Credit
          Documents, and the exercise by the Administrative Agent and the
          Lenders of their remedies under each of the Credit Documents have been
          effected or obtained and are in full force and effect.

               (e) Binding Obligation. Each of the Credit Documents (other than
          the Notes) constitutes and, when issued in accordance with the terms
          hereof, each Note will constitute, the valid and legally binding
          obligation of the Borrower enforceable in accordance with its terms,
          subject as to enforcement to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
          moratorium and similar laws of general applicability relating to or
          affecting creditors' rights and to general equity principles.

               (f) Litigation; Labor Controversies. Except as described in
          Schedule 5.01(f) and updated through Section 7.01(k), there are no
          proceedings or investigations now pending or, to the knowledge of the
          Borrower, threatened before any court or arbitrator or before or by
          any Governmental Authority which, individually or in the aggregate, if
          determined adversely to the interests of the Borrower or any
          Subsidiary, could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
          Effect. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.01(f), there are no labor
          controversies pending or, to the best knowledge of the Borrower,
          threatened against the Borrower or any Subsidiary which could
          reasonably be expected, individually or in the aggregate, to have a
          Material Adverse Effect.

               (g) No Conflicts. There is no law, regulation, rule, order or
          judgment, and no provision of any material agreement or instrument
          binding upon the Borrower or any
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          Subsidiary, or affecting their properties, and no provision of the
          certificate of incorporation or by-laws (or similar constitutive
          instruments) of the Borrower or any Subsidiary, that would prohibit,
          conflict with or in any way impair the execution or delivery of, or
          the incurrence or performance of any obligations of the Borrower
          under, any Credit Document, or result in or require the creation or
          imposition of any Lien on property of the Borrower or any Subsidiary
          as a consequence of the execution, delivery and performance of any
          Credit Document.

               (h)  Financial Condition. (i) The consolidated balance sheet of
          the Borrower as of March 2, 2002, together with consolidated
          statements of income, retained earnings, paid-in capital and surplus
          and cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, audited and reported
          upon by the Borrower's outside independent certified public accounting
          firm, previously delivered to the Administrative Agent and the
          Lenders, fairly present the consolidated financial condition,
          consolidated results of operations and transactions in surplus
          accounts of the Borrower as of the dates and for the periods referred
          to and have been prepared in accordance with GAAP consistently applied
          throughout the period involved. There are no material liabilities
          (whether known or unknown, direct or indirect, fixed or contingent,
          and of any nature whatsoever) of the Borrower or any Subsidiary as of
          the date of such balance sheet that are not reflected therein or in
          the notes thereto.

               (ii) Except as provided in Schedule 5.01(h)(ii), there has been
          no material adverse change in the business, properties, condition
          (financial or otherwise) or operations, present or prospective, of the
          Borrower and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, since the date of the
          balance sheet dated March 2, 2002 referred to in Section 5.01(h)(i).

               (i)  Taxes. The Borrower and its Subsidiaries (with the exception



          of Harmon Sdn Bhd for which Malaysia tax returns for fiscal years 1996
          through 2001 are in the process of being prepared, as long as such
          Subsidiary does not have tax liability of greater than US $500,000)
          have filed all United States federal tax returns, and all other tax
          returns, required to be filed and have paid all taxes due pursuant to
          such returns or pursuant to any assessment received by the Borrower or
          any Subsidiary, except such taxes, if any, as are being contested in
          good faith and for which adequate reserves have been provided. No
          notices of tax liens have been filed and no claims are being asserted
          concerning any such taxes, which liens or claims could reasonably be
          expected, individually or in the aggregate, to have a Material Adverse
          Effect. The charges, accruals and reserves on the books of the
          Borrower and its Subsidiaries for any taxes or other governmental
          charges are adequate.

               (j)  Margin Regulations; Margin Stock; Use of Proceeds. Neither
          the Borrower nor any Subsidiary is engaged principally, or as one of
          its primary activities, in the business of extending credit for the
          purpose of purchasing or carrying margin stock. The proceeds of the
          Loans and Letters of Credit are to be used solely for the purposes set
          forth in and permitted by Section 7.01(k). The Borrower will not use
          the proceeds of any Loan or Letter of Credit in a manner that violates
          any provision of the Margin Regulations.
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          (k) Compliance with ERISA. With respect to each Plan, the Borrower and
     each other member of the ERISA Group has fulfilled its obligations under
     the minimum funding standards of and is in compliance in all material
     respects with ERISA, and with the Code to the extent applicable to it and
     has not incurred any liability to the PBGC or a Plan under Title IV of
     ERISA other than a liability to the PBGC for premiums under Section 4007 of
     ERISA. Neither the Borrower nor any Subsidiary has any contingent
     liabilities for any post-retirement benefits under a Welfare Plan, other
     than liability for continuation coverage described in Part 6 of Title I of
     ERISA.

          (l) Not an Investment Company. Neither the Borrower nor any Subsidiary
     is (i) an "investment company" or a company "controlled" by an "investment
     company" within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as
     amended, or (ii) subject to regulation under the Public Utility Holding
     Company Act of 1935, the Federal Power Act, each as amended, or any
     foreign, federal, state or local statute or regulation limiting its ability
     to incur indebtedness for money borrowed as contemplated hereby.

          (m) Properties. The Borrower and the Subsidiaries each has good and
     marketable title to, or valid leasehold interests in, all of its respective
     properties and assets that are reflected on the consolidated balance sheet
     of the Borrower as of the most recent date, except for such immaterial
     properties and assets as have been disposed of in the ordinary course of
     business and except for minor defects in title that do not interfere with
     the ability of the Borrower or any Subsidiary to conduct its business as
     now conducted. All such assets and properties are so owned or held free and
     clear of all Liens, except Permitted Liens.

          (n) Compliance with Laws. The Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries
     has all necessary licenses, permits and governmental authorizations to own
     and operate its Properties and to carry on its business as currently
     conducted and contemplated, except to the extent failure to have the same
     could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have
     a Material Adverse Effect. The Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries is in
     material compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, ordinances and
     orders of any governmental or judicial authorities except for any such law,
     regulation, ordinance or order which, the failure to comply therewith,
     could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have
     a Material Adverse Effect.

          (o) Environmental Protection. To the Borrower's knowledge, based upon
     reasonable investigation, all real property owned or leased by the Borrower
     or any Subsidiary is free of contamination from any substance that could
     reasonably be expected, individually or in the aggregate, to have a
     Material Adverse Effect, or constituent thereof, currently identified or
     listed as hazardous or toxic pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental



     Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. 9601, et seq., or any
     other Environmental Laws, or any other substance which has in the past or
     could at any time in the future cause or constitute a health, safety or
     environmental hazard to any person or property, including asbestos in any
     building, petroleum products, PCBs, pesticides, or radioactive materials.
     To the Borrower's knowledge, based upon reasonable investigation, neither
     the Borrower nor any Subsidiary has caused or suffered to occur any release
     of any Hazardous Substance into the environment or any other conditions
     that, individually or in the aggregate, could
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     reasonably be expected, individually or in the aggregate, to have a
     Material Adverse Effect, or result in any violations of any Environmental
     Laws that could reasonably be expected, individually or in the aggregate,
     to have a Material Adverse Effect. To the Borrower's knowledge, based upon
     reasonable investigation, neither the Borrower nor any Subsidiary has
     caused or suffered to occur any condition on any of their property that
     could give rise to the imposition of any Lien under the Environmental Laws.
     To the Borrower's knowledge, based on reasonable investigation, to the
     extent that any Subsidiary is engaged in any manufacturing or any other
     operations, other than the use of petroleum products for vehicles, that
     require the use, handling, transportation, storage or disposal of any
     Hazardous Substance, such Subsidiary possesses all necessary permits
     required for such manufacturing or operations and are in compliance with
     the laws, rules and regulations applicable to such permit holders, except
     to the extent failure to have the same could not, individually or in the
     aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. The
     Borrower is not engaged in any manufacturing or any other operations, other
     than the use of petroleum products for vehicles, that require the use,
     handling, transportation, storage or disposal of any Hazardous Substance,
     where such operations require permits or are otherwise regulated pursuant
     to the Environmental Laws.

          (p) Insurance. All of the properties and operations of the Borrower
     and each Subsidiary of a character usually insured by companies of
     established reputation engaged in the same or a similar business similarly
     situated are adequately insured, by financially sound and reputable
     insurers, against loss or damage of the kinds and in amounts customarily
     insured against by such Persons, and the Borrower and the Subsidiaries
     carry, with such insurers in customary amounts, such other insurance,
     including larceny, embezzlement or other criminal misappropriation
     insurance and business interruption insurance, as is usually carried by
     companies of established reputation engaged in the same or a similar
     business similarly situated.

          (q) No Burdensome Restrictions; Compliance with Agreements. Neither
     the Borrower nor any Subsidiary is (a) subject to any law, regulation, rule
     or order that (individually or in the aggregate) materially and adversely
     affects the business, operations, Property or financial or other condition
     of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole or (b) in default in
     the performance, observance or fulfillment of any of the obligations,
     covenants or conditions contained in any Contractual Obligation to which it
     is a party, which default could reasonably be expected, individually or in
     the aggregate, to have a Material Adverse Effect on the business,
     operations, Property or financial or other condition of the Borrower and
     its Subsidiaries taken as a whole.

          (r) Full Disclosure. All information relating to the Borrower or its
     Subsidiaries delivered in writing to the Administrative Agent or any Lender
     in connection with the negotiation, execution and delivery of this
     Agreement and the other Credit Documents is true and complete in all
     material respects. There is no material fact of which the Borrower is aware
     which, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to
     influence adversely any Lender's credit analysis relating to the Borrower
     and its Subsidiaries which has not been disclosed to the Lenders in
     writing.

     Section 5.02 Survival. All representations and warranties made by the
Borrower in this Agreement, and in the certificates or other instruments
prepared or delivered in connection
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with or pursuant to this Agreement, shall (i) be considered to have been relied
upon by the Lenders, (ii) survive the making of Loans and the issuance of
Letters of Credit regardless of any investigation made by, or on behalf of, the
Lenders, and (iii) continue in full force and effect as long as the Commitments
have not been terminated and, thereafter, so long as any Loan, L/C Obligation,
Commitment Fee, Letter of Credit Fee or other amount payable under any Credit
Document remains unpaid.

                                   ARTICLE VI

                              Conditions Precedent

     Section 6.01 Conditions to the Availability of the Commitments. The
obligations of each Lender and the L/C Issuer hereunder are subject to, and the
Lenders' Commitments shall not become available until the earliest time (the
"Effective Time") on which each of the following conditions precedent shall have
been satisfied, or waived in writing by each of the Lenders:

          (a)  Credit Documents. The Administrative Agent shall have received
     this Agreement duly executed and delivered by each of the Lenders and the
     Borrower and shall have received the Contribution Agreement and the
     Subsidiary Guaranty, as well as any other Credit Documents, duly executed
     and delivered by each of the parties thereto.

          (b)  Evidence of Corporate Action. The Administrative Agent, for each
     of the Lenders, shall have received the following:

               (i)  a copy of the Articles of Incorporation of the Borrower, as
          in effect on the Effective Date, certified by the Secretary of State
          of Minnesota, and a certificate from such Secretary of State as to the
          good standing of the Borrower, in each case as of a date reasonably
          close to the Effective Date;

               (ii)  a certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of
          the Borrower, dated the Effective Date, stating (A) that attached
          thereto is a true and complete copy of the by-laws of the Borrower as
          in effect on such date and at all times since the date of the
          resolutions described in clause (B) below, (B) that attached thereto
          is a true and complete copy of resolutions duly adopted by the Board
          of Directors of the Borrower authorizing the execution, delivery and
          performance of the various Credit Documents, and that such resolutions
          have not been modified, rescinded or amended and are in full force and
          effect, (C) that the articles of incorporation of the Borrower have
          not been amended since the date of the last amendment thereto shown on
          the certificate of good standing furnished pursuant to clause (i)
          above, and (D) as to the incumbency and signature of each officer
          executing this Agreement or any document delivered in connection
          herewith on behalf of the Borrower;

               (iii) a copy of the Articles of Incorporation or other governing
          document of each of the Subsidiaries that is a party to any Guaranty
          Document, as in effect on the Effective Date, certified by the
          Secretary of State of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or
          formation, and a certificate from each such
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          Secretary of State as to the good standing of such Subsidiary, in each
          case as of a date reasonably close to the Effective Date; and

               (iv) a certificate of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of
          each of the Subsidiaries that is a party to any Guaranty Document,
          dated the Effective Date, stating (A) that attached thereto is a true
          and complete copy of resolutions duly adopted by the Board of
          Directors of such Subsidiary authorizing the execution, delivery and
          performance of each such Guaranty Document, and that such resolutions
          have not been modified, rescinded or amended and are in full force and
          effect; and (B) as to the incumbency and signature of each officer
          executing each such Guaranty Document or any document delivered in
          connection with this Agreement or any such Guaranty Document on behalf



          of such Subsidiary.

          (c)  Opinions of Counsel. The Administrative Agent, for each of the
     Lenders, shall have received a favorable written opinion, dated the
     Effective Date and addressed to the Lenders under this Agreement, of (i)
     Dorsey & Whitney LLP, counsel for the Borrower, in substantially the form
     of Exhibit D-1, (ii) General Counsel to the Borrower, in substantially the
     form of Exhibit D-2, and (iii) Sullivan & Cromwell, counsel for the
     Administrative Agent, in substantially the form of Exhibit D-3.

          (d)  Representations and Warranties; Covenants. The representations
     and warranties set forth in Section 5.01 shall be true and correct on the
     Effective Date, and the Lenders shall have received a certificate, signed
     by a Responsible Officer of the Borrower, to that effect. The Borrower
     shall be compliant with all of the covenants set forth in Sections 7.01,
     7.02, and 7.03 as of the Effective Date, and the Lenders shall have
     received a certificate, signed by a Responsible Officer of the Borrower, to
     that effect.

          (e)  Existing Facility. Each of the Existing Credit Agreement, the
     Existing Contribution Agreement, the Existing Pledge Agreement, the
     Existing Security Agreement and the Existing Subsidiary Guaranty shall have
     been cancelled or terminated in accordance with its respective terms, any
     promissory notes issued thereunder shall have been cancelled or returned to
     the Borrower, all outstanding Loans and L/C Obligations shall have been
     repaid or reimbursed, and the Termination Agreement shall have been duly
     executed and delivered to the Administrative Agent. The parties hereto
     agree that a Revolving Credit Request may be made under this Agreement
     simultaneously to repay or reimburse all outstanding obligations under the
     Existing Facility.

          (f)  Other Documents. The Lenders shall have received such other
     certificates, opinions and other documents as the Administrative Agent or
     the Required Lenders reasonably may require.

          (g)  Fees. The Administrative Agent, the Sole Lead Arranger and the
     Lenders shall have received any fees or other payments which are due and
     payable at closing pursuant to this Agreement or the fee letter agreement,
     dated as of February 12, 2002, among the Borrower, The Bank of New York and
     the Sole Lead Arranger, at or prior to the Effective Time.
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     Section 6.02 Conditions to All Loans. The obligations of each Lender to
make each Loan and of the L/C Issuer to issue each Letter of Credit are subject
to the conditions precedent that, on the date of each Loan or Letter of Credit
and after giving effect thereto, each of the following conditions precedent
shall have been satisfied, or waived in writing by the Lenders:

          (a)  Borrowing Request. The Administrative Agent shall have received a
     Revolving Credit Request, Swing Line Request or L/C Request in accordance
     with the terms of this Agreement.

          (b)  No Default. No Default or Event of Default shall have occurred
     and be continuing, nor shall any Default or Event of Default occur as a
     result of the making of such Loan or the issuance of such Letter of Credit.

          (c)  Representations and Warranties; Covenants. The representations
     and warranties contained in Section 5.01 shall have been true and correct
     when made and (except to the extent that any representation or warranty
     speaks as of a date certain) shall be true and correct on the Borrowing
     Date with the same effect as though such representations and warranties
     were made on such Borrowing Date; and the Borrower shall have complied with
     all of its covenants and agreements under the Credit Documents.

     Section 6.03 Satisfaction of Conditions Precedent. Each of (i) the delivery
by the Borrower of a Revolving Credit Request, Swing Line Request or L/C Request
and (ii) the acceptance of the proceeds of a Loan shall be deemed to constitute
a certification by the Borrower that, as of the Borrowing Date, each of the
conditions precedent contained in Section 6.02 has been satisfied with respect
to any Loans then being made.

                                   ARTICLE VII



                                    Covenants

     Section 7.01 Affirmative Covenants. Until satisfaction in full of all the
obligations of the Borrower under the Credit Documents and termination of the
Commitments of the Lenders hereunder, the Borrower will:

          (a)  Financial Statements; Compliance Certificates. Furnish to the
     Lenders:

               (i)  as soon as available, but in no event more than 45 days
          following the end of each of the first three quarters of each fiscal
          year, copies of the Borrower's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q being
          filed with the SEC, which shall include a consolidated balance sheet
          and consolidated income statement of the Borrower and the Subsidiaries
          for such quarter;

               (ii) as soon as available, but in no event more than 90 days
          following the end of each fiscal year, a copy of the Borrower's Annual
          Report on Form 10-K being filed with the SEC, which shall include the
          consolidated financial statements of the Borrower and the
          Subsidiaries, together with an audit report thereon by the Borrower's
          outside independent certified public accounting firm
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          (or another firm of independent certified public accountants
          reasonably satisfactory to the Lenders), for such year;

               (iii)  together with each report delivered pursuant to Sections
          7.01(a)(i) and (ii), a certificate of the Borrower, signed by a
          Responsible Officer, in substantially the form of Exhibit E, stating
          whether, as of the last date of the financial statements included in
          such report, any event occurred or circumstance existed which,
          individually or in the aggregate, constituted a Default or Event of
          Default (and, if so, detailing the facts with respect thereto) and
          whether the Borrower was in compliance with the covenants set forth in
          this Article VII, together with calculations to establish the
          Borrower's compliance with the covenants contained in Section 7.03;

               (iv)   promptly upon the filing by the Borrower with the SEC or
          any national securities exchange of any registration statement (other
          than a registration statement on Form S-8 or an equivalent form) or
          regular periodic report (other than the reports referred to in
          Sections 7.01(a)(i) and (ii)), notification of such filing; and, at
          the request of any Lender, the Borrower shall deliver to such Lender a
          copy of such filing (excluding exhibits);

               (v)    promptly upon the mailing thereof to the shareholders of
          the Borrower generally, copies of all financial statements, reports
          and proxy statements so mailed;

               (vi)   within two Business Days of any Responsible Officer of the
          Borrower obtaining knowledge of any Default or Event of Default, a
          certificate of a Responsible Officer of the Borrower stating that such
          certificate is a "Notice of Default" and setting forth the details
          thereof and the action which the Borrower is taking or proposes to
          take with respect thereto;

               (vii)  quarterly, an updated Schedule 5.01(b), provided that any
          new U.S. Subsidiaries shall be reported to the Administrative Agent,
          and shall become a party to the Subsidiary Guaranty, within 3 Business
          Days of such entity becoming a U.S. Subsidiary; and

               (viii) such additional information, reports or statements,
          regarding the business, financial condition or results of operations
          of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, as the Administrative Agent or
          any of the Lenders from time to time may reasonably request.

          If any Subsidiary of the Borrower files on behalf of itself with the
     SEC any of the documents described in Sections 7.01(a)(i) through
     7.01(a)(v) above, the Borrower or such Subsidiary will furnish such
     documents to the Lenders in accordance with those Sections.



          (b) Corporate Existence. Except as permitted by Section 7.02(a),
     maintain, and cause each Subsidiary to maintain, its corporate existence in
     good standing and to qualify and remain qualified to do business in each
     jurisdiction in which the character of the properties owned or leased by it
     therein or in which the transaction of its business is
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     such that the failure to qualify, individually or in the aggregate, could
     reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

          (c) Conduct of Business. Preserve, renew and keep in full force and
     effect, and cause each Subsidiary to preserve, renew and keep in full force
     and effect, all its franchises and licenses necessary or desirable in the
     normal conduct of its business and the loss of which, individually or in
     the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
     Effect; and comply, and cause each Subsidiary to comply, with all
     applicable laws, orders, rules and regulations of all Governmental
     Authorities the failure with which so to comply, individually or in the
     aggregate, could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

          (d) Authorizations. Obtain, make and keep in full force and effect all
     authorizations from and registrations with Governmental Authorities
     required for the validity or enforceability of the Credit Documents.

          (e) Taxes. Pay and discharge, and cause each Subsidiary to pay and
     discharge, all taxes, assessments and governmental charges upon it, its
     income and its properties prior to the date on which penalties are attached
     thereto, except to the extent that (i) such taxes, assessments and
     governmental charges shall be contested in good faith and by appropriate
     proceedings by the Borrower or such Subsidiary, as the case may be, (ii)
     unless the amount thereof is not material to the Borrower's consolidated
     financial condition, adequate reserves are maintained (in accordance with
     GAAP) by the Borrower or such Subsidiary, as the case may be, with respect
     thereto, and (iii) any failure to pay and discharge such taxes, assessments
     and governmental charges could not reasonably be expected, individually or
     in the aggregate, to have a Material Adverse Effect.

          (f) Insurance. Maintain, and cause each Subsidiary to maintain,
     insurance with reputable insurance companies against such risks, of such
     types (including general liability, larceny, embezzlement or other criminal
     misappropriation insurance), on such properties and in such amounts as is
     customarily maintained by similar businesses similarly situated; and file
     and cause each Subsidiary to file with the Administrative Agent upon its
     request or the request of any Lender a detailed list of the insurance
     companies, the amounts and rates of the insurance, the dates of the
     expiration thereof and the properties and risks covered thereby.

          (g) Inspection. Upon reasonable notice, permit, and cause each
     Subsidiary to permit, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders to have one
     or more of their officers and employees, or any other Person or Persons
     designated by the Administrative Agent or the Lenders, reasonable access,
     prior to the occurrence and continuance of any Default or Event of Default,
     at the expense of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders and at any time
     a Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, at the
     Borrower's expense, to any of the properties of the Borrower and the
     Subsidiaries and to examine the minute books, books of account and other
     records of the Borrower and the Subsidiaries, and discuss its affairs,
     finances and accounts with its officers and with the Borrower's independent
     accountants, during normal business hours and at such other reasonable
     times, for the purpose of monitoring the Borrower's compliance with its
     obligations under the Credit Documents; provided, however, that except upon
     the occurrence and
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     during the continuance of any Default or Event of Default, not more than
     one such set of visits and inspections may be conducted each calendar
     quarter.



          (h)  Maintenance of Records. For the Borrower and each of its
     Subsidiaries (i) keep proper books of record and account in which full,
     true and correct entries will be made of all dealings or transactions of or
     in relation to its business and affairs; (ii) set up on its books reserves
     with respect to all taxes, assessments, charges, reviews and claims; and
     (iii) on a current basis, set up on its books, from its earnings,
     appropriate reserves against doubtful accounts receivable, advances and
     investments and all other proper reserves (including by reason of
     enumeration, reserves for premiums, if any, due on required prepayments and
     reserves for depreciation, obsolescence, or amortization of properties),
     which should be set aside from such earnings in connection with its
     business. (All determinations pursuant to this Section 7.01(h) shall be
     made in accordance with, or as required by, GAAP consistently applied in
     the opinion of the independent auditors regularly engaged by the Borrower.)

          (i)  Maintenance of Property. Maintain, keep and preserve and cause
     each Subsidiary to maintain, keep and preserve all of its properties in
     good repair, working order and condition and from time to time make all
     necessary and proper repairs, renewals, replacements, and improvements
     thereto, except to the extent that any failure so to maintain, keep and
     preserve such properties, individually or in the aggregate, could not
     reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

          (j)  ERISA. Furnish to the Lenders:

               (i)   within ten days after a Responsible Officer learns that any
          "reportable event" (as defined in Section 4043(c) of ERISA), other
          than a reportable event for which the 30-day notice requirement has
          been waived by the PBGC, has occurred with respect to a Pension Plan,
          a statement setting forth details as to such reportable event and the
          action proposed to be taken with respect thereto;

               (ii)  within ten days after receipt thereof, a copy of any notice
          that any member of the ERISA Group may receive from the PBGC relating
          to the intention of the PBGC to terminate any Pension Plan or to
          appoint a trustee to administer any Plan;

               (iii) within ten days after filing with any affected party (as
          such term is defined in Section 4001 of ERISA) of a notice of intent
          to terminate a Pension Plan, a copy of such notice and a statement
          setting forth the details of such termination, including the amount of
          liability, if any, of any member of the ERISA Group under Title IV of
          ERISA;

               (iv)  within ten days after the adoption of an amendment to a
          Pension Plan if, after giving effect to such amendment, the Pension
          Plan is a plan described in Section 4021(b) of ERISA, a statement
          setting forth the details thereof;
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               (v)    within 30 days after withdrawal from a Pension Plan during
          a plan year for which any member of the ERISA Group could be subject
          to liability under Section 4063 or 4064 of ERISA, a statement setting
          forth the details thereof, including the amount of such liability;

               (vi)   within 30 days after cessation of operations by any member
          of the ERISA Group at a facility under the circumstances described in
          Section 4062(e) of ERISA, a statement setting forth the details
          thereof, including the amount of liability of the Borrower or a member
          of the ERISA Group under Title IV of ERISA;

               (vii)  within ten days after adoption of an amendment to a
          Pension Plan which would require security to be given to the Pension
          Plan pursuant to Section 401(a)(29) of the Code or Section 307 of
          ERISA, a statement setting forth the details thereof, including the
          amount of such security;

               (viii) within ten days after failure by any member of the ERISA
          Group to make payment to a Pension Plan which would give rise to a
          lien in favor of the Plan under Section 302(f) of ERISA, a statement
          setting forth the details thereof, including the amount of such lien;



               (ix)   within ten days after the due date for filing with the
          PBGC, pursuant to Section 412(n) of the Code, of a notice of failure
          to make a required installment or other payment with respect to a
          Pension Plan, a statement setting forth details as to such failure and
          the action proposed to be taken with respect thereto; and

               (x)    within 30 days after receipt thereof by any member of the
          ERISA Group from the sponsor of a Multiemployer Plan, a copy of each
          notice concerning the imposition of withdrawal liability or the
          termination or reorganization of a Multiemployer Plan.

          (k)  Notice of Defaults and Adverse Developments. Promptly notify the
     Administrative Agent upon the discovery by any Responsible Officer of the
     occurrence of (i) any Default or Event of Default; (ii) any event,
     development or circumstance whereby the financial statements most recently
     furnished to the Administrative Agent or any of the Lenders fail in any
     material respect to present fairly, in accordance with GAAP, the financial
     condition and operating results of the Borrower and the Subsidiaries as of
     the date of such financial statements; (iii) any litigation or proceedings
     that are instituted or threatened (to the knowledge of the Borrower)
     against the Borrower or any Subsidiary or any of their respective assets
     that could reasonably be expected, individually or in the aggregate, to
     have a Material Adverse Effect; (iv) any event, development or circumstance
     which, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to
     result in an event or default (or, with the giving of notice or lapse of
     time or both, an event of default) under any Indebtedness and the amount
     thereof, provided that such notice need only be given for an item of
     Indebtedness greater than $25,000 and must be given within 30 calendar days
     of such event, development or circumstance; and (v) any other development
     in the business or affairs of the Borrower or any Subsidiary if the effect
     thereof would reasonably be expected, individually or in the aggregate, to
     have
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     a Material Adverse Effect; in each case describing the nature thereof and
     the action the Borrower proposes to take with respect thereto. (Upon
     receipt, the Administrative Agent shall promptly advise each Lender of the
     contents of any such notice.)

          (l)  Use of Proceeds. Use each Loan, and the credit provided by
     Letters of Credit, only (i) to repay Indebtedness outstanding at the
     Effective Time, (ii) for working capital requirements and (iii) for general
     corporate purposes, including Capital Expenditures and permitted
     Investments. Following application of the proceeds of each Loan, not more
     than 25% of the value of the assets (either of the Borrower only or of the
     Borrower and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis) subject to the
     provisions of Section 7.02(b) hereof will be margin stock (within the
     meaning of the Margin Regulations).

          (m)  Environmental Matters. (i) Comply, and cause each Subsidiary to
     comply, in all material respects with all applicable Environmental Laws,
     (ii) notify the Administrative Agent promptly after becoming aware of any
     Environmental Claim, or any fact or circumstance that could reasonably be
     expected to result in an Environmental Claim or a violation of any
     Environmental Law that could reasonably be expected, individually or in the
     aggregate, to have a Material Adverse Effect, with respect to the
     Borrower's or any Subsidiaries' properties or facilities, and (iii)
     promptly forward to the Administrative Agent a copy of any material order,
     notice, permit, application, or any other communication or report received
     in connection with any such matters as they may affect such premises.

          (n)  Measurement Date. Provide to the Administrative Agent the
     Debt/EBITDA Ratio within one Business Day of (i) the date a Revolving
     Credit Request (which designates Eurodollar Loans), L/C Request or
     Conversion Request is submitted by the Borrower, (ii) the date any
     Responsible Officer obtains actual knowledge of a change in the Debt/EBITDA
     Ratio, (iii) the date the Administrative Agent or any Lender requests such
     ratio and (iv) the last day of every month, in each case calculated as of
     the date of such event or occurrence and calculated (for purposes of event
     (i) above) after giving effect to the borrowing, obligation or conversion
     requested under the Revolving Credit Request, L/C Request or Conversion
     Request.



     Section 7.02 Negative Covenants. Until satisfaction in full of all the
obligations of the Borrower under the Credit Documents and termination of the
Commitments of the Lenders hereunder, the Borrower will not:

          (a)  Mergers, Consolidations and Sales of Assets. Be a party to any
     merger, consolidation or share exchange, or sell, transfer, lease or
     otherwise dispose of all or any substantial part of its assets or Property,
     including any disposition of assets or Property as part of a sale and
     leaseback transaction, or in any event sell or discount (with or without
     recourse) any of its notes or accounts receivable, or permit any Subsidiary
     so to do; provided, however, that, subject to compliance with the other
     negative covenants in this Section 7.02, this Section shall not apply to,
     nor operate to prevent, (i) the Borrower being a party to any merger where
     the Borrower is the surviving Person if, after giving effect to such
     merger, no Default or Event of Default would then exist, (ii) any
     Subsidiary (A) merging into the Borrower or (B) being a party to any merger
     which does not involve the Borrower where a Subsidiary is the surviving
     Person if, after giving effect
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     to such merger, no Default or Event of Default would then exist, (iii) the
     Borrower or any Subsidiary from selling its inventory in the ordinary
     course of its business, (iv) any dissolution of an inactive Subsidiary that
     would not have a Material Adverse Effect, if, after giving effect to such
     dissolution, no Default or Event of Default would then exist, and (v) any
     Like-Kind Exchange. For the avoidance of doubt, the limitation on
     disposition of a "substantial" amount or part of the assets of the Borrower
     as used in this Section shall mean (w) a limitation of not greater than 10%
     (excluding Like-Kind Exchanges) of the total consolidated assets of the
     Borrower per fiscal year over all transactions during that year (computed
     based upon the total consolidated assets of the Borrower set forth on the
     consolidated balance sheet of Borrower prepared as of the last day of the
     previous fiscal year) and (x) an aggregate limitation of not greater than
     25% (excluding Like-Kind Exchanges) of the total consolidated assets of the
     Borrower from the Effective Date to the Commitment Termination Date
     (computed based upon the total consolidated assets of the Borrower set
     forth on the consolidated balance sheet of Borrower prepared as of March 2,
     2002 and described in Section 5.01(h)). The consideration paid for any
     assets or Property in any sale, transfer, lease or other disposition of
     assets or Property permitted by this Section 7.02(a): (y) must be Fair
     Market Value for such assets or Property and (z) must be at least 75% in
     the form of cash or cash equivalents.

          (b)  Liens. Create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any Lien, or
     permit any Subsidiary so to do, upon or in any of its Property or assets,
     whether now owned or hereafter acquired, except the following Liens
     (collectively, "Permitted Liens"):

               (i)   Liens arising by operation of law in connection with
          worker's compensation, unemployment insurance, social security
          obligations, taxes, assessments, statutory obligations or other
          similar charges, good faith deposits, pledges or Liens in connection
          with bids, tenders, contracts or leases to which the Borrower or any
          Subsidiary is a party (other than contracts for borrowed money), or
          other deposits required to be made or surety bonds or other
          obligations of like nature (which for the purposes of this Agreement
          shall include letters of credit in the nature of a surety bond)
          required to be obtained in the ordinary course of business in
          connection with any of the foregoing; provided that in each case the
          obligation secured is not overdue or, if overdue, is being contested
          in good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which reserves in
          conformity with GAAP have been provided on the books of the Borrower;

               (ii)  Mechanics', workmen's, materialmen's, landlords', carriers'
          or other similar Liens arising in the ordinary course of business (or
          deposits to obtain the release of such Liens) securing obligations not
          due or, if due, being contested in good faith by appropriate
          proceedings and for which reserves in conformity with GAAP have been
          provided on the books of the Borrower;

               (iii) Liens for taxes or assessments or other government charges



          or levies on the Borrower or any Subsidiary of the Borrower or their
          respective Properties, not yet due or delinquent, or which can
          thereafter be paid without penalty, or which are being contested in
          good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which reserves in
          conformity with GAAP have been provided on the books of the Borrower;
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       (iv)   Liens arising out of judgments or awards against the Borrower or
any Subsidiary of the Borrower, or in connection with surety or appeal bonds in
connection with bonding such judgments or awards, the time for appeal from which
or petition for rehearing of which shall not have expired or with respect to
which the Borrower or such Subsidiary shall be prosecuting an appeal or
proceeding for review, and with respect to which it shall have obtained a stay
of execution pending such appeal or proceeding for review; provided that the
aggregate amount of liabilities (including interest and penalties, if any) of
the Borrower and its Subsidiaries secured by such Liens shall not exceed
$2,500,000 at any time outstanding;

       (v)    Liens upon any Property acquired by the Borrower or any Subsidiary
of the Borrower to secure any Indebtedness of the Borrower or any Subsidiary
incurred at the time of the acquisition of such Property to finance the purchase
price of such Property (excluding Liens otherwise permitted pursuant to Sections
7.02(b)(vii), 7.02(b)(viii) or 7.02(b)(ix) below), provided that any such Lien
shall apply only to the Property that was so acquired and the aggregate
principal amount of Indebtedness secured by such Liens shall not exceed
$15,000,000 at any time outstanding;

       (vi)   Survey exceptions or encumbrances, easements or reservations, or
rights of others for rights-of-way, utilities and other similar purposes, or
zoning or other restrictions as to the use of real properties which are
necessary for the conduct of the activities of the Borrower and any Subsidiary
of the Borrower or which customarily exist on properties of corporations engaged
in similar activities and similarly situated and which do not in any event
materially impair their use in the operation of the business of the Borrower or
any Subsidiary of the Borrower;

       (vii)  Liens (including any mortgages or other Liens on real Property,
subject to the approval of the Administrative Agent) listed on Schedule 7.02(b)
(which Liens could not reasonably be expected, in the aggregate, to have a
Material Adverse Effect);

       (viii) Liens securing Indebtedness of a Subsidiary of the Borrower
incurred in connection with the acquisition or construction of Property of such
Subsidiary; provided that such Lien is limited to the Property being financed by
such Indebtedness and any revenues of such Subsidiary directly attributable to
such Property; and provided, further, that the Indebtedness secured by such Lien
is non-recourse to the Borrower and its Subsidiaries;

       (ix)   Liens upon property resulting from the sale by the Borrower or any
Subsidiary of Property and the leasing of the same or similar property from the
purchaser thereof (or a subsequent purchaser or lessee), provided that any
sale/leaseback transaction complies with the other negative covenants contained
in this Section 7.02;

       (x)    Liens existing upon any Property or assets acquired by the
Borrower or a Subsidiary of the Borrower, or upon Property or assets of a Person
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       acquired by the Borrower or a Subsidiary, that as a result of such
       acquisition becomes a Subsidiary, provided that such Liens (A) are only
       on the assets or Property acquired in, or owned by an entity acquired in,
       an acquisition permitted under Section 7.02(d)(ix) or 7.02(d)(xiii) and
       (B) do not exceed $15,000,000 in the aggregate;

              (xi)   Other Liens, provided that the aggregate principal amount
       of Indebtedness secured by such other Liens does not exceed $10,000,000;

              (xii)  Any extension, renewal or replacement (or successive
       extensions, renewals or replacements) in whole or in part of any Lien



       referred to in the foregoing paragraphs (i) through (xi), inclusive,
       provided, however, that the principal amount of Indebtedness secured
       thereby shall not exceed the principal amount of the Indebtedness so
       secured at the time of any extension, renewal or refinancing, and that
       such extension, renewal or refinancing shall be limited to the Property
       which was subject to the Lien so extended, renewed or refinanced;

              (xiii) Liens, if any, securing obligations under the Credit
       Documents; and

              (xiv)  Liens securing Indebtedness existing or incurred in
       connection with industrial revenue bonds or industrial development bonds,
       as permitted by Section 7.02(c), provided such Liens are limited to Liens
       on the capital assets that have been acquired or construction of which
       has been financed by the proceeds of such industrial revenue bonds or
       industrial development bonds.

       (c)    Indebtedness. Create, incur, assume, suffer to exist, Guaranty or
become or remain contingently liable for any Indebtedness, or permit any
Subsidiary so to do, except:

              (i)    Indebtedness to the Administrative Agent and one or more
       Lenders under the Credit Documents;

              (ii)   Indebtedness of the Borrower which, when in place, will not
       cause the Borrower to be in violation of the covenants contained in
       Section 7.03;

              (iii)  Indebtedness of Subsidiaries secured by Liens permitted
       pursuant to Sections 7.02(b)(v), 7.02(b)(vii), 7.02(b)(viii), 7.02(b)(ix)
       (but only to the extent such sale and leaseback transactions are Capital
       Lease Obligations), 7.02(b)(x) or 7.02(b)(xiv) (and Section 7.02(b)(xii)
       to the extent applicable to the Liens securing Indebtedness permitted by
       this Section 7.02(c)(iii)) which, when in place, will not cause the
       Borrower to be in violation of such Sections or of the covenants
       contained in Section 7.03;

              (iv)   (A) Debt of Subsidiaries of the Borrower in an aggregate
       outstanding amount for all Subsidiaries at any time not to exceed
       $2,500,000 (B) Indebtedness of Subsidiaries of the Borrower to the
       Borrower, (C) Indebtedness of Subsidiaries of the Borrower consisting of
       any surety bond or other obligations
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       of like nature, provided that such Indebtedness shall be permitted
       pursuant to this Section 7.02(c)(iv) only (x) with respect to the portion
       of such surety bond or other obligation as to which no demand or
       unreimbursed drawing has been made, (y) if such surety bond or other
       obligation has been provided in the ordinary course of such Subsidiaries'
       business and (z) if such Indebtedness, when in place, will not cause the
       Borrower to be in violation of the Financial Covenants, and (D)
       Indebtedness of Subsidiaries of the Borrower consisting of industrial
       revenue bonds or obligations of like nature, if such Indebtedness, when
       in place, will not cause the Borrower to be in violation of the Financial
       Covenants; and

              (v)    Existing Indebtedness listed on Schedule 7.02(c).

       (d)    Investments, Acquisitions, Loans, Advances and Guaranties.
Directly or indirectly, make, retain or have outstanding any investments
(whether through purchase of stock or obligations or otherwise) in, or loans or
advances to, any other Person, or acquire all or any substantial part of the
assets or business or any other Person or division thereof, or Guaranty or
become liable as endorser, guarantor, surety or otherwise (such as liability as
a general partner) for any debt, obligation or undertaking of any other Person,
or otherwise agree to provide funds for payment of the obligations of another,
or supply funds thereto or invest therein or otherwise assure a creditor of
another against loss, or apply for or become liable to the issuer of a letter of
credit which supports an obligation of another, or subordinate any claim or
demand it may have to the claim or demand of any other Person (cumulatively, all
of the foregoing, being "Investments"), or permit any Subsidiary to do any of
the foregoing; provided, however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply



to, nor operate to prevent:

              (i)    investments in direct obligations of the United States of
       America or of any agency or instrumentality thereof whose obligations
       constitute full faith and credit obligations of the United States of
       America, provided that any such obligation matures within one year from
       the date it is acquired by the Borrower or Subsidiary;

              (ii)   investments in commercial paper rated P-1 by Moody's
       Investors Services, Inc. or A-1 by Standard & Poor's Corporation maturing
       within one year of its date of issuance;

              (iii)  investments in certificates of deposit issued by any Lender
       or any United States commercial bank having capital and surplus of not
       less than $500,000,000 maturing within one year from the date of issuance
       thereof or in banker's acceptances endorsed by any Lender or other such
       commercial bank and maturing within six months of the date of acceptance;

              (iv)   investments in repurchase obligations with a term of not
       more than seven (7) days for underlying securities of the types described
       in subsection (i) above entered into with any bank meeting the
       qualifications specified in subsection (iii) above, provided all such
       agreements require physical delivery of the securities securing such
       repurchase agreement, except those delivered through the Federal Reserve
       Book Entry System;
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              (v)    investments in money market funds that invest solely, and
       which are restricted by their respective charters to invest solely, in
       investments of the type described in the immediately preceding
       subsections (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above;

              (vi)   ownership of stock, obligations or securities received in
       settlement of debts (created in the ordinary course of business) owing to
       the Borrower or any Subsidiary;

              (vii)  endorsements of negotiable instruments for collection in
       the ordinary course of business;

              (viii) loans and advances to employees in the ordinary course of
       business for travel, relocation, and similar purposes;

              (ix)   acquisitions of all or any substantial part of the assets
       or business of any other Person or division thereof (by merger, purchase
       or otherwise), or of a majority of the voting stock of such a Person;
       provided that such Person or division thereof is engaged (or promptly
       after such acquisition will be engaged) in a line of business directly
       related to that of the Borrower; and provided, further, that (A) such
       Person becomes a Subsidiary of the Borrower as a result of such
       acquisition or the assets are purchased into the Borrower or a
       Subsidiary, and any such new or existing Subsidiary that is a U.S.
       Subsidiary becomes or is a party to the Subsidiary Guaranty, (B) no
       Default or Event of Default exists or would exist after giving effect to
       such acquisition, (C) the Board of Directors or other governing body of
       such Person whose Property, or voting stock or other interests in which,
       are being so acquired has approved the terms of such acquisition, (D)
       such acquisition does not exceed $25,000,000 in aggregate purchase price
       and (E) the purchase price for all acquisitions permitted under this
       Section 7.02(d)(ix) shall not exceed $75,000,000 in the aggregate from
       the Effective Date until the Commitment Termination Date; and provided
       further, that any acquisition, the consideration for which is the equity
       stock of the Borrower, is excluded from the purchase price limitations in
       clauses (D) and (E) above, if, on a pro forma basis for the current
       fiscal year and on a projected pro forma basis for the following fiscal
       year, the acquisition is accretive on a cash-flow basis and the accretive
       nature of the acquisition is supported by the opinion of a nationally
       recognized investment banking firm;

              (x)    Investments consisting of performance bonds and letters of
       credit and other similar surety devices obtained to support, or in lieu
       of, performance bonds, in each case entered into in the ordinary course
       of business;



              (xi)   Investments in Subsidiaries;

              (xii)  other Investments in stock or other securities, provided
       that the aggregate amount of any such Investments at any time outstanding
       does not exceed $5,000,000;

              (xiii) notwithstanding Section 7.02(d)(ix),
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                     (A)    Investments in any joint venture (subject to Section
              7.02(i)), provided that (1) no Default or Event of Default exists
              or would exist after giving effect to such Investments and (2) the
              aggregate dollar amount put into such Investments do not exceed
              $10,000,000 in any fiscal year; and

                     (B)    additional Investments in that certain joint
              venture, the primary vehicle for which is a limited liability
              company known as PPG Auto Glass, LLC, provided that (1) all such
              Investments do not exceed, in the aggregate, $5,000,000 during any
              fiscal year and (2) any amount of additional Investments in this
              joint venture shall be subtracted from the maximum allowable
              amount of Capital Expenditures under Section 7.02(e) for the
              fiscal year in which the additional Investment is made; and

              (xiv)  any Guaranty or liability as endorser, guarantor, surety or
       otherwise (such as liability as a general partner) for any debt,
       obligation or undertaking of any other Person, or agreement to provide
       funds for payment of the obligations of another, or supplying of funds
       thereto or investing therein or otherwise assuring a creditor of another
       against loss, or applying for or becoming liable to the issuer of a
       letter of credit which supports an obligation of another, to the extent
       such instrument or action would constitute Indebtedness permitted under
       Section 7.02(c).

       In determining the amount of investments, acquisitions, loans, advances
and guarantees permitted under this Section 7.02(d), investments and
acquisitions shall always be taken at the original cost thereof (regardless of
any subsequent appreciation or depreciation therein), loans and advances shall
be taken at the principal amount thereof then remaining unpaid, and guarantees
shall be taken at the amount of obligations guaranteed thereby. If any
acquisitions or Investments, whether made pursuant to this Section 7.02(d) or
otherwise, result in the acquisition or creation of any U.S. Subsidiary
(including a joint venture that would meet the definition of U.S. Subsidiary),
such new U.S. Subsidiary is required to become a party to the Subsidiary
Guaranty.

       (e)    Capital Expenditures. Make any Capital Expenditures, or permit any
Subsidiary so to do, exceeding, in the aggregate for the Borrower and the
Subsidiaries, $40,000,000 in any one fiscal year; provided that notwithstanding
the foregoing, the Borrower and its Subsidiaries may make additional Capital
Expenditures up to an aggregate of $50,000,000 for the construction of
architectural products and services or large-scale optical technology
facilities. For the avoidance of doubt, the acquisition of substantially all of
the assets of any Person or any division thereof will be deemed an Investment
and an acquisition pursuant to Section 7.02(d) and Section 7.02(d)(ix) and will
not be deemed a Capital Expenditure.

       (f)    Dividends and Purchase of Stock. (i) Declare any dividends (other
than dividends payable in capital stock of the Borrower) on any shares of any
class of its capital stock, or apply any of its Property or assets to the
purchase, redemption or other retirement of, or set apart any sum for the
payment of any dividends on, or for the purchase, redemption or other retirement
of, or make any other distribution by reduction
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       of capital or otherwise in respect of, any shares of any class of capital
       stock of the Borrower (excluding purchases of Borrower's capital stock
       made to prevent, reverse or mitigate the dilution caused by the issuance



       of shares of capital stock of Borrower after March 3, 2001 under and in
       connection with the Borrower's stock-based incentive compensation plans),
       or permit any Subsidiary which is not a Wholly Owned Subsidiary so to do,
       or permit any Subsidiary to purchase or acquire any shares of any class
       of capital stock of the Borrower, unless, immediately after giving effect
       to such action, (A) there shall not have occurred any Default or Event of
       Default that is continuing and (B) the aggregate amount of such payments
       and distributions from the Effective Date shall not exceed $7,500,000
       plus 25% of the cumulative consolidated net income of the Borrower since
       the Effective Date; and

              (ii)   Permit any Subsidiary to (x) issue a Guaranty or (y) enter
       into any agreement or instrument which by its terms restricts the ability
       of such Subsidiary to (A) declare or pay dividends or make similar
       distributions, (B) repay principal of, or pay any interest on, any
       Indebtedness owed to the Borrower or any Subsidiary described in Section
       7.02(d)(xi), (C) make payments of royalties, licensing fees and similar
       amounts to the Borrower or any other Subsidiary, (D) make loans or
       advances to the Borrower or any other Subsidiary or (E) permit the
       Borrower to engage in consolidated cash management consistent with its
       current practices.

              (g)    Stock of Subsidiaries. Sell or otherwise dispose of any
       shares of capital stock of any Subsidiary (except in connection with a
       merger, consolidation or sale of a Subsidiary permitted by Section
       7.02(a) or with the dissolution of any Subsidiary) or permit any
       Subsidiary to issue any additional shares of its capital stock except pro
       rata to its stockholders.

              (h)    Use of Proceeds. Use the proceeds of Loans or Letters of
       Credit other than (i) to repay Indebtedness outstanding at the Effective
       Time, (ii) for working capital requirements and (iii) for general
       corporate purposes, including Capital Expenditures and permitted
       Investments.

              (i)    Business Changes. Change the business or business purpose
       of the Borrower or of any Subsidiary, including making an acquisition or
       Investment that would have such effect, that could reasonably be expected
       to (i) result in a material change to the business activities or industry
       sector of the Borrower on a consolidated basis or (ii) individually or in
       the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect.

       Section 7.03  Financial Covenants. Until satisfaction in full of all the
obligations of the Borrower under the Credit Documents and termination of the
Commitments of the Lenders hereunder, the Borrower will not permit:

              (a)    Net Worth. Net Worth at any time to be less than the sum of
       (i) $130,000,000, (ii) 50% of the Borrower's consolidated net income for
       each fiscal quarter then completed (without deduction for any net losses)
       after March 2, 2002 and (iii) 75% of all contributions to the equity of
       the Borrower made after the Effective Date.
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              (b)    Interest Coverage Ratio. The ratio of (i) EBITDA to (ii)
       Interest Expense for the twelve-month period ending on the last day of
       any fiscal quarter to be less than 3.00.

              (c)    Debt/EBITDA Ratio. The Debt/EBITDA Ratio to exceed the
       ratio specified below:

                     Date                                        Ratio

         Through March 1, 2003                                   3.00

         After March 1, 2003 through February 28, 2004           2.75

         After February 28, 2004                                 2.50

                                  ARTICLE VIII

                                Events of Default



       Section 8.01  Events of Default. If one or more of the following events
(each, an "Event of Default") shall occur:

              (a)    The Borrower shall fail duly to pay any principal of any
       Loan or any L/C Obligations when due, whether at maturity, by notice of
       intention to prepay or otherwise; or

              (b)    The Borrower shall fail duly to pay any interest, fee or
       any other amount payable under the Credit Documents when due; or

              (c)    The Borrower shall fail duly to observe or perform any
       term, covenant, or agreement contained in Section 7.02 or Section 7.03;
       or

              (d)    The Borrower shall fail duly to observe or perform any
       other term, covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement, and such
       failure shall have continued unremedied for a period of 30 days after any
       Responsible Officer becomes aware of such failure; or

              (e)    Any representation or warranty made or deemed made by the
       Borrower in a Credit Document, or any statement or representation made in
       any certificate, report or opinion delivered by or on behalf of the
       Borrower in connection with a Credit Document, shall prove to have been
       false or misleading in any material respect when so made or deemed made;
       or

              (f)    The Borrower or any Subsidiary shall fail to pay any
       Indebtedness (other than obligations hereunder) in an amount of
       $5,000,000 or more when due or default shall occur under one or more
       indentures, agreements or other instruments under which any Indebtedness
       of the Borrower or any Subsidiary in an aggregate principal amount of
       $5,000,000 or more may be issued or created and such default shall
       continue for a period of time sufficient to permit the holder or
       beneficiary of such Indebtedness or a trustee
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       therefor to cause the acceleration of the maturity of any such
       Indebtedness or any mandatory unscheduled prepayment, purchase or funding
       thereof; or

              (g)    An involuntary case or other proceeding shall be commenced
       against the Borrower or any Subsidiary (other than a European Subsidiary
       existing as of the date hereof) seeking liquidation, reorganization or
       other relief with respect to it or its debts under any applicable
       bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar law or seeking the
       appointment of a custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee,
       sequestrator or similar official of it or any substantial part of its
       property, and such involuntary case or other proceeding shall remain
       undismissed and unstayed for a period of more than 60 days; or an order
       or decree approving or ordering any of the foregoing shall be entered and
       continued unstayed and in effect; or

              (h)    The Borrower or any Subsidiary (other than a European
       Subsidiary) shall commence a voluntary case or proceeding under any
       applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar law or any
       other case or proceeding to be adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent, or
       any of them shall consent to the entry of a decree or order for relief in
       respect of the Borrower or any such Subsidiary in an involuntary case or
       proceeding under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or
       other similar law or to the commencement of any bankruptcy or insolvency
       case or proceeding against any of them, or any of them shall file a
       petition or answer or consent seeking reorganization or relief under any
       applicable law, or any of them shall consent to the filing of such
       petition or to the appointment of or taking possession by a custodian,
       receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or similar official
       of the Borrower or any such Subsidiary or any substantial part of their
       respective property, or any of them shall make an assignment for the
       benefit of creditors, or any of them shall admit in writing its inability
       to pay its debts generally as they become due, or the Borrower or any
       such Subsidiary shall take corporate action in furtherance of any such
       action; or



              (i)    One or more judgments against the Borrower or any
       Subsidiary or attachments against its property, (a) which in the
       aggregate exceed $5,000,000, (other than (A) a judgment against a
       European Subsidiary or (B) a judgment obtained in Europe against a U.S.
       Subsidiary with respect to which judgment by a United States Federal or a
       state court has not been entered and relates to a project that has been
       undertaken as of the date hereof) or (b) the operation or result of
       which, individually or in the aggregate, could be to interfere materially
       and adversely with the conduct of the business of the Borrower and its
       Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, remain unpaid, unstayed on appeal,
       undischarged, unbonded, or undismissed for a period of more than 30 days;
       or

              (j)    The Borrower or any other member of the ERISA Group shall
       fail to pay when due an amount or amounts which it shall have become
       liable to pay to the PBGC or to a Plan or a Multiemployer Plan under
       Title IV of ERISA in excess of $200,000; or notice of intent to terminate
       a Plan or Plans having aggregate Unfunded Vested Liabilities in excess of
       $200,000 (collectively, a "Material Plan") shall be filed under Title IV
       of ERISA by the Borrower or any Subsidiary or any other member of the
       ERISA Group, any plan administrator or any combination of the foregoing;
       or the PBGC shall institute proceedings under Title IV of ERISA to
       terminate or to cause a trustee to be appointed to administer any
       Material Plan or a proceeding shall be instituted by a fiduciary of any
       Material Plan against the Borrower or any other member of the ERISA
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       Group to enforce Section 515 or 4219(c)(5) of ERISA and such proceeding
       shall not have been dismissed within thirty (30) days thereafter; or a
       condition shall exist by reason of which the PBGC would be entitled to
       obtain a decree adjudicating that any Material Plan must be terminated;
       or

              (k)    The Borrower or any Subsidiary, or any Person acting on
       behalf of the Borrower or a Subsidiary, or any Governmental Authority
       challenges the validity of any Credit Document or the Borrower's or a
       Subsidiary's obligations thereunder or any Credit Document ceases to be
       in full force and effect or is modified other than in accordance with the
       terms thereof and hereof; or

              (l)    Any court or governmental or regulatory authority shall
       have enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any statute, rule,
       regulation, judgment, decree, injunction or other order (whether
       temporary, preliminary or permanent) which is in effect and which
       prohibits, enjoins or otherwise restricts, in a manner that, individually
       or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to have a Material
       Adverse Effect on any of the transactions contemplated under the Credit
       Documents; or

              (m)    Any person or group of persons (within the meaning of
       Section 13 or 14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended)
       shall have acquired beneficial ownership (within the meaning of Rule
       13d-3 promulgated by the SEC under said Act), or shall have acquired
       control, directly or indirectly, of 20% or more of the outstanding shares
       of common stock of the Borrower; or, during any period of 24 consecutive
       calendar months, individuals who were directors of the Borrower on the
       first day of such period shall cease to constitute a majority of the
       board of directors of the Borrower;

then, and at any time during the continuance of such Event of Default, the
Required Lenders, may, by written notice to the Borrower, take either or both of
the following actions, at the same or different times: (i) terminate forthwith
the Commitments and (ii) declare any Loans and L/C Obligations then outstanding
to be due, whereupon the principal of the Loans and the L/C Obligations so
declared to be due, together with accrued interest thereon and any unpaid
amounts accrued under the Credit Documents, shall become forthwith due, without
presentment, demand, protest or any other notice of any kind (all of which are
hereby expressly waived by the Borrower); provided that, in the case of any
Event of Default described in Section 8.01(g) or (h) occurring with respect to
the Borrower, the Commitments shall automatically and immediately terminate and
the principal of all Loans and the L/C Obligations then outstanding, together



with accrued interest thereon and any unpaid amounts accrued under the Credit
Documents, shall automatically and immediately become due without presentment,
demand, protest or any other notice of any kind (all of which are hereby
expressly waived by the Borrower).

                                   ARTICLE IX

                            The Administrative Agent

       Section 9.01  The Agency. Each Lender appoints The Bank of New York as
its Administrative Agent hereunder and irrevocably authorizes the Administrative
Agent to take such action on its behalf and to exercise such powers hereunder
and thereunder as are specifically delegated to the Administrative Agent by the
terms hereof and thereof, together with such powers
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as are reasonably incidental thereto, including the exercise of powers delegated
to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders thereby, and the Administrative
Agent hereby accepts such appointment subject to the terms hereof. The
relationship between the Administrative Agent and the Lenders shall be that of
agent and principal only and nothing herein shall be construed to constitute the
Administrative Agent a trustee or fiduciary for any Lender nor to impose on the
Administrative Agent duties or obligations other than those expressly provided
for herein.

       Section 9.02  The Agent's Duties. (a) The Administrative Agent shall
promptly forward to each Lender copies, or notify each Lender as to the
contents, of all notices received from the Borrower pursuant to the terms of
this Agreement and, in the event that the Borrower fails to pay when due the
principal of or interest on any Loan, the Administrative Agent shall promptly
give notice thereof to the Lenders. As to any other matter not expressly
provided for herein, the Administrative Agent shall have no duty to act or
refrain from acting with respect to the Borrower, except upon the instructions
of the Required Lenders. The Administrative Agent shall not be bound by any
waiver, amendment, supplement, or modification of this Agreement or the other
Credit Documents which changes its duties hereunder and thereunder, unless it
shall have given its prior written consent thereto. The Administrative Agent
shall have no duty to ascertain or inquire as to the performance or observance
of any of the terms, conditions, covenants or agreements binding on the Borrower
pursuant to any Credit Document nor shall the Administrative Agent be deemed to
have knowledge of the occurrence of any Default or Event of Default (other than
a failure of the Borrower to pay when due the principal or interest on any
Loan), unless it shall have received written notice from the Borrower or a
Lender specifying such Default or Event of Default and stating that such notice
is a "Notice of Default".

       (b)    Anything in the Credit Documents notwithstanding, none of U.S.
Bank National Association, Harris Trust and Savings Bank nor JPMorgan Chase Bank
shall have any obligation hereunder other than as Lenders.

       Section 9.03  Limitation of Liabilities. Each of the Lenders and the
Borrower agree that (i) neither the Administrative Agent nor any of its officers
or employees shall be liable for any action taken or omitted to be taken by any
of them hereunder except for its or their own gross negligence or wilful
misconduct, (ii) neither the Administrative Agent nor any of its officers or
employees shall be liable for any action taken or omitted to be taken by any of
them in good faith in reliance upon the advice of counsel, independent public
accountants or other experts selected by the Administrative Agent, and (iii) the
Administrative Agent shall be entitled to rely upon any notice, consent,
certificate, statement or other document believed by it to be genuine and
correct and to have been signed and/or sent by the proper Persons.

       Section 9.04  The Administrative Agent as a Lender. The Administrative
Agent may, without any liability to account, maintain deposits or credit
balances for, invest in, lend money to and generally engage in any kind of
banking business with the Borrower or any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the
Borrower as if it were any other borrower and without any duty to account
therefor to the other Lenders.

       Section 9.05  Lender Credit Decision. Neither the Administrative Agent,
nor any of its Affiliates, officers or employees has any responsibility for,
gives any guaranty in respect of, nor makes any representation to the Lenders as



to, (i) the condition, financial or otherwise, of the Borrower or any Subsidiary
thereof or the truth of any representation or warranty given or made in this
Agreement, or in connection herewith or therewith or (ii) the validity,
execution,
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sufficiency, effectiveness, construction, adequacy, enforceability or value of
this Agreement or any other document or instrument related hereto or thereto.
Except as specifically provided herein, neither the Administrative Agent nor any
of its Affiliates, officers or employees shall have any duty or responsibility,
either initially or on a continuing basis, to provide any Lender with any credit
or other information with respect to the operations, business, property,
condition or creditworthiness of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries,
whether such information comes into the Administrative Agent's possession on or
before the date hereof or at any time thereafter. Each Lender acknowledges that
(i) it has, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent or
any other Lender, based on such documents and information as it has deemed
appropriate, made its own credit analysis and decision to enter into this
Agreement and (ii) all information reviewed by it in its credit analysis or
otherwise in connection herewith (including information relating to the
Administrative Agent) has been provided solely by or on behalf of the Borrower,
and the Administrative Agent has no responsibility for such information. Each
Lender also acknowledges that it will independently and without reliance upon
the Administrative Agent or any other Lender, based on such documents and
information as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own
credit decisions in taking or not taking action under any Credit Document.

       Section 9.06  Indemnification. (a) Each Lender agrees to indemnify the
Administrative Agent, to the extent not reimbursed by the Borrower, ratably in
proportion to its Commitment (as of the time of the incurrence of the liability
being indemnified against), from and against any and all liabilities,
obligations, losses, claims, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits,
costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever which may be
imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against the Administrative Agent in any way
relating to or arising out of any Credit Document, or any action taken or
omitted to be taken by the Administrative Agent hereunder or thereunder;
provided that no Lender shall be liable for any portion of such liabilities,
obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs,
expenses or disbursements resulting from the gross negligence or wilful
misconduct of the Administrative Agent or any of its officers or employees.
Without limiting the foregoing, each Lender agrees to reimburse the
Administrative Agent promptly upon demand for its ratable share of any
out-of-pocket expenses (including fees and disbursements of counsel) incurred by
the Administrative Agent in such capacity in connection with the preparation,
execution or enforcement of, or legal advice in respect of rights or
responsibilities under, any Credit Document or any amendments or supplements
hereto or thereto, to the extent that the Administrative Agent is not reimbursed
for such expenses by the Borrower.

       (b)    Except for action expressly required of the Administrative Agent
hereunder, the Administrative Agent shall in all cases be fully justified in
failing or refusing to act hereunder unless it shall receive further assurances
to its satisfaction from the Lenders of their indemnification obligations under
this Section 9.06 hereof against any and all liability and expense that may be
incurred by it by reason of taking or continuing to take any such action.

       (c)    The provisions of this Section 9.06, shall remain operative and in
full force and effect regardless of the expiration of the term of this
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, the
repayment of any of the Loans, the reduction or termination of any Commitments,
the invalidity or unenforceability of any term or provision of any Credit
Document, or any investigation made by or on behalf of the Lenders.
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       Section 9.07  Successor Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent
may resign at any time by giving written notice thereof to the Lenders and the
Borrower. Upon any such resignation or removal, the Required Lenders with the
consent of the Borrower (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld) shall
have the right to appoint a successor Administrative Agent. If no successor



Administrative Agent shall have been so appointed by the Required Lenders and
shall have accepted such appointment within 30 days after the resigning
Administrative Agent's giving of notice of resignation, the resigning
Administrative Agent may, on behalf of the Lenders, appoint a successor
Administrative Agent, which shall be a commercial bank organized or licensed
under the laws of the United States of America or of any State thereof and
having a combined capital and surplus of at least $500,000,000. Upon the
acceptance of any appointment as Administrative Agent hereunder by a successor
Administrative Agent, such successor Administrative Agent shall thereupon
succeed to and become vested with all the rights, powers, privileges and duties
of the resigned Administrative Agent, and the resigned Administrative Agent
shall be discharged from its duties and obligations under this Agreement. After
any Administrative Agent's resignation as Administrative Agent, the provisions
of this Article IX shall inure to its benefit as to any actions taken or omitted
to be taken by it while it was Administrative Agent under this Agreement.

                                   ARTICLE X

                          Evidence of Loans; Transfers

       Section 10.01 Evidence of Loans. (a) Each Lender shall maintain, in
accordance with its customary and usual practice, accounts evidencing the
indebtedness of the Borrower to such Lender resulting from each Loan made by
such Lender from time to time, including the amounts of principal and interest
payable and paid to such Lender in respect of Loans. Each Loan made under this
Agreement may be evidenced by one or more Notes, in substantially the form of
Exhibit C-1 or Exhibit C-2, as applicable.

       (b)    The Administrative Agent shall maintain, in accordance with its
customary and usual practice, (i) a copy of each Assignment and Acceptance
delivered to it and (ii) written or electronic records for the recordation of
(A) the amount of each Lender's Commitments, (B) the amount of each Loan,
whether such Loan is a Loan and the interest rate and the Interest Period
applicable thereto, (C) the amount of any principal or interest due and payable
or to become due and payable from the Borrower to each Lender hereunder, (D) the
amount of any payments received by the Administrative Agent hereunder from the
Borrower and each Lender's share thereof and (E) with respect to each Assignment
and Acceptance delivered to the Administrative Agent, the name and address of
the Assignee, the amount of the Assignee's Commitment and the principal amount
of each Loan owing to such Assignee. The Administrative Agent's written records
described above shall be available for inspection during ordinary business hours
by the Borrower or any Lender or Assignee from time to time upon reasonable
prior notice to the Administrative Agent.

       (c)    The entries made in the Administrative Agent's written or
electronic records and the foregoing accounts shall be prima facie evidence of
the existence and amounts of the indebtedness of the Borrower therein recorded;
provided, however, that the failure of any Lender or the Administrative Agent to
maintain any such account or such records, as applicable, or any error therein,
shall not in any manner affect the validity or enforceability of any obligation
of the
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Borrower to repay any Loan actually made by such Lender in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement. The entries in such records relating to assignments
shall be conclusive, in the absence of manifest error, and the Borrower, the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders may treat each Person whose name is
recorded in such records as the owner of the Loans recorded therein for all
purposes of this Agreement.

       (d)    The Borrower's obligations to repay any Loan assigned to a Federal
Reserve Bank by a Lender shall, to the extent requested by such Lender in order
to effect such assignment, be evidenced by one or more Notes, in substantially
the form of Exhibit C-1 or Exhibit C-2, as applicable. Such Note shall be in the
principal amount of the Loan or Loans so assigned and stated to mature on the
applicable Commitment Termination Date and bear interest from its date until
paid in full on the principal amount of the Loan outstanding thereunder payable
at the rates and in the manner provided herein.

       Section 10.02 Participations. Any Lender may at any time grant to one or
more financial institutions or other entity (each a "Participant") participating
interests in its Commitment or any or all of its Loans. In the event of any such



grant by a Lender of a participating interest to a Participant, whether or not
upon notice to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent, such Lender shall
remain responsible for the performance of its obligations hereunder, and, except
to the extent such participating interest has been granted pursuant to Section
4.02(e), the Borrower and the Administrative Agent shall continue to deal solely
and directly with such Lender in connection with such Lender's rights and
obligations under this Agreement. Any agreement pursuant to which any Lender may
grant such a participating interest shall provide that such Lender shall retain
the sole right and responsibility to enforce the obligations of the Borrower
hereunder including the right to approve any amendment, modification or waiver
of any provision of this Agreement; provided that such participation agreement
may provide that such Lender will not agree to any modification, amendment or
waiver of this Agreement described in clauses (i) through (viii), inclusive, of
Section 11.05 without the consent of the Participant. An assignment or other
transfer which is not permitted by Section 10.03 shall be given effect for
purposes of this Agreement only to the extent of a participating interest
granted in accordance with this Section 10.02.

       Section 10.03 Assignments. (a) Any Lender may at any time assign to one
or more financial institutions (each an "Assignee") all, or a proportionate part
of all, of its rights and obligations under this Agreement, and such Assignee
shall assume such rights and obligations, pursuant to an instrument, in
substantially the form of Exhibit F (an "Assignment and Acceptance"), executed
by such Assignee and such transferor Lender, with (and subject to) the signed
consent of the Borrower, the L/C Issuer and the Administrative Agent (which
consents shall not be unreasonably withheld, provided that it shall not be
unreasonable to withhold consent if such assignment would result in there being
more than twenty Lenders); provided that (i) the foregoing consent requirement
(of all the Borrower, L/C Issuer and the Administrative Agent) shall not be
applicable in the case of an assignment or other transfer, pledge or disposition
by any Lender to a Federal Reserve Bank, (ii) the aforementioned consent of the
Borrower shall not be required if there shall have occurred an Event of Default
that is continuing, or if an assignment or other transfer, pledge or disposition
by a Lender is to an Eligible Affiliate of such Lender or to another existing
Lender, (iii) a Lender may only make an assignment or other transfer of its
Loans or Commitment in the minimum amount of $5,000,000 or integral multiples of
$500,000 in excess thereof unless such Lender's Loans or Commitment is less than
$5,000,000, in which case such Lender may only make an assignment or other
transfer of all of its Loans or Commitment
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and (iv) the transferor Lender shall pay an assignment fee of $3,500 to the
Administrative Agent for each Assignee under such assignment or other transfer.

       (b)    No Assignee of any Lender's rights shall be entitled to receive
any greater payment under Section 4.03 or 4.04 than such Lender would have been
entitled to receive with respect to the rights transferred, unless such transfer
is made with the Borrower's prior written consent or by reason of the provisions
of Section 4.04(c) requiring such Lender to designate a different Applicable
Lending Office under certain circumstances or at a time when the circumstances
giving rise to such payment did not exist.

       Section 10.04 Certain Pledges. Notwithstanding any other provision in
this Agreement, any Lender may at any time create a security interest in, or
pledge, all or any portion of its rights under this Agreement and any Note held
by it in favor of any Federal Reserve Bank in accordance with Federal Reserve
Board Regulation A (or any successor provisions) or U.S. Treasury Regulation 31
C.F.R. ss. 203.24 (or any successor provision), and such Federal Reserve Bank
may enforce such pledge or security interest in any manner permitted under
applicable law.

                                   ARTICLE XI

                                  Miscellaneous

       Section 11.01 APPLICABLE LAW. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK APPLICABLE TO
CONTRACTS MADE AND TO BE PERFORMED ENTIRELY WITHIN SUCH STATE.

       Section 11.02 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. THE BORROWER, THE ADMINISTRATIVE
AGENT AND THE LENDERS EACH HEREBY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY JUDICIAL
PROCEEDING INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY MATTER (WHETHER SOUNDING IN



TORT, CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE) IN ANY WAY ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO, OR CONNECTED
WITH THIS AGREEMENT, THE NOTES OR THE RELATIONSHIPS ESTABLISHED HEREUNDER.

       Section 11.03 Jurisdiction and Venue; Service of Process. (a) The
Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders each hereby irrevocably
submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of any state or federal court in the
Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York for the purpose of any suit, action,
proceeding or judgment relating to or arising out of any Credit Document and to
the laying of venue in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York. The
Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders each hereby irrevocably
waives, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any objection to the
laying of the venue of any such suit, action or proceeding brought in the
aforesaid courts and hereby irrevocably waives any claim that any such suit,
action or proceeding brought in any such court has been brought in an
inconvenient forum.

       (b)    The Borrower agrees that service of process in any such action or
proceeding may be effected by mailing a copy thereof by registered or certified
mail (or any substantially similar form of mail), postage prepaid, to the
Borrower at its address set forth in Section 11.07(a) or at such other address
of which the Administrative Agent shall have been notified pursuant
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thereto. The Borrower further agrees that nothing herein shall affect the right
to effect service of process in any other manner permitted by law or shall limit
the right to sue in any other jurisdiction; and

     (c) The Borrower waives, to the maximum extent not prohibited by law, any
right it may have to claim or recover in any legal action or proceeding referred
to in this subsection any special, exemplary, punitive or consequential damages.

     Section 11.04 Set-off. The Borrower hereby authorizes each Lender
(including each Lender in its capacity as a purchaser of a participation
interest pursuant to Section 4.02(e)), upon the occurrence of an Event of
Default and at any time and from time to time during the continuance thereof, to
the fullest extent permitted by law, to set-off and apply any and all deposits
(whether general or special, time or demand, provisional or final and in
whatever currency) at any time held, and other Indebtedness at any time owing,
by such Lender to or for the credit or the account of the Borrower against any
of the obligations of the Borrower, now or hereafter existing under any Credit
Document, held by such Lender, irrespective of whether such Lender shall have
made any demand under this Agreement and although such obligations may be
unmatured. The rights of each Lender under this Section 11.04 are in addition to
other rights and remedies (including other rights of set-off) which such Lender
may have. Any Lender exercising its rights under this Section 11.04 shall give
notice thereof to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent concurrently with or
prior to the exercise of such rights; provided that failure to give such notice
shall not affect the validity of such exercise.

     Section 11.05 Amendments and Waivers. (a) Any provision of the Credit
Documents may be amended, modified, supplemented or waived, but only by a
written amendment or supplement, or written waiver, signed by the Borrower and
either the Required Lenders (and, if the rights or duties of the Administrative
Agent are affected thereby, by the Administrative Agent) or the Administrative
Agent with the consent of the Required Lenders; provided, however, that no such
amendment, modification, or waiver shall, unless signed by all the Lenders or by
the Administrative Agent with the consent of all the Lenders, (i) increase or
decrease (other than a pro rata decrease) the Commitment of any Lender or
subject any Lender to any additional obligation, (ii) reduce the principal of or
rate of interest on any Loan or any fees hereunder, (iii) postpone any scheduled
payment of principal of or interest on any Loan or any fees hereunder, (iv)
postpone any reduction or termination of any Commitment or any mandatory
prepayment related thereto, (v) release the Subsidiary Guaranty or any of the
Guarantors under the Subsidiary Guaranty (other than releases of U.S.
Subsidiaries that are otherwise permitted to be sold or dissolved pursuant to
this Agreement, which release shall be granted by the Administrative Agent upon
Borrower's request) or otherwise amend, modify, supplement or waive the
provisions of the Subsidiary Guaranty, (vi) change the definition of "Required
Lenders," (vii) extend the Commitment Termination Date beyond April 25, 2006,
(viii) amend, waive, or modify any of the conditions precedent to the Effective
Time contained in Section 6.01, or (ix) amend, modify, supplement or waive the
provisions of this Section 11.05.



     (b) Except to the extent expressly set forth therein, any waiver shall be
effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which
such waiver is given.

     Section 11.06 Cumulative Rights; No Waiver. Each and every right granted to
the Administrative Agent, the L/C Issuer and the Lenders hereunder or under any
other document delivered in connection herewith, or allowed them by law or
equity, shall be cumulative and not
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exclusive and may be exercised from time to time. No failure on the part of the
Administrative Agent, the L/C Issuer or any Lender to exercise, and no delay in
exercising, any right will operate as a waiver thereof, nor will any single or
partial exercise by the Administrative Agent, the L/C Issuer or any Lender of
any right preclude any other or future exercise thereof or the exercise of any
other right.

     Section 11.07 Notices. (a) Any communication, demand or notice to be given
hereunder will be duly given when delivered in writing or by telecopy to a party
at its address as indicated below or such other address as such party may
specify in a notice to each other party hereto. A communication, demand or
notice given pursuant to this Section 11.07 shall be addressed:

     If to the Borrower, at

               Apogee Enterprises, Inc.
               7900 Xerxes Avenue South, Suite 1800
               Minneapolis, Minnesota 55431-1159

               Telecopy:    (612) 896-2400

               Attention:   Mr. Gary Johnson
                            Vice President and Treasurer

     If to the Administrative Agent, at

               The Bank of New York
               One Wall Street, 18th Floor
               New York, New York 10286

               Telecopy:    (212) 635-6365 or 6366

               Attention:   Agency Function Administration

               with a copy to:

               John-Paul Marotta
               The Bank of New York
               One Wall Street, 19th Floor
               New York, New York 10286
               Telecopy:    (212) 635-1208
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     If to the L/C Issuer, at

               The Bank of New York
               1 Hudson Square, 9th Floor
               75 Varick Street
               New York, New  York, 10013
               Telecopy:   (212) 905-8772

               Attention:  Mr. Sal Calvera
                           Letter of Credit Department

               with a copy to:

               John-Paul Marotta
               The Bank of New York



               One Wall Street, 19th Floor
               New York, New York 10286
               Telecopy:   (212) 635-1208

     If to any Lender (including the Swing Line Lender), at its address
indicated on Schedule I hereto, or at such other address as may be designated by
such Lender in an Administrative Questionnaire or other appropriate writing,
delivered to the Administrative Agent and the Borrower.

     This Section 11.07 shall not apply to notices referred to in Article II of
this Agreement, except to the extent set forth therein.

     (b) Unless otherwise provided to the contrary herein, any notice which is
required to be given in writing pursuant to the terms of this Agreement may be
given by telecopy.

     Section 11.08 Separate Debts. The amounts payable by the Borrower at any
time under the Credit Documents to each Lender shall be a separate and
independent debt and each Lender shall be entitled to protect and enforce its
rights in accordance with the Credit Documents, and it shall not be necessary
for any other Lender or the Administrative Agent to consent to, or be joined as
an additional party in, any proceedings for such purposes.

     Section 11.09 Certain Acknowledgments. The Borrower hereby confirms and
acknowledges that (a) neither the Administrative Agent, the L/C Issuer nor any
Lender has any fiduciary or similar relationship to the Borrower and that the
relationship established by the Credit Documents between the Administrative
Agent, the L/C Issuer and the Lenders, on the one hand, and the Borrower, on the
other hand, is solely that of creditors and debtor and (b) that no joint venture
exists among the Lender or among the Borrower and the Lenders.

     Section 11.10 Separability. In case any one or more of the provisions
contained in any Credit Document shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in
any respect under any law, the validity, legality and enforceability of the
remaining provisions contained herein or in any other Credit Document shall not
in any way be affected or impaired thereby.
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     Section 11.11 Parties in Interest. This Agreement shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the Borrower and the Lenders and their respective
successors and assigns, except that the Borrower may not assign any of its
rights hereunder without the prior written consent of all of the Lenders, and
any purported assignment by the Borrower without such consent shall be void.

     Section 11.12 Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in
any number of counterparts and by the different parties hereto on separate
counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original,
but all the counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument.

     Section 11.13 Confidentiality. Each Lender and the Administrative Agent
agrees (on behalf of itself and each of its affiliates, directors, officers,
employees and representatives) to keep confidential, in accordance with their
customary procedures for handling confidential information of this nature and in
accordance with safe and sound banking practices, and to refrain from using,
other than in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated
hereby, any Confidential Information; provided that nothing herein shall limit
the disclosure of any such information (a) to the extent required by statute,
rule, regulation, judicial process or as requested by any Governmental Authority
or bank examiner, (b) to counsel, auditors, accountants or other advisors for
any of the Lenders or the Administrative Agent, provided that such Person shall
agree to keep such information confidential in accordance with this Section
11.13, (c) to the Administrative Agent or any other Lender, (c) in connection
with any litigation relating to enforcement of the Credit Documents, (d) to any
Assignee or Participant (or prospective Assignee or Participant) so long as such
Assignee or Participant (or prospective Assignee or Participant) first executes
and delivers to the respective Lender a confidentiality agreement with
provisions substantially similar to the confidentiality provisions of this
Agreement, (e) by a Lender to any Affiliate of such Lender involved in the
transactions under, assignments or participations under, or the administration
of, this credit facility, provided that such Affiliate shall agree to keep such
information confidential in accordance with this Section 11.13. Unless
specifically prohibited by applicable law or court order, each Lender shall



notify the Borrower of any request received by it from any governmental agency
or self-regulatory organization or representative thereof (other than any such
request in connection with an examination of such Lender by a governmental
agency or self-regulatory organization with supervisory jurisdiction over it)
for disclosure of any such Confidential Information prior to disclosure of such
information so that the Borrower may seek an appropriate protective order or
make a public disclosure of such information if Borrower determines in its sole
discretion that such disclosure may be required by SEC Regulation FD.
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     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be
duly executed as of the date first above written.

                                          APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                          By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                              ----------------------------------
                                              Name:    Gary R. Johnson
                                              Title:   Vice-President, Treasurer

                                          THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as
                                          Administrative Agent, L/C Issuer
                                          and Swing Line Lender

                                          By: /s/ Joseph F. Murphy
                                              ----------------------------------
                                              Name:    Joseph F. Murphy
                                              Title:   Vice President
                                                       Central Division Head

                                          THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as a Lender

                                          By: /s/ Joseph F. Murphy
                                              ----------------------------------
                                              Name:    Joseph F. Murphy
                                              Title:   Vice President
                                                       Central Division Head

                                          U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as
                                              Co-Syndication Agent,
                                              Co-Documentation Agent and as a
                                              Lender

                                          By: /s/ Sam S. Pepper, Jr.
                                              ----------------------------------
                                              Name:    Sam S. Pepper, Jr.
                                              Title:   Vice President

                                      -65-

                                          HARRIS TRUST AND SAVINGS BANK, as
                                              Co-Syndication Agent,
                                              Co-Documentation Agent and as a
                                              Lender

                                          By: /s/ Andrew T. Claar
                                              ----------------------------------
                                              Name:    Andrew T. Claar
                                              Title:   Vice President

                                          JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, as Co-Syndication
                                              Agent, Co-Documentation Agent and
                                              as a Lender



                                          By: /s/ Dolores A. Walsh
                                              ----------------------------------
                                              Name:    Dolores A. Walsh
                                              Title:   Vice President

                                          COMERICA BANK, as a Lender

                                          By: /s/ Timothy O'Rourke
                                              ----------------------------------
                                              Name:    Timothy O'Rourke
                                              Title:   Vice President

                                          NATIONAL CITY BANK OF MICHIGAN/
                                          ILLINOIS, as a Lender

                                          By: /s/ James M. Kershner
                                              ----------------------------------
                                              Name:    James M. Kershner
                                              Title:   Vice President

                                          WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL
                                              ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

                                          By: /s/ Molly S. Van Metre
                                              ----------------------------------
                                              Name:    Molly S. Van Metre
                                              Title:   Vice President and Senior
                                                       Banker

                                          By: /s/ James Heinz
                                              ----------------------------------
                                              Name:    James Heinz
                                              Title:   Senior Vice President
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                                                                      Schedule I

                             Lenders and Commitments

                                                                            
                                          Commitment as of            Address for Notices and Applicable
Lender                                    the Effective Date          Lending Office

The Bank of New York                      $ 25,000,000                One Wall Street, 19th Floor
                                                                      New York, NY 10286
                                                                      Attention: John-Paul Marotta
                                                                      Telecopy: 212-635-1208

U.S. Bank National Association            $ 20,000,000                225 South Sixth Street
                                                                      Minneapolis, MN 55402-4302
                                                                      Attention: Sam Pepper
                                                                      Telecopy: 612-973-0832

Harris Trust and Savings Bank             $ 20,000,000                111 West Monroe
                                                                      Chicago, IL 60603
                                                                      Attention: Andrew Claar
                                                                      Telecopy: 312-293-5040

JPMorgan Chase Bank                       $ 20,000,000                52 Broadway
                                                                      New York, NY 10004
                                                                      Attention: Dolores Walsh
                                                                      Telecopy: 212-701-4081

Comerica Bank                             $ 15,000,000                500 Woodward Avenue
                                                                      MC 2169
                                                                      Detroit, MI 48226
                                                                      Attention: Timothy O'Rourke
                                                                      Telecopy: 313-222-9516

National City Bank of Michigan/Illinois   $ 12,500,000                1900 East Ninth Street
                                                                      Cleveland, OH 44114-3484
                                                                      Attention: Kathleen Fisher
                                                                      Telecopy: 630-954-6450



Wells Fargo Bank, National Association    $ 12,500,000                Wells Fargo Center
                                                                      6th and Marquette
                                                                      Minneapolis, MN 55479
                                                                      Attention: Molly Van Metre
                                                                      Telecopy: 612-667-2276

                                          __________________

Total Commitment                           $125,000,000

                                                               Schedule 1.01(c)

                          Outstanding Letters of Credit
                             under Existing Facility

#39680, in the face amount of $5,562,740,

#43295, in the face amount of $94,350.98,

#43296, in the face amount of $76,601.70,

#43450, in the face amount of $1,030,137.00,

#43520, in the face amount of $1,030,137.00,

#43714, in the face amount of $675,500.00,

#44403, in the face amount of $100,000.00,

#44404, in the face amount of $250,000.00,

#44405, in the face amount of $100,000.00,

#144254, in the face amount of $53,781.00,

#144311, in the face amount of $51,067.06, and

#44414, in the face amount of $1,030,137.00.

                                                               Schedule 5.01(b)

                          Subsidiaries of the Borrower

                                                               Schedule 5.01(f)

                               Certain Litigation

                                                           Schedule 5.01(h)(ii)

                               Financial Condition

None.

                                                               Schedule 7.02(b)

                                 Permitted Liens

None.

                                                               Schedule 7.02(c)



                              Existing Indebtedness

                                                                    Exhibit A-1

                        Form of Revolving Credit Request

                                                                         [Date]
The Bank of New York
One Wall Street, 18th Floor
New York, New York 10286

Attention:  Agency Function Administration

                  Borrowing Request for Revolving Credit Loans

Ladies and Gentlemen:

         Reference is made to the Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2002
(as amended, modified or supplemented from time to time, the "Credit
Agreement"), among Apogee Enterprises, Inc. (the "Borrower"), the lenders from
time to time parties thereto and The Bank of New York, as letter of credit
issuer, administrative agent and swing line lender. Capitalized terms used
herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such
terms in the Credit Agreement.

         The Borrower hereby gives you notice, pursuant to Section 2.01(b) of
the Credit Agreement, that it requests Revolving Credit Loans, and in that
connection sets forth below the terms on which such Revolving Credit Loans are
requested to be made:

    (A)  Borrowing Date/1//                            _________________________

    (B)  Aggregate Principal Amount/2//                $
                                                       -------------------------
    (C)  Interest Rate Basis                           [ABR] [Eurodollar] Loan
                                                       -------------------------
    (D)  Interest Period and the last day thereof/3//  _________________________

         The Borrower also represents and warrants that after this borrowing is
made that the sum of total Revolving Credit Loans, L/C Obligations and Swing
Line Loans will not exceed the Total Commitment amount.

                                                     Very truly yours,

                                                     APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                                     By:__________________
                                                        Title:

_________________________________
/1//   Must be a Business Day.

/2//   Must be to $5,000,000 or an integral multiple of $1,000,000 in excess
       thereof,in the case of Eurodollar Loans; or $1,000,000 or an integral
       multiple of $500,000 in excess thereof, in the case of ABR Loans.

/3//   One, two, three or six months in the case of Eurodollar Loans. Not
       applicable to ABR Loans.

                                                                  Exhibit A-2

                           Form of Swing Line Request

                                                                       [Date]

The Bank of New York
One Wall Street, 18th Floor
New York, New York 10286

Attention:  Agency Function Administration



                     Borrowing Request for a Swing Line Loan

Ladies and Gentlemen:

         Reference is made to the Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2002
(as amended, modified or supplemented from time to time, the "Credit
Agreement"), among Apogee Enterprises, Inc. (the "Borrower"), the lenders from
time to time parties thereto and The Bank of New York, as letter of credit
issuer, administrative agent and swing line lender. Capitalized terms used
herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such
terms in the Credit Agreement.

         The Borrower hereby irrevocably gives you notice, pursuant to Section
2.02(b) of the Credit Agreement, that it requests a Swing Line Loan, and in that
connection sets forth below the terms on which such a Swing Line Loan is
requested to be made:

         (A)    Borrowing Date/1//                  ________________________

         (B)    Maturity date/2//                   ________________________

         (C)    Aggregate Principal Amount/3//      $
                                                    ------------------------
         The Borrower also represents and warrants that after this borrowing is
made that the sum of total Revolving Credit Loans, L/C Obligations and Swing
Line Loans will not exceed the Total Commitment amount. In addition, the
Borrower represents and warrants that, after this borrowing, not more that $5
million in aggregate Swing Line Loans are outstanding.

                                                  Very truly yours,

                                                  APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                                  By:__________________
                                                     Title:

____________________________
 /1/   Must be a Business Day.

 /2/   May not be later than the seventh calendar day following the Borrowing
       Date

 /3/   Must be equal to $250,000 or an integral multiple of $100,000 in excess
       thereof.

                                                                   Exhibit B

                     Form of Continuation/Conversion Request

                                                                       [Date]

The Bank of New York
One Wall Street, 18th Floor
New York, New York 10286

Attention: Agency Function Administration

                         Continuation/Conversion Request

Ladies and Gentlemen:

         Reference is made to the Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2002
(as amended, modified or supplemented from time to time, the "Credit
Agreement"), among Apogee Enterprises, Inc. (the "Borrower"), the lenders from
time to time parties thereto and The Bank of New York, as letter of credit
issuer, administrative agent and swing line lender. Capitalized terms used
herein but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such
terms in the Credit Agreement.

     The Borrower hereby requests, pursuant to Section 3.01(b) of the Credit
Agreement, that on __________, _____:



                  (1) $___,000,000 of the presently outstanding principal amount
         of Revolving Credit Loans originally made on ___________, ____ [and
         $_________ of the presently outstanding principal amount of the
         Revolving Credit Loans originally made on ________, ____],

                  (2) presently being maintained as [ABR] [Eurodollar] Loans,

                  (3) be [converted into] [continued as],

                  (4) [Eurodollar Loans having an Interest Period of
         [one][two][three][six] months] [ABR Loans].

                                                        Very truly yours,

                                                        APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                                        By:__________________
                                                           Title:

                                                                     Exhibit C-1

                          Form of Revolving Credit Note

                                 PROMISSORY NOTE

[Principal Amount]                                                        [Date]

         APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC., a Minnesota corporation (the "Borrower"), for
value received, promises to pay to the order of [LENDER] (the "Lender"), on the
Commitment Termination Date (as defined in the Credit Agreement referred to
below), the principal sum of [PRINCIPAL AMOUNT IN DOLLARS] or, if less, the
aggregate principal amount of the Loans made by the Lender to the Borrower
pursuant to Section 2.01 of that certain Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25,
2002 (as amended, modified or supplemented from time to time, the "Credit
Agreement"), among the Borrower, the lenders from time to time parties thereto
and The Bank of New York, as letter of credit issuer, administrative agent and
swing line lender.

         The Borrower also promises to pay interest on the unpaid principal
amount hereof from time to time outstanding, from the date hereof until the date
of repayment, at the rate or rates per annum and on the date or dates specified
in the Credit Agreement.

         Payments of both principal and interest are to be made in lawful money
of the United States of America in funds immediately available to the Lender at
its office or offices designated in accordance with the Credit Agreement.

         All parties hereto, whether as makers, endorsers, or otherwise,
severally waive diligence, presentment, demand, protest and notice of any kind
whatsoever. The failure or forbearance by the holder to exercise any of its
rights hereunder in any particular instance shall in no event constitute a
waiver thereof.

         All borrowings evidenced by this note ("Note") and all payments and
prepayments of the principal hereof and interest hereon and the respective dates
thereof shall be endorsed by the holder of this Note on the schedule attached
hereto and made a part hereof, or on a continuation thereof which shall be
attached hereto and made a part hereof, or shall be recorded by the holder of
this Note in its internal records; provided, however, that any failure of the
holder of this Note to make such a notation or any error in such notation shall
in no manner affect the validity or enforceability of the obligation of the
Borrower to make payments of principal and interest in accordance with the terms
of this Note and the Credit Agreement.

         This Note is one of the Revolving Credit Notes referred to in the
Credit Agreement, which, among other things, contains provisions for the
acceleration of the maturity hereof upon the happening of certain events, for
optional prepayment of the principal hereof prior to the maturity thereof and
for the amendment or waiver of certain provisions of the Credit Agreement and/or
this Note, all upon the terms and conditions therein specified. Capitalized
terms used and not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed thereto
in the Credit Agreement.



         THIS NOTE HAS BEEN DELIVERED IN NEW YORK, NEW YORK AND SHALL BE DEEMED
TO BE A CONTRACT MADE UNDER, GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

         This Note is not negotiable and interests herein may be assigned only
upon the terms and conditions specified in the Credit Agreement.

                                            APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                            By:________________________________
                                                  Title:

                  REVOLVING CREDIT LOANS AND PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                      Amount of Revolving                                Amount of Principal                  Amount of Unpaid
                       Credit Loans Made                                        Repaid                        Principal Balance
                 ------------------------------                     -------------------------------      ---------------------------

                                    Euro             Interest                            Euro                              Euro
      Date            ABR          dollar           Period (if           ABR            dollar               ABR          dollar
                     Loan           Loan            applicable)          Loan            Loan                Loan          Loan
                                                                                                                                     
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

      Date                                  Notation
                        Total               Made By
                                                  
-----------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------

                                                                     Exhibit C-2

                             Form of Swing Line Note



                                 PROMISSORY NOTE

$5,000,000                                                                [Date]

         APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC., a Minnesota corporation (the "Borrower"), for
value received, promises to pay to the order of The Bank of New York (the
"Lender") the principal sum of FIVE MILLION DOLLARS ($5,000,000) or, if less,
the aggregate principal amount of all Swing Line Loans made by the Lender to the
Borrower pursuant to Section 2.02 of that certain Credit Agreement, dated as of
April 25, 2002 (as amended, modified or supplemented from time to time, the
"Credit Agreement"), among the Borrower, the lenders from time to time parties
thereto and The Bank of New York, as letter of credit issuer, administrative
agent and swing line lender. This note ("Note") shall mature in the manner set
forth in the Credit Agreement.

         The Borrower also promises to pay interest on the unpaid principal
amount hereof from time to time outstanding, from the date hereof until the date
of repayment, at the rate or rates per annum and on the date or dates specified
in the Credit Agreement.

         Payments of both principal and interest are to be made in lawful money
of the United States of America in funds immediately available to the Lender at
its office or offices designated in accordance with the Credit Agreement.

         All parties hereto, whether as makers, endorsers, or otherwise,
severally waive diligence, presentment, demand, protest and notice of any kind
whatsoever. The failure or forbearance by the holder to exercise any of its
rights hereunder in any particular instance shall in no event constitute a
waiver thereof.

         All borrowings evidenced by this Note and all payments and prepayments
of the principal hereof and interest hereon and the respective dates thereof
shall be endorsed by the holder of this Note on the schedule attached hereto and
made a part hereof, or on a continuation thereof which shall be attached hereto
and made a part hereof, or shall be recorded by the holder of this Note in its
internal records; provided, however, that any failure of the holder of this Note
to make such a notation or any error in such notation shall in no manner affect
the validity or enforceability of the obligation of the Borrower to make
payments of principal and interest in accordance with the terms of this Note and
the Credit Agreement.

         This Note is the Swing Line Note referred to in the Credit Agreement,
which, among other things, contains provisions for the acceleration of the
maturity hereof upon the happening of certain events, for optional prepayment of
the principal hereof prior to the maturity thereof and for the amendment or
waiver of certain provisions of the Credit Agreement and/or this Note, all upon
the terms and conditions therein specified. Capitalized terms used and not
otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Credit
Agreement.

         THIS NOTE HAS BEEN DELIVERED IN NEW YORK, NEW YORK AND SHALL BE DEEMED
TO BE A CONTRACT MADE UNDER, GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

         This Note is not negotiable and interests herein may be assigned only
upon the terms and conditions specified in the Credit Agreement.

                                           APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                           By:________________________________
                                                 Title:

                     SWING LINE LOANS AND PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                  LOAN                                                                           UNPAID
    DATE OF     MATURITY                             AMOUNT OF              AMOUNT OF           PRINCIPAL         NAME OF PERSON
     LOAN         DATE       AMOUNT OF LOAN        PRINCIPAL PAID         INTEREST PAID          BALANCE          MAKING NOTATION
                                                                                                                            
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                     Exhibit D-1

                               Form of Opinion of
                            Counsel for the Borrower

                                                                     Exhibit D-2

                               Form of Opinion of
                         General Counsel to the Borrower

                                                                     Exhibit D-3

                               Form of Opinion of
                      Counsel for the Administrative Agent

                                                       April 25, 2002

The Lenders Party to the
     Credit Agreement Referred to Below,
          In care of The Bank of New York,
                as Administrative Agent,
                     One Wall Street,
                          New York, New York  10286

Ladies and Gentlemen:

              In connection with the preparation of the Credit Agreement, dated
as of April 25, 2002 (the "Credit Agreement"), among Apogee Enterprises, Inc., a
Minnesota corporation (the "Borrower"), the lenders from time to time parties
thereto (the "Lenders"), The Bank of New York, as Administrative Agent for the
Lenders, L/C/ Issuer and Swing Line Lender, and U.S. Bank National Association,
Harris Trust and Savings Bank and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Co-Syndication and
Co-Documentation Agents, and in connection with the preparation of the other
Credit Documents referred to therein, we, as counsel to the Administrative
Agent, have examined such certificates and other documents, and such questions
of law, as we have considered necessary or appropriate for the purposes of this
opinion.

              Upon the basis of such examination, we advise you that, in our
opinion, the documents delivered today to the Administrative Agent appear on
their face to be appropriately responsive in all material respects to the
conditions precedent to the obligations of the Lenders required by Section 6.01
of the Credit Agreement to be satisfied prior to the Effective Time; provided,
however, that as contemplated in Sections 2.08 and 6.01(e) of the Credit
Agreement, the repayment or reimbursement of all outstanding Loans and L/C
Obligations under the Existing Facility (as defined in the Credit Agreement) may
occur after the fulfillment of a



Revolving Credit Request (as defined in the Credit Agreement) by the Lenders
under the Credit Agreement.

              The foregoing opinion is limited to the Federal laws of the United
States and the laws of the State of New York, and we are expressing no opinion
as to the effect of the laws of any other jurisdiction.

              We have assumed that the signatures on all documents examined by
us are genuine, an assumption which we have not independently verified.

              This letter is delivered by us as counsel to the Administrative
Agent, and is solely for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the
Lenders.

                                                              Very truly yours,

                                                                       Exhibit E

                         Form of Compliance Certificate

                             COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

                                       [For the Fiscal Quarter ending _________]

                                          [For the Fiscal Year ending _________]

       Reference is made to the Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2002 (as
amended, modified or supplemented from time to time, the "Credit Agreement"),
among Apogee Enterprises, Inc. (the "Borrower"), the lenders from time to time
parties thereto and The Bank of New York, as letter of credit issuer,
administrative agent and swing line lender. Pursuant to Section 7.01(a)(iii) of
the Credit Agreement, the undersigned Responsible Officer of the Borrower hereby
certifies on behalf of the Borrower that:

       (a)    As of the last date of the financial statements included in the
report on Form [10-K] [10-Q] attached hereto, no event has occurred or
circumstance exists which, individually or in the aggregate, constitutes a
Default or Event of Default except as follows: [Exceptions]

       [(b)   The financial statements referred to in Section 7.01(a) of the
Credit Agreement which are delivered concurrently with the delivery of this
Compliance Certificate fairly present the financial position, results of
operations, cash flows and changes in stockholders' equity of the Borrower and
its Subsidiaries, subject to normal year-end audit adjustments which are not
expected to be material in amount.]/1//

       [(b)] [(c)]   The Borrower is in compliance with the covenants set forth
in Article VII of the Credit Agreement. The covenant calculations set forth
below are based on the Borrower's [audited] balance sheet and statements of
earnings, cash flows and stockholders' equity for the fiscal [quarter] [year]
ended _________________, ____ (the "Period-End Date") contained in the report on
Form [10-K] [10-Q] attached hereto.

_______________________
/1//   Insert only in Compliance Certificates accompanying quarterly financial
       statements delivered pursuant to Section 7.01(a)(i) of the Credit
       Agreement.

1.     Mergers, Consolidations and Sales of Assets (Section 7.02(a))

       A.     Sales, transfers, leases or other disposals of all
              or any substantial part of assets or Property,
              including any disposition of assets or Property as
              part of a sale and leaseback transaction - total for
              the current year                                       $
                                                                      ==========

              must be less than or equal to:



              10% of the total consolidated assets of the Borrower
              (based upon total consolidated assets of Borrower on
              consolidated balance sheet for last fiscal year end)   $
                                                                      ==========

       and

       B.     Sales, transfers, leases or other disposals of all
              or any substantial part of assets or Property,
              including any disposition of assets or Property as
              part of a sale and leaseback transaction - total
              since April 25, 2002                                   $
                                                                      ==========

              must be less than or equal to:

              25% of the total consolidated assets of the Borrower
              (based upon total consolidated assets of Borrower on
              consolidated balance sheet dated March 2, 2002         $
                                                                      ==========

       COMPLIANCE STATUS                                 [OK]/[DEFAULT]

2.     Net Worth (Section 7.03(a))

       Total consolidated stockholders' equity (determined without
       duplication) of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries on the
       Period-End Date                                              $
                                                                     ===========

       must be greater than or equal to:

       Minimum Required Net Worth Calculation -- The Sum of:

       (i)    $130,000,000                                          $130,000,000

       (ii)   50% of Borrower's consolidated net income for each
              fiscal quarter completed since March 2, 2002
              (without deduction for any net losses)                $
                                                                     ===========

       (iii)  75% of all contributions to the equity of the
              Borrower made after the Effective Date                $
                                                                     ===========

              equals

       Minimum Required Net Worth (i + ii + iii)                    $
                                                                     ===========

       COMPLIANCE STATUS                                          [OK]/[DEFAULT]

3.     Interest Coverage Ratio (Section 7.03(b))

       The ratio of:

       (i)    EBITDA

              .      Consolidated net income of Borrower before
                     subtraction of consolidated income taxes,
                     Interest Expense, depreciation and
                     amortization for the four most recent fiscal
                     quarters                                        $
                                                                      ==========

                     excluding:

              .      Income, expenses and charges relating to
                     discontinued operations (whether resulting in
                     a net positive or a net negative)               $
                                                                      ==========



                     subtracting or adding, as the case may be:

              .      The EBITDA attributable to any acquired or
                     divested business on a pro forma basis          $
                                                                      ==========

                     less:

              .      Extraordinary non-cash charges, to the extent
                     such charges are less than $15,000,000 in any
                     12-month period and are less than $30,000,000
                     in the aggregate between the date of the
                     Credit Agreement and the Commitment
                     Termination Date                                $
                                                                      ==========

              .      Total EBITDA                                    $
                                                                      ==========

       to

       (ii)   Interest Expense

              .      Sum of all interest charges of the Borrower
                     and its Subsidiaries for twelve-month period
                     ending on the Period-End Date determined on a
                     consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP,
                     including all commitment fees, letter of
                     credit fees and related charges                 $
                                                                      ==========

       equals

       (iii)  the Interest Coverage Ratio on the Period-End Date
              (Total EBITDA/Interest Expense)                        ===========

              Minimum Required Interest Coverage Ratio                  3.00

              COMPLIANCE STATUS                                    [OK][DEFAULT]

4.     Debt/EBITDA Ratio (Section 7.03(c))

       The ratio of:

       (i)    Debt:

              .      All consolidated Debt (as defined in the
                     Credit Agreement) of the Borrower and its
                     Subsidiaries                                    $ _________

       to

       (ii)   EBITDA

              .      Consolidated net income of Borrower before
                     subtraction of consolidated income taxes,
                     Interest Expense, depreciation and
                     amortization for the four most recent fiscal
                     quarters                                        $ _________

                     excluding:

              .      Income, expenses and charges relating to
                     discontinued operations (whether resulting in
                     a net positive or a net negative)               $ _________

                     subtracting or adding, as the case may be:



              .      The EBITDA attributable to any acquired or
                     divested business on a pro forma basis          $ _________

                     less:

              .      Extraordinary non-cash charges, to the extent
                     such charges are less than $15,000,000 in any
                     12-month period and are less than $30,000,000
                     in the aggregate between the date of the
                     Credit Agreement and the Commitment
                     Termination Date                                $ _________

              .      Total EBITDA                                    $
                                                                       =========

       equals

       (iii)  Debt/EBITDA Ratio on the Period-End Date
                                                                     ===========

       Maximum Permitted Debt/EBITDA Ratio on Period-End Date        3.00

       COMPLIANCE STATUS                                           [OK][DEFAULT]

       IN WITNESS WHEREOF, on behalf of the Borrower, the undersigned has hereto
set his or her hand.

Dated:  ________________, ____                 APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                               By: _____________________________
                                                   A Responsible Officer

                                                                       Exhibit F

                        Form of Assignment and Acceptance

                            ASSIGNMENT AND ACCEPTANCE

       Reference is made to the Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2002 (as
amended, modified or supplemented from time to time, the "Credit Agreement"),
among Apogee Enterprises, Inc. (the "Borrower"), the lenders from time to time
parties thereto and The Bank of New York, as letter of credit issuer,
administrative agent and swing line lender. Capitalized terms defined in the
Credit Agreement are used herein with the same meanings.

       Section 1. Assignment and Acceptance. The Assignor identified in Annex 1
hereto (the "Assignor") hereby sells and assigns, without recourse, to the
Assignee identified in Annex 1 hereto (the "Assignee"), and the Assignee hereby
purchases and assumes, without recourse, from the Assignor, effective as of the
Effective Date set forth in Annex 1 hereto, the interests set forth on Annex 1
hereto (the "Assigned Interest") in the Assignor's rights and obligations under
the Credit Agreement, including, without limitation, the interests set forth on
Annex 1 in the Commitment of the Assignor on the Effective Date and the
Competitive Advance Loans and Loans owing to the Assignor which are outstanding
on the Effective Date. Each of the Assignor and the Assignee hereby makes and
agrees to be bound by all the representations, warranties and agreements set
forth in Section 10.03(a) of the Credit Agreement, a copy of which has been
received by each such party. From and after the Effective Date (i) the Assignee
shall be a party to and be bound by the provisions of the Credit Agreement and,



to the extent of the interests assigned by this Assignment and Acceptance, have
the rights and obligations of a Lender thereunder and (ii) the Assignor shall,
to the extent of the interests assigned by this Assignment and Acceptance,
relinquish its rights and be released from its obligations under the Credit
Agreement.

       Section 2. Other Documentation. This Assignment and Acceptance is being
delivered to the Administrative Agent together with a properly completed
Administrative Questionnaire, attached as Annex 2 hereto, if the Assignee is not
already a Lender under the Credit Agreement.

       Section 3. Representations and Warranties of the Assignor. The Assignor
(i) represents and warrants that, as of the date hereof, it is the legal and
beneficial owner of the interest being assigned by it hereunder and that such
interest is held by it free and clear of any adverse claim; (ii) makes no
representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to any
statements, warranties or representations made in or in connection with the
Credit Agreement, or the execution, legality, validity, enforceability,
genuineness, sufficiency or value of the Credit Agreement, or any other
instrument or document executed or furnished pursuant thereto; and (iii) makes
no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to the
financial condition of the Borrower or the performance or observance by the
Borrower of any of its obligations under the Credit Agreement or any other
instrument or document furnished pursuant thereto.

       Section 4. Representations and Warranties of the Assignee. The Assignee
(a) confirms that it has received a copy of the Credit Agreement, together with
copies of the financial statements delivered on or before the date hereof
pursuant to Sections 5.01(h) and 7.01(a) thereof and such other documents and
information as it has deemed appropriate to make its own credit

analysis and decision to enter into this Assignment and Acceptance; (b) agrees
that it will, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent,
the Assignor or any other Lender and based on such documents and information as
it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions
in taking or not taking any action under the Credit Documents; (c) appoints and
authorizes the Administrative Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf
and to exercise such powers under the Credit Documents as are delegated to the
Administrative Agent by the terms thereof, together with such powers as are
reasonably incidental thereto; (d) agrees that it will perform in accordance
with their terms all of the obligations which by the terms of the Credit
Documents are required to be performed by it as a Lender; and (e) if the
Assignee is organized under the laws of a jurisdiction outside the United
States, confirms to the Borrower (and is providing to the Administrative Agent
and the Borrower Internal Revenue Service form 1001 or 4224, as appropriate, or
any successor form prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service) that (i) the
Assignee is entitled to benefits under an income tax treaty to which the United
States is a party that reduces the rate of withholding tax on payments under the
Credit Agreement or (ii) that the income receivable pursuant to the Credit
Agreement is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business in
the United States.

         Section 5. GOVERNING LAW. THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ACCEPTANCE SHALL BE
GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS MADE AND TO BE PERFORMED ENTIRELY WITHIN SUCH STATE.

         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Assignment and
Acceptance to be executed by their respective officers thereunto duly
authorized, as of the date first above written, such execution being made on
Annex 1 hereto.

                      Annex 1 to Assignment and Acceptance

Date of Assignment:

Legal Name of Assignor:

Legal Name of Assignee:

Assignee's Address for Notices:



Effective Date of Assignment
(may not be fewer than two Business
Days after the Date of Assignment):

                                                    Percentage Assigned of
                                                    Commitment (set forth, to at
                                                    least 8 decimals, as a
                                Principal Amount    percentage of the Total
                                Assigned            Commitment)

Commitment Assigned:            $                                    %

Loans:                          $

The terms set forth above
are hereby agreed to:                               Consent given:

_________________, as Assignor                      APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

By:__________________________                       By:______________________
   Name:                                               Name:
   Title:                                              Title:

_________________, as Assignee                               Consent given:

By:__________________________                       THE BANK OF NEW YORK,
   Name:                                            as Administrative Agent
   Title:

                                                    By:______________________
                                                       Name:
                                                       Title:

                      Annex 2 to Assignment and Acceptance

LEGAL NAME OF ASSIGNEE TO APPEAR IN DOCUMENTATION:

GENERAL INFORMATION

ABR LENDING OFFICE:

Institution Name:

Street Address:

City, State, Country, Zip Code:

EURODOLLAR LENDING OFFICE:

Institution Name:

Street Address:

City, State, Country, Zip Code:

CONTACTS/NOTIFICATION METHODS

CREDIT CONTACTS:

Primary Contact:

Street Address:

City, State, Country, Zip Code:

Phone Number:

FAX Number:



Backup Contact:

Street Address:

City, State, Country, Zip Code:

Phone Number:

FAX Number:

ADMINISTRATIVE CONTACTS -- BORROWINGS, PAYDOWNS, INTEREST, FEES, ETC.

Contact:

Street Address:

City, State, Country, Zip Code:

Phone Number:

FAX Number:

PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS

Name of bank where funds are to be transferred:

Routing Transit/ABA number of bank where funds are to be transferred:

Name of Account, if applicable:

Account Number:

Additional Information:

TAX WITHHOLDING

         Non Resident Alien _____Y  ______N

         Tax ID Number _______________

         [Form W-9, W-8BEN, W-8EXP, W-8ECI or W-8IMY enclosed, as appropriate]

MAILINGS

Please specify who should receive financial information:

Name:

Street Address:

City, State, Country, Zip Code:

                                                                     Exhibit G-1

                          Form of New Lender Supplement

                              NEW LENDER SUPPLEMENT

Reference is made to the Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2002 (as
amended, modified or supplemented from time to time, the "Credit Agreement"),
among Apogee Enterprises, Inc. (the "Borrower"), the lenders from time to time
parties thereto (each, a "Lender") and The Bank of New York, as letter of credit
issuer, administrative agent and swing line lender. Capitalized terms defined in



the Credit Agreement are used herein with the same meanings.

The Credit Agreement provides that, under certain circumstances specified in
Section 2.07 thereof, a financial institution may become a party to the Credit
Agreement after the Effective Date. Therefore, the undersigned, desiring so to
become a Lender party to the Credit Agreement, hereby executes and delivers this
New Lender Supplement and agrees as follows:

Section 1. Agreement to Be Bound. The undersigned agrees to be bound by the
provisions of the Credit Agreement, and agrees that it shall, on the date this
New Bank Supplement is accepted by the Borrower and the Administrative Agent,
become a Lender for all purposes of the Credit Agreement to the same extent as
if originally a party thereto.

Section 2. Commitment. The amount of the Commitment of the undersigned shall be
$____________________.

Section 3. Other Documentation. This New Lender Supplement is being delivered to
the Administrative Agent together with a properly completed Administrative
Questionnaire, attached as Annex A hereto.

Section 4. Confirmations and Agreements of the New Lender. The New Lender (a)
confirms that it has received a copy of the Credit Agreement, together with
copies of the financial statements delivered on or before the date hereof
pursuant to Sections 5.01(h) and 7.01(a) thereof and such other documents and
information as it has deemed appropriate to make its own credit analysis and
decision to enter into this New Lender Supplement; (b) agrees that it will,
independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent or any other
Lender and based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate
at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking or not taking
any action under the Credit Documents; (c) appoints and authorizes the
Administrative Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise
such powers under the Credit Documents as are delegated to the Administrative
Agent by the terms thereof, together with such powers as are reasonably
incidental thereto; (d) agrees that it will perform in accordance with their
terms all of the obligations which by the terms of the Credit Documents are
required to be performed by it as a Lender; and (e) if the New Lender is
organized under the laws of a jurisdiction outside the United States, confirms
to the Borrower (and is providing to the Administrative Agent and the Borrower
Internal Revenue Service form 1001 or 4224, as appropriate, or any successor
form prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service) that (i) the New Lender is
entitled to benefits under an income tax treaty to which the United States is a
party that reduces the rate of withholding tax on payments under the Credit
Agreement or (ii) that
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the income receivable pursuant to the Credit Agreement is effectively connected
with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States.

Section 5. GOVERNING LAW. THIS NEW LENDER SUPPLEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK APPLICABLE TO
CONTRACTS MADE AND TO BE PERFORMED ENTIRELY WITHIN SUCH STATE.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this New Lender Supplement to be
executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer on the date first above
written.

                                    [NAME OF NEW LENDER]

                                    By:_________________________________________
                                       Title:

Accepted this _____ day of ________

APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.



By:________________________________
    Title:

Accepted this _____ day of ________

THE BANK OF NEW YORK,
    as Administrative Agent

By:________________________________
   Title:
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                        Annex A to New Lender Supplement

LEGAL NAME OF ASSIGNEE TO APPEAR IN DOCUMENTATION:

GENERAL INFORMATION

ABR LENDING OFFICE:
Institution Name:                    ___________________________________________
Street Address:                      ___________________________________________
City, State, Country, Zip Code:      ___________________________________________

EURODOLLAR LENDING OFFICE:
Institution Name:                    ___________________________________________
Street Address:                      ___________________________________________
City, State, Country, Zip Code:      ___________________________________________

CONTACTS/NOTIFICATION METHODS
CREDIT CONTACTS:
Primary Contact:                     ___________________________________________
Street Address:                      ___________________________________________
City, State, Country, Zip Code:      ___________________________________________
Phone Number:                        ___________________________________________
FAX Number:                          ___________________________________________

Backup Contact:                      ___________________________________________
Street Address:                      ___________________________________________
City, State, Country, Zip Code:      ___________________________________________
Phone Number:                        ___________________________________________
FAX Number:                          ___________________________________________

ADMINISTRATIVE CONTACTS -- BORROWINGS, PAYDOWNS, INTEREST, FEES, ETC.
Contact:                             ___________________________________________
Street Address:                      ___________________________________________
City, State, Country, Zip Code:      ___________________________________________

Phone Number:                        ___________________________________________

FAX Number:                          ___________________________________________

PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS

Name of bank where funds are to be transferred:

________________________________________________________________________________
Routing Transit/ABA number of bank where funds are to be transferred:

________________________________________________________________________________
Name of Account, if applicable:      ___________________________________________
Account Number:                      ___________________________________________
Additional Information:              ___________________________________________

TAX WITHHOLDING
        Non Resident Alien           _______Y*         ________N



        Tax ID Number:               ___________________________________________
         [Form W-9, W-8BEN, W-8EXP, W-8ECI or W-8IMY enclosed, as appropriate]

MAILINGS
Please specify who should receive financial information:
Name:                                ___________________________________________
Street Address:                      ___________________________________________
City, State, Country, Zip Code:      ___________________________________________
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                                                                     Exhibit G-2

                     Form of Commitment Increase Supplement

                         COMMITMENT INCREASE SUPPLEMENT

Reference is made to the Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2002 (as
amended, modified or supplemented from time to time, the "Credit Agreement"),
among Apogee Enterprises, Inc. (the "Borrower"), the lenders from time to time
parties thereto (each, a "Lender") and The Bank of New York, as letter of credit
issuer, administrative agent and swing line lender. Capitalized terms defined in
the Credit Agreement are used herein with the same meanings.

The Credit Agreement provides that, under certain circumstances specified in
Section 2.07 thereof, a financial institution may increase its Commitment after
the Effective Date. Therefore, the undersigned, desiring so to increase its
Commitment, hereby executes and delivers this Commitment Increase Supplement and
agrees as follows:

Section 1. Increase in Commitment. The undersigned agrees, subject to the terms
and conditions of the Credit Agreement, that is shall, on the date this
Commitment Increase Supplement is accepted by the Borrower and the
Administrative Agent, have its Commitment increased by $___________, thereby
making the amount of its Commitment $_____________.

Section 2. GOVERNING LAW. THIS COMMITMENT INCREASE SUPPLEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED
BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK APPLICABLE
TO CONTRACTS MADE AND TO BE PERFORMED ENTIRELY WITHIN SUCH STATE.

         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Commitment Increase
Supplement to be executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer on the date
first above written.

                                             [NAME OF NEW LENDER]

                                             By:________________________________
                                                Title:

Accepted this _____ day of ________, ____

APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

By:_____________________________________
   Title:

Accepted this _____ day of ________, ____

THE BANK OF NEW YORK,
    as Administrative Agent



By:______________________________________
   Title:
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================================================================================

                          SUBSIDIARY GUARANTY AGREEMENT

                                   dated as of

                                 April 25, 2002

                                      among

                          THE GUARANTORS PARTIES HERETO

                                       and

                              THE BANK OF NEW YORK,

                                    as Agent
                          for the Guaranteed Creditors

================================================================================

               SUBSIDIARY GUARANTY AGREEMENT (the "Guaranty"), dated as of April
25, 2002, by the parties who have executed this Guaranty (such parties, along
with any other parties who execute and deliver to the Agent hereinafter
identified and defined an agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A,
collectively, the "Guarantors" and, individually, a "Guarantor") in favor of The
Bank of New York ("BNY") acting as agent hereunder for the Guaranteed Creditors
hereinafter identified and defined (BNY acting as such agent and any successor
or successors to BNY in such capacity, the "Agent").

                                   WITNESSETH:

               WHEREAS, each of the Guarantors is a direct or indirect
subsidiary of Apogee Enterprises, Inc., a Minnesota corporation (the
"Borrower"); and

               WHEREAS, the Borrower and BNY, individually and as administrative
agent, letter of credit issuer and swing line lender (BNY acting as such agent
and any successor or successors to BNY in such capacity, the "Administrative
Agent") have entered into a Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2002 (such
Credit Agreement as the same may from time to time hereafter be modified,
amended or restated, the "Credit Agreement") pursuant to which BNY and such
other lenders from time to time parties thereto (BNY, as a lender, the letter of
credit issuer and the swing line lender, together with such other lenders, the
"Lenders" and, individually, a "Lender") have extended various credit facilities
to the Borrower (the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, collectively, the
"Guaranteed Creditors" and, individually, a "Guaranteed Creditor").

               WHEREAS, the Borrower provides each of the Guarantors with
substantial financial, management, administrative, and technical support; and

               WHEREAS, as a condition to extending the credit facilities and
other financial accommodations pursuant to the Credit Agreement, the Guaranteed
Creditors have required, among other things, that the Guarantors execute and
deliver this Guaranty; and

               WHEREAS, each Guarantor will directly and substantially benefit
from credit and other financial accommodations extended, and to be extended, by
the Guaranteed Creditors to the Borrower;

               NOW, THEREFORE, FOR VALUE RECEIVED, and in consideration of
advances made or to be made, or credit accommodations given or to be given, to
the Borrower by the Guaranteed Creditors from time to time, each Guarantor



hereby makes the following representations and warranties to the Guaranteed
Creditors and hereby covenants and agrees with the Guaranteed Creditors as
follows:

               Section 1. All capitalized terms used herein without definition
shall have the same meanings herein as such terms have in the Credit Agreement.

               Section 2. Each Guarantor hereby jointly and severally
guarantees, for the ratable benefit of the Guaranteed Creditors, the due and
punctual payment when due of (i) any and all indebtedness, obligations and
liabilities of the Borrower and the Guarantors, and of any of them individually,
to the Guaranteed Creditors, and to any of them individually, under or in
connection with or evidenced by the Credit Documents whether now existing or
hereafter arising
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(and whether arising before or after the filing of a petition in bankruptcy and
including all interest accrued after the petition date), due or to become due,
direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, and howsoever evidenced, held or
acquired and (ii) any and all reasonable expenses and charges, legal or
otherwise, suffered or incurred by the Guaranteed Creditors, or the Agent and
any of them, in collecting or enforcing any of such indebtedness, obligations
and liabilities or in realizing on or protecting or preserving any security
therefor. The indebtedness, obligations and liabilities described in the
immediately preceding clauses (i) and (ii) are hereinafter referred to as the
"indebtedness hereby guaranteed". In case of failure by the Borrower or any
Guarantor punctually to pay any indebtedness hereby guaranteed, each Guarantor
jointly and severally agrees to make such payment or to cause such payment to be
made punctually as and when the same shall become due and payable, whether at
stated maturity, by acceleration or otherwise. All payments hereunder by any
Guarantor shall be made in immediately available funds in the same currency in
which the indebtedness hereby guaranteed is payable, without setoff,
counterclaim or other defense or withholding or deduction of any nature.

               Section 3. Each Guarantor jointly and severally agrees to pay on
demand all reasonable expenses, legal and/or otherwise (including court costs
and reasonable attorneys' fees), paid or incurred by any Guaranteed Creditor in
endeavoring to collect the indebtedness hereby guaranteed, or any part thereof,
or in enforcing or endeavoring to enforce any Guarantor's obligations hereunder,
or any part thereof, or in protecting, defending or enforcing this Guaranty in
any litigation, bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings or otherwise.

               Section 4. Each Guarantor agrees that, upon demand, such
Guarantor will then pay to the Agent, for the benefit of the Guaranteed
Creditors, the full amount of the indebtedness hereby guaranteed then due
whether or not any one or more of the other Guarantors shall then or thereafter
pay any amount whatsoever in respect to their obligations hereunder.

               Section 5. Each of the Guarantors agrees that such Guarantor will
not exercise or enforce any right of exoneration, contribution, reimbursement,
recourse or subrogation available to such Guarantor against any person liable
for payment of the indebtedness hereby guaranteed, or as to any security
therefor, unless and until the full amount owing to the Guaranteed Creditors of
the indebtedness hereby guaranteed has been fully paid and satisfied and each of
the commitments by the Guaranteed Creditors to extend any indebtedness hereby
guaranteed shall have expired or otherwise terminated. The payment by any
Guarantor of any amount or amounts to the Guaranteed Creditors pursuant hereto
shall not in any way entitle any such Guarantor, either at law, in equity or
otherwise, to any right, title or interest (whether by way of subrogation or
otherwise) in and to the indebtedness hereby guaranteed or any part thereof or
any collateral security therefor or any other rights or remedies in any way
relating thereto or in and to any amounts theretofor, then or thereafter paid or
applicable to the payment thereof howsoever such payment may be made and from
whatsoever source such payment may be derived unless and until all of the
indebtedness hereby guaranteed has been paid and satisfied in full and each of
the commitments by the Guaranteed Creditors to extend any indebtedness hereby
guaranteed shall have expired or otherwise terminated and unless and until such
payment in full and termination, any payments made by any Guarantor hereunder
and any other payments from whatsoever source derived on account of or
applicable to the indebtedness hereby guaranteed or any part thereof shall be
held and taken to be merely payments in gross to the Guaranteed Creditors



reducing pro tanto the indebtedness hereby guaranteed.

               Section 6. To the extent permitted by the Credit Agreement, each
Guaranteed Creditor may, without any notice whatsoever to any of the Guarantors,
sell, assign, or transfer all
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of the indebtedness hereby guaranteed, or any part thereof, or grant
participations therein, and in that event each and every immediate and
successive assignee, transferee or holder of all or any part of the indebtedness
hereby guaranteed, shall have the right through the Agent pursuant to Section 18
hereof to enforce this Guaranty, by suit or otherwise, for the benefit of such
assignee, transferee or holder, as fully as if such assignee, transferee or
holder were herein by name specifically given such rights, powers and benefits;
but each Guaranteed Creditor through the Agent pursuant to Section 18 hereof
shall have an unimpaired right to enforce this Guaranty for its own benefit, as
to so much of the indebtedness hereby guaranteed that it has not sold, assigned
or transferred.

               Section 7. This Guaranty is a continuing, irrevocable, absolute
and unconditional guaranty of payment and not of collection, and shall remain in
full force and effect until any and all of the indebtedness hereby guaranteed
shall be fully paid and satisfied and each of the commitments by the Guaranteed
Creditors to extend any indebtedness hereby guaranteed shall have expired or
otherwise terminated. The Guaranteed Creditors may at any time or from time to
time release any Guarantor from its obligations hereunder or effect any
compromise with any Guarantor and no such release or compromise shall in any
manner impair or otherwise affect the obligations hereunder of the other
Guarantors. No release, compromise, or discharge of any one or more of the
Guarantors shall release, compromise or discharge the obligations of the other
Guarantors hereunder.

               Section 8. In case of the dissolution, liquidation or insolvency
(howsoever evidenced) of, or the institution of bankruptcy or receivership
proceedings against the Borrower or any Guarantor, all of the indebtedness
hereby guaranteed which is then existing shall immediately become due or accrued
and payable from the Guarantors. All payments received from the Borrower or on
account of the indebtedness hereby guaranteed from whatsoever source, shall be
taken and applied as payment in gross, and this Guaranty shall apply to and
secure any ultimate balance that shall continue to remain owing to the
Guaranteed Creditors.

               Section 9. The liability hereunder shall in no way be affected or
impaired by (and the Guaranteed Creditors are hereby expressly authorized to
make from time to time, without notice to any of the Guarantors), any sale,
pledge, surrender, compromise, settlement, release, renewal, extension,
impairment, indulgence, alteration, substitution, exchange, change in,
modification or other disposition of any of the indebtedness hereby guaranteed,
either express or implied, or of the Credit Agreement or any other contract or
contracts evidencing any thereof, or of any security or collateral therefor or
any guaranty thereof. The liability hereunder shall in no way be affected or
impaired by any acceptance by the Agent or the Guaranteed Creditors of any
security for or other guarantors upon any of the indebtedness hereby guaranteed,
or by any failure, neglect or omission on the part of the Agent or the
Guaranteed Creditors to realize upon or protect any of the indebtedness hereby
guaranteed, or any collateral or security therefor (including, without
limitation, impairment of collateral and failure to perfect security interest in
any collateral), or to exercise any lien upon or right of appropriation of any
moneys, credits or property of the Borrower or any Guarantor, possessed by the
Agent or any of the Guaranteed Creditors, toward the liquidation of the
indebtedness hereby guaranteed, or by any application of payments or credits
thereon. The Guaranteed Creditors shall have the exclusive right to determine
how, when and what application of payments and credits, if any, shall be made on
said indebtedness hereby guaranteed, or any part of same. In order to hold any
Guarantor liable hereunder, there shall be no obligation on the part of the
Agent or the Guaranteed Creditors, at any time, to resort for payment to the
Borrower or to any other Guarantor, or to any other person,
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its property or estate, or resort to any collateral, security, property, liens
or other rights or remedies whatsoever, and the Agent and the Guaranteed
Creditors shall have the right to enforce this Guaranty against any Guarantor
irrespective of whether or not other proceedings or steps are pending seeking
resort to or realization upon or from any of the foregoing are pending.

       Section 10. In the event the Guaranteed Creditors shall at any time in
their discretion permit a substitution of Guarantors hereunder or a party shall
wish to become Guarantor hereunder, such substituted or additional Guarantor
shall, upon executing an agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A,
become a party hereto and be bound by all the terms and conditions hereof to the
same extent as though such Guarantor had originally executed this Guaranty and
in the case of a substitution, in lieu of the Guarantor being replaced. No such
substitution shall be effective absent the written consent of the Guaranteed
Creditors delivered in accordance with the terms of the Credit Documents, nor
shall it in any manner affect the obligations of the other Guarantors hereunder.

       Section 11. All diligence in collection or protection, and all
presentment, demand, protest and/or notice, as to any and everyone, whether or
not the Borrower or the Guarantors or others, of dishonor and of default and of
non-payment and of the creation and existence of any and all of said
indebtedness hereby guaranteed, and of any security and collateral therefor, and
of the acceptance of this Guaranty, and of any and all extensions of credit and
indulgence hereunder, are expressly waived. Section 12. No act of commission or
omission of any kind, or at any time, upon the part of the Agent or the
Guaranteed Creditors in respect to any matter whatsoever, shall in any way
affect or impair this Guaranty.

       Section 13. The Guarantors waive any and all defenses, claims and
discharges of the Borrower, or any other obligor or Guarantor, pertaining to the
indebtedness hereby guaranteed, except the defense of discharge by payment in
full. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Guarantors will not
assert, plead or enforce against the Agent or the Guaranteed Creditors any
defense of waiver, release, discharge in bankruptcy, statute of limitations, res
judicata, statue of frauds, anti-deficiency statute, fraud, incapacity,
minority, usury, illegality or unenforceability which may be available to the
Borrower, or any other Guarantor or person liable in respect of any of the
indebtedness hereby guaranteed, or any set-off available against the Guaranteed
Creditors to the Borrower or any such other person, whether or not on account of
a related transaction. The Guarantors agree that the Guarantors shall be and
remain jointly and severally liable for any deficiency remaining after
foreclosure or other realization on any lien or security interest securing the
indebtedness hereby guaranteed, whether or not the liability of the Borrower or
any other obligor for such deficiency is discharged pursuant to statute or
judicial decision.

       Section 14. If any payment applied by the Guaranteed Creditors to the
indebtedness hereby guaranteed is thereafter set aside, recovered, rescinded or
required to be returned for any reason (including, without limitation, the
bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization of the Borrower or any other Guarantor
or obligor), the indebtedness hereby guaranteed to which such payment was
applied shall for the purposes of this Guaranty be deemed to have continued in
existence, notwithstanding such application, and this Guaranty shall be
enforceable as to such of the indebtedness hereby guaranteed as fully as if such
application had never been made. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Guaranty, in any action or proceeding involving any state corporate law or any
state or federal bankruptcy, insolvency,
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reorganization or other law affecting the rights of creditors generally, the
parties hereto agree that if the obligations of any Guarantor hereunder would
otherwise be held or determined to be void, invalid or unenforceable on account
of the amount of its liability under this Guaranty, then notwithstanding any
other provision of this Guaranty, the amount of such liability shall, without
any further action by such Guarantor or any other person, be automatically
limited and reduced to the highest amount that is valid and enforceable and not
subordinated to the claims of other creditors as determined in such action or
proceeding; provided, however, that nothing in this sentence shall affect (i)
the joint and several nature of the Guaranty and its obligations, (ii) the
provisions of the Contribution Agreement regarding contribution among the
Guarantors and (iii) the first sentence of this section 14.



       Section 15. The liability of the Guarantors under this Guaranty is in
addition to and shall be cumulative with all other liabilities of the Guarantors
after the date hereof to the Guaranteed Creditors as a Guarantor of the
indebtedness hereby guaranteed, without any limitation as to amount, unless the
instrument or agreement evidencing or creating such other liability specifically
provides to the contrary.

       Section 16. Any invalidity or unenforceability of any provision or
application of this Guaranty shall not affect other lawful provisions and
applications hereof, and to this end the provisions of this Guaranty are
declared to be severable. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any
invalidity or unenforceability against any Guarantor of any provision or
application of the Guaranty shall not affect the validity or enforceability of
the provisions or application of this Guaranty as against the other Guarantors.

       Section 17. Any demand for payment on this Guaranty or any other notice
required or desired to be given hereunder to any Guarantor shall be in writing
(including, without limitation, notice by telecopy) and shall be given to the
relevant party at its address or telecopier number set forth on the appropriate
signature page hereof, or such other address or telecopier number as such party
may hereafter specify by notice to the Agent given by United States certified or
registered mail, by telecopy or by other telecommunication device capable of
creating a written record of such notice and its receipt. Each such notice,
request or other communication shall be effective (i) if given by telecopier,
when such telecopy is transmitted to the telecopier number specified in this
Section and a confirmation of such telecopy has been received by the sender,
(ii) if given by mail, five (5) days after such communication is deposited in
the mail, certified or registered with return receipt requested, addressed as
aforesaid or (iii) if given by any other means, when delivered at the addresses
specified in this Section 17.

       Section 18. No Guaranteed Creditor (other than the Agent ) shall have the
right to institute any suit, action or proceeding in equity or at law in
connection with this Guaranty for the enforcement of any remedy under or upon
this Guaranty; it being understood and intended that no one or more of the
Guaranteed Creditors (other than the Agent) shall have any right in any manner
whatsoever to enforce any right hereunder, and that all proceedings at law or in
equity shall be instituted, had and maintained by the Agent in the manner herein
provided and for the benefit of the Guaranteed Creditors.

       Section 19. This Guaranty shall supersede the Subsidiary Guaranty
Agreement, dated May 21, 1998, (the "Prior Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement") by
and between the Guarantors (as defined in such agreement), in favor of The Bank
of New York, in its entirety. Upon the effective date of the Termination
Agreement, the Prior Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement shall become null and void.
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               Section 20. THIS GUARANTY SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS MADE
AND TO BE PERFORMED ENTIRELY WITHIN THE STATE OF NEW YORK and may not be waived,
amended, released or otherwise changed except by a writing signed by the
Guaranteed Creditors. This Guaranty and every part thereof shall be effective
upon delivery to the Agent, without further act, condition or acceptance by the
Guaranteed Creditors, shall be binding upon the Guarantors and upon the legal
representatives, successors and assigns of the Guarantors, and shall inure to
the benefit of the Agent or the Guaranteed Creditors, their successors, legal
representatives and assigns. The Guarantors waive notice of the Agent's or the
Guaranteed Creditors' acceptance hereof. This Guaranty may be executed in
counterparts and by different parties hereto on separate counterparts each of
which shall be an original, but all together to be one and the same instrument.

               Section 21. The Guarantors' obligation hereunder to make payments
in the currency specified in the Credit Agreement (the "Obligation Currency")
shall not be discharged or satisfied by any tender or recovery pursuant to any
judgment expressed in or converted into any currency other than the Obligation
Currency, except to the extent that such tender or recovery results in the
effective receipt by the Guaranteed Creditors of the full amount of the
Obligation Currency expressed to be payable to the Guaranteed Creditors under
this Guaranty. If for the purpose of obtaining or enforcing judgment against any
Guarantor in any court or in any jurisdiction, it becomes necessary to convert
into or from any currency other than the Obligation Currency (such other
currency being hereinafter referred to as the "Judgment Currency") an amount due



in the Obligation Currency, the conversion shall be made at the rate of exchange
(as quoted by the Agent or if the Agent does not quote a rate of exchange on
such currency, by a known dealer in such currency designated by the Agent)
determined, in each case, as of the day immediately preceding the day on which
the judgment is given (such business day being hereinafter referred to as the
"Judgment Currency Conversion Date"). If there is a change in the rate of
exchange prevailing between the Judgment Currency Conversion Date and the date
of actual payment of the amount due, the Guarantors covenant and agree to pay,
or cause to be paid, such additional amounts, if any (but in any event not a
lesser amount) as may be necessary to ensure that the amount paid in the
Judgment Currency, when converted at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date
of payment, will produce the amount of the Obligation Currency which could have
been purchased with the amount of Judgment Currency stipulated in the judgment
or judicial award at the rate of exchange prevailing on the Judgment Currency
Conversion Date. For purposes of determining any rate of exchange for this
Section 21, such amounts shall include any premium and costs payable in
connection with the purchase of the Obligation Currency.

               Section 22. Each Guarantor hereby submits to the nonexclusive
jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Southern District of
New York and of any New York State court sitting in The City of New York for
purposes of all legal proceedings arising out of or relating to this Guaranty or
the transactions contemplated hereby. Each Guarantor irrevocably waives, to the
fullest extent permitted by law, any objection which it may now or hereafter
have to the laying of the venue of any such proceeding brought in such a court
and any claim that any such proceeding brought in such court has been brought in
an inconvenient forum. EACH OF THE GUARANTORS, THE AGENT AND THE GUARANTEED
CREDITORS HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY
LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS GUARANTY OR THE TRANSACTIONS
CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.
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       Section 23. In order to induce the Guaranteed Creditors to continue and
extend the credit facilities and other financial accommodations to the Borrower
pursuant to the Credit Agreement, each Guarantor makes the following
representations and warranties, all of which shall survive the execution and
delivery of this Guaranty.

       (a)    Such Guarantor (i) is a duly organized and validly existing
corporation (or limited liability company, as the case may be) in good standing
under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization, (ii) has the power and
authority to own its property and assets and to transact the business in which
it is engaged and presently proposes to engage and (iii) is duly qualified as a
foreign corporation (or limited liability company, as the case may be) and in
good standing in each jurisdiction where the ownership of property or the
conduct of its business requires such qualification except where the failure to
be so qualified could not reasonably be expected to have a material adverse
effect on the business, operations, properties or financial or other condition
of such Guarantor.

       (b)    Such Guarantor has the power and authority to execute, deliver and
perform the terms and provisions of this Guaranty and has taken all necessary
action to authorize the execution, delivery and performance by it of this
Guaranty. Such Guarantor has duly executed and delivered this Guaranty, and this
Guaranty constitutes its legal, valid and binding obligation enforceable in
accordance with its terms, except to the extent that the enforceability thereof
may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium
or other similar laws generally affecting creditors' rights and by equitable
principles (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in equity or at law).

       (c)    Neither the execution, delivery or performance by such Guarantor
of this Guaranty, nor compliance by it with the terms and provisions hereof, nor
the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein (i) will contravene any
material provision of any law, statute, rule or regulation or any order, writ,
injunction or decree of any court or governmental instrumentality, (ii) will
conflict or be inconsistent with or result in any breach of any of the terms,
covenants, conditions or provisions of, or constitute a default under, or result
in the creation or imposition of (or the obligation to create or impose) any
Lien upon any of the property or assets of such Guarantor pursuant to the terms
of any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, credit agreement, loan agreement or
any other material agreement, contract or instrument to which any of the
Guarantor or its subsidiaries is a party or by which it or any of its property



or assets are bound or to which it may be subject or (iii) will violate any
provision of the certificate of incorporation or by-laws (or the equivalent
charter, organizational or formation documents) of such Guarantor.

       (d)    No order, consent, approval, license, authorization or validation
of, or filing, recording or registration with (except as have been obtained or
made on or prior to the date hereof and which remain in full force and effect),
or exemption by, any governmental or public body or authority, or any
subdivision thereof, is required to authorize, or is required in connection
with, (i) the execution, delivery and performance of this Guaranty by such
Guarantor or (ii) the legality, validity, binding effect or enforceability of
this Guaranty.

                      [THE NEXT PAGE IS THE SIGNATURE PAGE]
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               IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Guarantors have caused this Guaranty to
be executed and delivered as of the date first above written.

                                            GUARANTORS:
                                            ----------

                                            HARMON, INC.

                                            By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                               --------------------------------
                                            Name:   Gary R. Johnson
                                            Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                            Address:
                                            919 Fifth Avenue, NW
                                            Suite 100
                                            New Brighton, MN 55112-2702
                                            Attention:

                                            HARMON GLASS COMPANY

                                            By: /s/ Gary R. Johsnon
                                               --------------------------------
                                            Name:   Gary R. Johnson
                                            Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                            Address:
                                            4000 Olson Memorial Highway
                                            Suite 600 Minneapolis, MN
                                            55422-5334 Attention:

                                            VIRACON, INC.

                                            By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                               --------------------------------
                                            Name:   Gary R. Johnson
                                            Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                            Address:
                                            500 Park Drive
                                            Owatonna, MN 55060
                                            Attention:
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                                          VIRACON GEORGIA, INC.

                                          By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                             -----------------------------------
                                          Name:   Gary R. Johnson
                                          Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                          Address:  c/o Apogee Enterprises, Inc.
                                                    7900 Xerxes Ave. So.
                                                    Minneapolis, MN  55431
                                          Attention:

                                          VIRACON/CURVLITE, INC.

                                          By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                             -----------------------------------
                                          Name:   Gary R. Johnson
                                          Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                          Address:
                                          500 Park Drive
                                          Owatonna, MN 55060
                                          Attention:

                                          VIRATEC THIN FILMS, INC.

                                          By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                             -----------------------------------
                                          Name:   Gary R. Johnson
                                          Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                          Address:
                                          2150 Airport Drive
                                          Faribault, MN 55021-7798
                                          Attention:
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                                            APOGEE WAUSAU GROUP, INC.

                                            By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                               ---------------------------------
                                            Name:   Gary R. Johnson
                                            Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                            Address:
                                            1415 West Street
                                            Wausau, WI 54401
                                            Attention:

                                            TRU VUE, INC.

                                            By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                               --------------------------------
                                            Name:   Gary R. Johnson
                                            Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                            Address:
                                            1315 North Branch Street
                                            Chicago, IL 60622



                                            Attention:

                                            BALANGIER DESIGNS, INC.

                                            By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                               --------------------------------
                                            Name:   Gary R. Johnson
                                            Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                            Address:  c/o Apogee Enterprises
                                                      7900 Xerxes Ave. So.
                                                      Minneapolis, MN 55431
                                            Attention:
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Accepted and agreed to in New York, New York as of the date first above written.

                                            THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as Agent for
                                            the Guaranteed Creditors

                                            By: /s/ Joseph F. Murphy
                                               ---------------------------------
                                               Name:  Joseph F. Murphy
                                               Title: Vice President
                                                       Central Division Head

                                               Address:

                                               One Wall Street, 19th Floor
                                               New York, New York 10286
                                               Attention:  John-Paul Marotta

                                               Telephone:  (212) 635-8204
                                               Facsimile:  (212) 635-1208
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                                                                       Exhibit A

                    ASSUMPTION AND SUPPLEMENT TO SUBSIDIARY GUARANTY AGREEMENT
(the "Agreement"), dated as of this _____ day of ____________, _____, made by
[new guarantor], a ___________ corporation (the "New Guarantor");

                                WITNESSETH THAT:

                    WHEREAS, certain parties have executed and delivered to the
Guaranteed Creditors that certain Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement, dated as of
______, 2002 (such Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement, as the same may from time to
time be modified or amended, including supplements thereto which add or
substitute parties as Guarantors thereunder, the "Guaranty") pursuant to which
such parties (the "Existing Guarantors") have guaranteed to the Guaranteed
Creditors the full and prompt payment of, among other things, any and all
indebtedness, obligations and liabilities of the Borrower (as defined in the
Guaranty) arising under or relating to the Credit Agreement and certain other
Credit Documents as defined therein; and

                    WHEREAS, the Borrower provides the New Guarantor with
substantial financial, managerial, administrative and technical support and the
New Guarantor will directly and substantially benefit from credit and other
financial accommodations extended and to be extended by the Guaranteed Creditors
to the Borrower;

                    NOW, THEREFORE, FOR VALUE RECEIVED, and in consideration of
advances made or to be made, or credit accommodations given or to be given, to
the Borrower by the Guaranteed Creditors from time to time, the New Guarantor
hereby agrees as follows:



                    Section 1. The New Guarantor acknowledges and agrees that it
shall become a "Guarantor" party to the Guaranty effective upon the date of the
New Guarantor's execution of this Agreement and the delivery of this Agreement
to the Agent on behalf of the Guaranteed Creditors, and that upon such execution
and delivery, all references in the Guaranty to the terms "Guarantor" or
"Guarantors" shall be deemed to include the New Guarantor.

                    Section 2. The New Guarantor hereby assumes and becomes
liable (jointly and severally with all the other Guarantors) for the
indebtedness hereby guaranteed (as defined in the Guaranty) and agrees to pay
and otherwise perform all of the obligations of a Guarantor under the Guaranty
according to, and otherwise on and subject to, the terms and conditions of the
Guaranty to the same extent and with the same force and effect as if the New
Guarantor had originally been one of the Existing Guarantors under the Guaranty
and had originally executed the same as such an Existing Guarantor.

                    Section 3. All capitalized terms used in this Agreement
without definition shall have the same meaning herein as such terms have in the
Guaranty, except that any reference to the term "Guarantor" or "Guarantors" and
any provision of the Guaranty providing meaning to such term shall be deemed a
reference to the Existing Guarantors and the New Guarantor. Except as
specifically modified hereby, all of the terms and conditions of the Guaranty
shall stand and remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

                    Section 4. The New Guarantor agrees to execute and deliver
such further instruments and documents and do such further acts and things as
the Agent or the Guaranteed Creditors may deem necessary or proper to carry out
more effectively the purposes of this Agreement.
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                    Section 5. No reference to this Agreement need be made in
the Guaranty or in any other document or instrument making reference to the
Guaranty, any reference to the Guaranty in any of such to be deemed a reference
to the Guaranty as modified hereby.

                    Section 6. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New York applicable to contracts
made and to be performed entirely within the State of New York.

                                            [NEW GUARANTOR]

                                            By: ________________________________
                                                Name:
                                                Title:

Acknowledged and agreed to in New York, New York as of the date first above
written.

                                            THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as Agent for
                                            the Guaranteed Creditors

                                            By: ________________________________
                                                Name:
                                                Title:
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================================================================================

                             CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT

                                   dated as of

                                 April 25, 2002



                                      among

                            APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                       and

                         THE CONTRIBUTING PARTIES HERETO

================================================================================

          CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT (the "Agreement"), dated as of April 25, 2002,
among Apogee Enterprises, Inc., a Minnesota corporation (the "Principal"), and
each of the undersigned corporations (other than the Principal) located at the
addresses set forth on the signature pages below their names (each, together
with any other parties who execute and deliver to the Agent referred to below a
supplement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, a "Subsidiary", and
collectively, the "Subsidiaries"). The Principal and each of the Subsidiaries
are sometimes hereinafter referred to individually as a "Contributing Party"
(and collectively as the "Contributing Parties").

                              W I T N E S S E T H:

          WHEREAS, the Principal is a party to a Credit Agreement, dated as of
April 25, 2002, by and among the Principal, The Bank of New York, as
Administrative Agent, Letter of Credit Issuer and Swing Line Lender, and the
Lenders from time to time parties thereto (the "Credit Agreement"; capitalized
terms used herein without definition have the meanings given them, or
incorporated by reference, in the Credit Agreement);

          WHEREAS, as a condition, among others, to the willingness of the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders to enter into the Credit Agreement, the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders have required that each Subsidiary execute
and deliver that certain Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement, dated as of April 25,
2002 (such agreement, as the same may from time to time be amended, modified,
restated or extended, the "Guaranty"), pursuant to which, among other things,
the Subsidiaries have jointly and severally agreed to guarantee the indebtedness
of the Borrower to the Guaranteed Creditors pursuant to Section 2 of the
Guaranty (collectively, the "Guaranteed Obligations"); and

          WHEREAS, each Subsidiary is a wholly-owned direct or indirect
subsidiary of the Principal and is engaged in businesses related to those of the
Principal and each other Subsidiary, and each of the Subsidiaries will derive
direct or indirect economic benefit from the effectiveness and existence of the
Credit Agreement;

          NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the covenants
hereinafter contained, and to induce each Subsidiary to enter into the Guaranty,
it is agreed as follows:

          To the extent that any Subsidiary shall, under the Guaranty, make a
payment (a "Subsidiary Payment") of a portion of the Guaranteed Obligations,
then such Subsidiary shall be entitled to contribution and indemnification from,
and be reimbursed by, each of the other Contributing Parties in an amount, for
each such Contributing Party, equal to a fraction of such Subsidiary Payment,
the numerator of which fraction is such Contributing Party's Allocable Amount
and the denominator of which is the sum of the Allocable Amounts of all of the
Contributing Parties.

          As of any date of determination, the "Allocable Amount" of each
Contributing Party shall be equal to the maximum amount of liability which could
be asserted against such Contributing Party hereunder with respect to the
applicable Subsidiary Payment without (i) rendering such Contributing Party
"insolvent" within the meaning of Section 101(31) of the Federal Bankruptcy Code
(the "Bankruptcy Code") or Section 2 of either the Uniform Fraudulent Transfer
Act (the "UFTA") or the Uniform Fraudulent Conveyance Act (the "UFCA"), (ii)
leaving such Contributing Party with unreasonably small capital, within the
meaning of

Section 548 of the Bankruptcy Code or Section 4 of the UFTA or Section 5 of the
UFCA, or (iii) leaving such Contributing Party unable to pay its debts as they
become due within the meaning of Section 548 of the Bankruptcy Code or Section 4



of the UFTA or Section 6 of the UFCA.

          This Agreement is intended only to define the relative rights of the
Contributing Parties, and nothing set forth in this Agreement is intended to or
shall impair the obligations of the Subsidiaries, jointly and severally, to pay
any amounts, as and when the same shall become due and payable in accordance
with the terms of the Guaranty.

          The parties hereto acknowledge that the rights of contribution and
indemnification hereunder shall constitute assets in favor of each Subsidiary to
which such contribution and indemnification is owing.

          This Agreement shall become effective upon its execution by each of
the Contributing Parties and shall continue in full force and effect and may not
be terminated or otherwise revoked by any Contributing Party until all of the
Guaranteed Obligations under and as defined in the Guaranty shall have been
indefeasibly paid in full and discharged and the financing arrangements
evidenced and governed by the Credit Agreement and the Credit Documents shall
have been terminated. Each Contributing Party agrees that if, notwithstanding
the foregoing such Contributing Party shall have any right under applicable law
to terminate or revoke this Agreement, and such Contributing Party shall attempt
to exercise such right, then such termination or revocation shall not be
effective until a written notice of such revocation or termination, specifically
referring hereto and signed by such Contributing Party, is actually received by
each of the other Contributing Parties and by the Administrative Agent and the
Lenders. Such notice shall not affect the right or power of any Contributing
Party to enforce rights arising prior to receipt of such written notice by each
of the other Contributing Parties and the Administrative Agent and the Lenders.
If any Lender grants additional loans (in addition to the Credit Agreement) to
the Principal or takes other action giving rise to additional Guaranteed
Obligations after any Contributing Party has exercised any right to terminate or
revoke this Agreement but before the Administrative Agent or such Lender
receives such written notice, the rights of each other Contributing Party to
contribution and indemnification hereunder in connection with any Subsidiary
Payments made with respect to such loans or Guaranteed Obligations shall be the
same as if such termination or revocation had not occurred.

          This Agreement shall supercede the Contribution Agreement, dated May
21, 1998 (the "Prior Contribution Agreement"), by and between the Subsidiaries,
in its entirety. Upon the effective date of the Termination Agreement, the Prior
Contribution Agreement shall become null and void

          This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of New York applicable to contracts made and to be
performed entirely within the State of New York.

                      [THE NEXT PAGE IS THE SIGNATURE PAGE]
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          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Contributing Party has executed and delivered
this Agreement, under seal, as of the date first above written.

                                           APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                           By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                              ----------------------------------
                                               Name:  Gary R. Johnson
                                               Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                               Address:
                                               7900 Xerxes Avenue South
                                               Suite 1800
                                               Minneapolis, Minnesota 55431
                                               Attention:

                                           HARMON, INC.

                                           By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                              ----------------------------------



                                               Name:  Gary R. Johnson
                                               Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                               Address:
                                               919 Fifth Avenue, NW
                                               Suite 100
                                               New Brighton, MN 55112-2702
                                               Attention:

                                           HARMON GLASS COMPANY

                                           By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                              ----------------------------------
                                               Name:  Gary R. Johnson
                                               Title: Vice President

                                               Address:
                                               4000 Olson Memorial Highway
                                               Suite 600
                                               Minneapolis, MN 55422-5334
                                               Attention:
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                                       VIRACON, INC.

                                       By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                          -----------------------------
                                           Name: Gary R. Johnson
                                           Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                           Address:
                                           500 Park Drive
                                           Owatonna, MN 55060
                                           Attention:

                                       VIRACON GEORGIA, INC.

                                       By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                          -----------------------------
                                           Name: Gary R. Johnson
                                           Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                           Address:c/o Apogee Enterprises, Inc.
                                           7900 Xerxes Ave. S.
                                           Minneapolis, MN 55431
                                           Attention:  Gary R. Johnson

                                       VIRACON/CURVLITE, INC.

                                       By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                          -----------------------------
                                           Name: Gary R. Johnson
                                           Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                           Address:
                                           500 Park Drive
                                           Owatonna, MN 55060
                                           Attention:
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                                       VIRATEC THIN FILMS, INC.

                                       By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                          --------------------------
                                           Name: Gary R. Johnson
                                           Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                           Address:
                                           2150 Airport Drive
                                           Faribault, MN 55021-7798
                                           Attention:

                                       APOGEE WAUSAU GROUP, INC.

                                       By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                          --------------------------
                                           Name: Gary R. Johnson
                                           Title:  Vice President, Treasurer
                                           Address:
                                           1415 West Street
                                           Wausau, WI 54401
                                           Attention:

                                       TRU VUE, INC.

                                       By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                          --------------------------
                                           Name: Gary R. Johnson
                                           Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                           Address:
                                           1315 North North Branch Street
                                           Chicago, IL 60622
                                           Attention:

                                       -5-

                                       BALANGIER DESIGNS, INC.

                                       By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                          ---------------------------
                                           Name: Gary R. Johnson
                                           Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                           Address: c/c Apogee Enterprises, Inc.
                                           7900 Xerxes Ave. S.
                                           Minneapolis, MN 55431
                                           Attention:  Gary R. Johnson
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                                                                       Exhibit A

       ASSUMPTION AND SUPPLEMENT TO CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT (the "Supplement"),
dated as of this _____ day of ____________, _____, made by [new contributing
party] a ___________ corporation (the "New Contributing Party");

                                WITNESSETH THAT:



       WHEREAS, certain parties have executed and delivered that certain
Contribution Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2002 (such Contribution Agreement,
as the same may from time to time be modified or amended, including supplements
thereto which add or substitute parties as Contributing Parties thereunder, the
"Agreement") pursuant to which such parties (the "Existing Contributing
Parties") have agreed to provide for contribution, indemnification and
reimbursement rights among each other with respect to amounts paid under the
Guaranty referred to in the Agreement; and

       WHEREAS, the Principal (as defined in the Agreement) provides the New
Contributing Party with substantial financial, managerial, administrative and
technical support and the New Contributing Party will directly and substantially
benefit from credit and other financial accommodations extended and to be
extended by the Guaranteed Creditors (as defined in the Guaranty) to the
Principal;

       NOW, THEREFORE, FOR VALUE RECEIVED, and in consideration of advances made
or to be made, or credit accommodations given or to be given, to the Principal
by the Guaranteed Creditors from time to time, the New Contributing Party hereby
agrees as follows:

       Section 1. The New Contributing Party acknowledges and agrees that it
shall become a "Contributing Party" to the Agreement effective upon the date of
the New Contributing Party's execution of this Supplement and the delivery of
this Supplement to the Principal and that upon such execution and delivery, all
references in the Agreement to the terms "Contributing Party" or "Contributing
Parties" shall be deemed to include the New Contributing Party.

       Section 2. The New Contributing Party hereby agrees to pay and otherwise
perform all of the obligations of a Contributing Party under the Agreement
according to, and otherwise on and subject to, the terms and conditions of the
Agreement to the same extent and with the same force and effect as if the New
Contributing Party had originally been one of the Existing Contributing Parties
under the Agreement and had originally executed the same as such an Existing
Contributing Party.

       Section 3. All capitalized terms used in this Supplement without
definition shall have the same meaning herein as such terms have in the
Agreement, except that any reference to the term "Contributing Party" or
"Contributing Parties" and any provision of the Agreement providing meaning to
such term shall be deemed a reference to the Existing Contributing Party and the
New Contributing Party. Except as specifically modified hereby, all of the terms
and conditions of the Agreement shall stand and remain unchanged and in full
force and effect.

       Section 4. The New Contributing Party agrees to execute and deliver such
further instruments and documents and do such further acts and things as the
Principal or the other Contributing Parties may deem necessary or proper to
carry out more effectively the purposes of this Supplement.
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              Section 5. No reference to this Supplement need be made in the
Agreement or in any other document or instrument making reference to the
Agreement, any reference to the Agreement in any of such to be deemed a
reference to the Agreement as modified hereby.

              Section 6. This Supplement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of New York applicable to contracts made
and to be performed entirely within the State of New York.

                                               [NEW CONTRIBUTING PARTY]

                                               By:____________________________
                                                   Name:
                                                   Title:

       Acknowledged and agreed to in New York, New York as of the date first
above written.



                                               APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                               By:____________________________
                                                   Name:
                                                   Title:
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                        TERMINATION AND RELEASE AGREEMENT

          TERMINATION AND RELEASE AGREEMENT (this "Agreement"), dated April 25,
2002, by and among the parties to the various agreements described below.
Capitalized terms used herein without definition are used as defined in the
Credit Agreement or such other relevant Credit Document.

                              W I T N E S S E T H:
                              - - - - - - - - - -

          WHEREAS, in consideration for the establishment of a new credit
facility, the parties to that certain Credit Agreement, dated as of May 21, 1998
(as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the
"Credit Agreement"), have determined that it is in the best interests of the
parties to terminate the Credit Agreement, the Commitments thereunder and the
various Credit Documents related thereto;

          NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and for other good
and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

          SECTION 1. Termination of the Credit Agreement. (a) Upon the
effectiveness of this Agreement, the Credit Agreement shall terminate and be of
no further force or effect and (i) the Borrower shall not have any further
liabilities or obligations thereunder and (ii) the Lenders shall have no further
obligations thereunder.

          (b) In accordance with Section 2.03(a) of the Credit Agreement, the
Borrower has given notice to the Administrative Agent of the reduction of the
Total Commitment under the Credit Agreement to zero, and the Administrative
Agent has accepted such notice, each as evidenced by their execution of the
"Credit Agreement Signature Page" attached hereto.

          (c) The Administrative Agent and the Lenders agree to deliver to the
Borrower, at the Borrower's sole expense, such releases and other instruments
(including without limitation the Notes) as the Borrower may reasonably request
to give effect to the foregoing release and termination.

          (d) In accordance with Sections 2.03(a) and 2.04 of the Credit
Agreement, any Commitment Fees, Letter of Credit Fees, accrued but unpaid
interest on any Loans and any other accrued but unpaid fees shall be paid by the
Borrower on the date hereof.

          (e) The date upon which this Agreement becomes effective shall be the
"Commitment Termination Date" for all purposes of the Credit Agreement and the
Credit Documents, and all Loans shall be repaid on such date.

          (f) Any outstanding Letter of Credit under the Credit Agreement shall
remain outstanding in accordance with the terms thereof and shall be deemed
issued pursuant to the new credit agreement executed on the date hereof, to the
extent that there are no unreimbursed drawings under any such outstanding Letter
of Credit.

          (g) The provisions of Sections 4.03, 4.04, 4.06 and 9.06 of the Credit
Agreement shall survive termination of the Credit Agreement.

          SECTION 2. Termination of the Security Agreement. (a) Upon the
effectiveness of this Agreement, the Security Agreement, dated as of June 13,
2000 (the "Security Agreement"), by and among the Borrower, the Debtors and the
Agent (each as defined in the Security Agreement), including without limitation



all Liens created, granted or assigned therein or pursuant thereto or in
accordance therewith, shall terminate and be of no further force or effect and
no party to the Security Agreement shall have any further liabilities or
obligations thereunder.

          (b) The Agent under the Security Agreement shall take all reasonable
actions (including the execution, delivery and filing of such releases or other
financing instruments and, where appropriate, the return of physical possession
and control) to release all of the Collateral from the security interests
created under the Security Agreement.

          (c) The Borrower and the Agent acknowledge the termination of the
security interests under the Security Agreement by executing the "Security
Agreement Signature Page" attached hereto.

          (d) All indemnities by the Borrower under the Security Agreement shall
survive its termination and remain in full force and effect.

          SECTION 3. Termination of the Pledge Agreement. (a) Upon the
effectiveness of this Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, dated as of May 21, 1998
(the "Pledge Agreement"), by and among the Borrower, the Pledgors and the Agent
(each as defined in the Pledge Agreement), including without limitation all
Liens created, granted or assigned therein or pursuant thereto or in accordance
therewith, shall terminate and be of no further force or effect and no Pledgor
shall have any further liabilities or obligations thereunder.

          (b) The Agent hereby agrees to release all collateral as may have been
delivered to, or otherwise be in the possession of, the Agent pursuant thereto
or in accordance therewith, and to return the physical possession and control of
all Collateral possessed or controlled by it to the appropriate Pledgors. The
Agent further agrees to deliver to the Pledgors, at the Pledgors' sole expense,
such other releases, termination statements and other instruments as any Pledgor
may reasonably request to give effect to the foregoing release and termination.

          (c) The Pledgors and the Agent acknowledge the termination of the
security interests under the Security Agreement by executing the "Pledge
Agreement Signature Page" attached hereto.

          (d) All indemnities by the Pledgors under the Pledge Agreement shall
survive its termination and remain in full force and effect.

          SECTION 4. Termination of the Subsidiary Guaranty. (a) Upon the
effectiveness of this Agreement, the Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement, dated as of
May 21, 1998 (the "Subsidiary Guaranty"), by and among the Guarantors and the
Agent (as defined in the Subsidiary Guaranty) shall terminate and be of no
further force or effect and no party shall have any further obligations or
liabilities thereunder.
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          (b) The Agent agrees to deliver to the Guarantors, at the Guarantors'
sole expense, such other releases, termination statements and other instruments
as any Guarantor may reasonably request to give effect to the foregoing release
and termination.

          (c) The Agent and the Guarantors acknowledge the termination of the
obligations under the Subsidiary Guaranty by executing the "Subsidiary Guaranty
Signature Page" attached hereto.

          SECTION 5. Termination of the Contribution Agreement. (a) Upon the
effectiveness of this Agreement, the Contribution Agreement, dated as of May 21,
1998 (the "Contribution Agreement"), by and between the Principal and the
Subsidiaries (as defined in the Contribution Agreement) shall terminate and be
of no further force or effect and no party shall have any further liabilities or
obligations thereunder.

          (b) The Principal and the Subsidiaries acknowledge the termination of
the obligations under the Contribution Agreement by executing the "Contribution
Agreement Signature Pages" attached hereto.

          SECTION 6. Effectiveness. This Agreement shall become effective upon
occurrence of the following:



          (a) The execution by all necessary parties of the signature pages
attached hereto and the delivery of such signature pages or counterparts to the
Administrative Agent.

          (b) The Administrative Agent shall have executed and delivered to the
Borrower the Receipt attached hereto as Exhibit A.

          SECTION 7. Parties in Interest. This Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective
successors and permitted assigns.

          SECTION 8. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed
in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate
counterparts, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall be deemed to
be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute but one and the
same instrument.

          SECTION 9. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York applicable to
contracts made and to be performed entirely within the State of New York.

                       [THE NEXT PAGE IS A SIGNATURE PAGE]
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                        [CREDIT AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE]

          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to
be duly executed as of the date first above written.

                                APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                   ------------------------------------

                                   Name:  Gary R. Johnson

                                   Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                   THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as
                                   Administrative Agent on behalf of the Lenders

                                By: /s/ Joseph F. Murphy
                                   ------------------------------------

                                   Name:  Joseph F. Murphy

                                   Title: Vice President, Central Division Head

                       [SECURITY AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE]

                                APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                   ------------------------------------

                                   Name:  Gary R. Johnson

                                   Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as
                                Agent on behalf of the Secured Creditors
                                under the Security Agreement

                                By: Joseph F. Murphy



                                   ------------------------------------

                                   Name:  Joseph F. Murphy

                                   Title: Vice President, Central Division Head

                       [PLEDGE AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGES]

                                       APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                       By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                        ----------------------------------------

                                          Name:  Gary R. Johnson

                                          Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                       APOGEE WAUSAU, INC.

                                       By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                        ----------------------------------------

                                          Name:  Gary R. Johnson

                                          Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                       VIRACON, INC.

                                       By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                        ----------------------------------------

                                          Name:  Gary R. Johnson

                                          Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                       HARMON GLASS COMPANY
                                       (On behalf of itself and as successor by
                                       merger to The Glass Depot, Inc. and
                                       American Management Group)

                                       By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                        ----------------------------------------

                                          Name:  Gary R. Johnson
                                          Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                         THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as
                                         Agent for the Secured Creditors
                                         in the Pledge Agreement

                                         By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                            ----------------------------------

                                            Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                            Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                      [SUBSIDIARY GUARANTY SIGNATURE PAGES]

                                      HARMON, INC.



                                      By: /s/ Gary R. Johnso
                                         ------------------------------------

                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                      VIRACON/CURVLITE, INC.

                                      By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                         ------------------------------------

                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                      APOGEE WAUSAU GROUP, INC.

                                      By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                         ------------------------------------

                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                      VIRACON, INC.

                                      By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                         ------------------------------------

                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title: Vice President, Treasurer

                                      VIRATEC THIN FILMS, INC.

                                      By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                         ------------------------------------

                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                TRU VUE, INC.

                                By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                   -------------------------------------

                                   Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                   Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                HARMON GLASS COMPANY

                                (On behalf of itself and as successor by merger
                                to The Glass Depot, Inc., The Glass Depot of NY,
                                Inc., American Management Group and Dover Glass
                                Company)

                                By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                   -------------------------------------

                                   Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                   Title:  Vice President, Treasurer



                                THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as Agent for the
                                Guaranteed Creditors in the Subsidiary Guaranty
                                Agreement

                                By: /s/ Joseph F. Murphy
                                   -------------------------------------

                                   Name: Joseph F. Murphy

                                   Title: Vice President, Central Division Head

                    [CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGES]

                                      APOGEE ENTERPRISES, INC.

                                      By: /s/  Gary R. Johnson
                                         -------------------------------------

                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                      HARMON, INC.

                                      By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                         -------------------------------------

                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                      VIRACON/CURVLITE, INC.

                                      By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                         -------------------------------------

                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                      APOGEE WAUSAU GROUP, INC.

                                      By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                         -------------------------------------

                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                      VIRACON, INC.

                                      By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                         -------------------------------------

                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                      VIRATEC THIN FILMS, INC.

                                      By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                         -------------------------------------



                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                      TRU VUE, INC.

                                      By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                         -------------------------------------

                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                      HARMON GLASS COMPANY
                                      (On behalf of itself and as successor by
                                      merger to The Glass Depot, Inc., The Glass
                                      Depot of NY, Inc., American Management
                                      Group and Dover Glass Company)

                                      By: /s/ Gary R. Johnson
                                         -------------------------------------

                                         Name: Gary R. Johnson

                                         Title:  Vice President, Treasurer

                                                                       Exhibit A

                                     RECEIPT

       THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as Administrative Agent (the "Administrative
Agent") under the Credit Agreement, dated as of May 21, 1998 (the "Credit
Agreement"), by and among Apogee Enterprises, Inc., a Minnesota corporation (the
"Borrower"), each of the lenders party to such Agreement (collectively, the
"Lenders"), and The Bank of New York, as letter of credit issuer, administrative
agent for the Lenders and swing line lender, hereby acknowledges that it has
received payment of the sum of $______________ in same day or immediately
available funds, representing payment in full of all outstanding principal of
Loans, together with all interest accrued thereon through the date hereof due
under the Credit Agreement on the date hereof, and all accrued and unpaid fees
under the Credit Agreement.

       The Administrative Agent executes this Receipt on behalf of all of the
Lenders in the Credit Agreement and will forthwith disburse such funds to the
appropriate Lenders in repayment of Loans made by them, together with the
proportionate share of interest unpaid and accrued thereon, and in payment for
accrued and unpaid fees due as of the Commitment Termination Date under the
Credit Agreement.

                                THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as Administrative Agent,
                                on behalf of the Lenders in the Credit Agreement

                                By:  /s/ Joseph F. Murphy
                                   --------------------------------------

                                    Name: Joseph F. Murphy

                                    Title: Vice President, Central Division Head
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